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THIS DEED is madson . L2Cemnlel 2011

between The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 913 ¢/- Level 4, 9 Beach

and

cand L

and

Road, Surfers Paradise Qld 4217
(Lender}

Peregian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864 (Borrower)

Glensite Group {Qld} Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 083;
Lot 111 Pty Lidd ACN 106 102 0085; and

Green Square Property Development Corporation Pty L.td ACN 104 248
053

{Guarantor)

Glenside Group Pty Ltd ACN 003 515 883

RECITALS

A

E.

F.

LM Investment Management Limited ACN 077 208 461 as trustee for the LM
Managed Performance Fund lent cerlain monies to the Borrower on the terms of the
Loan Agreement.

The Guarantor has provided the Guarantee and the Security Providers have provided
the Security in support of the Borrower's obligations under the Loan Agreement;

Following setilement of the loan, The Trust Company (PTAL} Limited ACN 008 412
913 was appointed as cusfodian to the Fund and LM Investment Management
Limited as frustee for the LM Managed Performance Fund assigned the legal interest
in the Loan Agreement and the Securlty to The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN
008 412 913.

The Borrower acknowladges and consents to the assignment by LM Investment
Management Limited ACN 077 208 461 as frustee for the LM Managed Performance
Fund of its legal interest in the Loan Agreement and the Security to The Trust
Company (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 813,

The Borrower and the Security Provider have requested the Lender to consent fo an
amendment of the Loan Agreement;

The Lender has agreed to the requested amendment on the terms of this Deed.

NOW IT IS COVENANTED AND AGREED as follows:

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.4

Definitions

Claim means any allegation, debt, cause of action, liability, claim, proceeding, suit or
demand of any nature howsoever arising, whether present or future, fixed or
unascertained, actual or sontingernt, known or unknown and whether at law, in equity,
under statute or otherwise,

{00025065.1 Reference: RXC 3329556
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Page 2

Constitution means the Trust Deed of the Fund as amended from time to time.

Custody Deed means the custody deed between the Lender and LM dated 4
February 1998,

Effective Date means the date of this Deed.

Facility means the loan facility and security arrangement recorded in and evidenced

by-the-Lean-Agreement-and-the-Security and-every othier-ducumsm GEWesT the

Lender, the Borrower and any Guarantor relating fo or incidental to the facility that is
provided under the Loan Agreement and the Security.

Fund means the LM Managed Performance Fund,

Guarantee means the Deed of Guarantee and indemnity provided by David Richard
Hawes, Glenside Group {Qid) Ply Ltd ACN 144 620 093, Lot 111 Pty Ltd ACN 106
102 005 and Green Square Property Development Corporation Py Lid ACN 104 248
053 dated 29 June 2010,

Liabilities means all liabifities, debts, costs, expenses or obligations, whether actual
or contingent, present or future, quantified or unguantified.

LM means LM Investment Management Limited ACN 077 208 4581,

Loan Agreement means the Loan Agreemaeant dated 29 June 2010 (as amended
from time to time and as amended by Deed of Variation dated 21 Qctober 2010)
hetween Peregian Beach Ply Ltd (as Borrower), LM Invesiment Management
Limited ACN 077 208 461 as trustee for the LM Managed Performance Fund under
which the Lender agreed fo loan an amount of $6,000,000.00 to the Borrower.

Loss means all loss, Liabilities, damages, costs, expensss, claims, demands, suits,
actions and causes of actions, including attorneys’ fees, other professionals’ and
experts’ fees, and court or arbitration costs.

Schedule 1 means Schedule 1 o this Deed of Variation.

Security means the security that is described in Schedule 1 and the other security
that is intended to secure the Borrower's obligations under the Loan Agreement,

Security Providers means each Guarantor, Glenside Group Pty Lid and any other
party whoe has provided a Security in support of the Borrower’s obligations under the
Loan Agreement and where the coniext permits includes any one or mors of them,

Words and expressions which are defined in the Loan Agreement have the same
meanings when used in this Deed.

1.2 Interpretation
{a}  Reference to:-
{n one gender includes the others;
{it) the singular includes the plural and the plural includes the singular;
i) a person includes a body corporate; and
{00D26065.} {60025065.) Reference: RXC 3320556
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{iv)  a party includes the party’s executors, administrators, successors and
permitied assigns.

(b)  Headings are for convenience only and do not form part of this Deed or affect
its interpretation.

) Terms defined in the Loan Agreement have & correspanding meaning when
used in this Deed.

1.3

Parties

(a) If a party consists of more than 1 person, this Deed binds each of them
separately and any 2 or more of them joinlly.

(b} An obligation, representation or warranty in favour of more than 1 person is for
the benefit of them separafely and jointy,

(3] A party which is a frustee is bound both personally and in ifs capacity as a
trustee,

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

This Deed of Variation Is subject to and conditional upon:-

{a) the Lender belng satisfied in its sole and absolule discretion with the resulls of
their enguiries and searches in relation to the Borrower, the Security Providers
and the Security;

(b}  this Deed of Variation and all suppismentary documentation that the Lender

requires being provided in support of this Deed being executed by the relevant
parties.

VARIATION OF LOAN DEED

Subject to clause 2, the Loan Agreement is amended with effect as and from the
Effective Date to read as set cutin Annexure A,

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND EVENTS OF DEFAULT

4.1

4.2

5.

The Borrower and the Security Providers hereby represent and warrant to the Lender
that no Event of Default or Potential Event of Default subsists under the Loan
Agreement or the Security or will result from clause 3 taking effect.

The Borrower and the Security Providers hereby confirm and repeat each of the
representations and warranties made by them in the Loan Agreement and the
Securlty with reference to the facts and circumstances subsisting as at the date of this
Deed.

GENERAL CONFIRMATIONS AND RATIFICATIONS

5.1

The Borrower and the Security Providers hereby unconditionally and irrevocably:-

{00025085.} {00025065.} Reference: RYC 3329555
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Page 4

{a)y  ratify and confirm to the Lender thelr continuing obligations under the Loan
Agreement, the Guaraniee and the Security to which they are a party as
supplemantad or amended by this Deed; and

{b) ackrowledge and agree that the provisions of the Loan Agreement (as
amendad by this Deed), the Guarantee and the Security shall in all respects
remain in full force and effect and continue to apply.

5.2......The Borrower and. fhe -Sscurity-Providers-cenfirm-and-acknowledge-thaty——— T

{a}  they have not executed the Loan Agresment, the Guarantee, the Securiy or
this Deed (to which they are a parly) as a result of any dealings, promise,
representation, warranty, statement or information of any kind given or offered
by or on behalf of the Lender or any officer or employee of the Lender whether
in answer to an enquiry by or on behalf of the Borrower or the Guarantor or
not;

{b)  they have not, and will not in future, rely on any promise, representation,
statement, information or dealings with the Lender or any officer or employee
of the Lender unless it has been produced in writing;

{c) any promise, representation, statement, information or dealings made by any
officer or emiployee of the Lender {even ¥ in writing) is subject to formal
approval by the Lenders investment approval commitiee and cannot be refied
upon; and

(d) any broker or other person that introduces the Borrower or the Guarantor fo
the Lender or arranges or negotiates the Loan with the Lender:-

(i) is not acting as the broker or agenf or in any capacity for the Lender
and Is acling solely in #s capacity as broker or ageni for the Borrower
of the Guarantor;

{i) has no authority to buy or in any way act on behalf of or make any
stafements or representations on behalf of the Lendsr, The Borrower
and the Guarantor will not rely on any actual staternent by the broker
that purports to bind the Lender.

6. RELEASE

With effect from the date of this Deed, the Borrower and each Security Provider
releases and forever discharges and indemnifies the Lender from all action, suites,
Claims, demands, cosis, liabilities and/or Loss of any nature whatscever which they
now or at any time may have, or, but for the execution of the Deed, couid or might
have had, against the Lender and the any of their respective officers, agents,
representafives or employees, in connection with or incidental to the Fagility and the
Security.

7. FURTHER ASSURANCES

7.1 The Borrower and the Security Providers shall immediately on demand by the Lender
at the entire cast and expense of the Borrower and the Security Providers make,
execute, do, perform and provide all such further acis, Deeds, assurances, contracts,
deeds, documents, guarantees, indemnities, instruments, matters and things as the

{00025065.} {00025085.) Referenca: RXC 3329556
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Lender shall requirs to perfect or improve the rights and powers afiorded or cregted
or intended to be & afforded or created by this Deed or any of the documents or
transactions contemplated in this Deed.

8. SEVERABILITY

if a clause or part of a clause of this Deed can be read in a way that makes It illegat,
- unenforceable or invalid, but can alsoberead in a'way that makesitlsgal, =

enforceable and valid, it must be read in the latier way. i any clause or partof a

clause Is illegal, unenforceable or invalid, that clause or part is fo be treated as

rernoved from this Deed, but the rest of this Deed is not affected.

9. ENTIRE DEED

This Deed, read together with the Loan Agreement and Security constitutes the full
and entire Deed between the parties with respect to the subject matter of it and
prevails over all prior negotiations, proposals and Deeds whether oral or written.

10. COSTS

The Borrower must pay the Lender's costs of preparing, executing and stamping this
Geed.

11. RECITALS

The recitals form part of this Deed and are binding on the pariies.

12. COUNTERPARTS

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts (including by way of
facsirmile} and all such counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

13. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

131 The law of Queensiand governs this Deed.

13.2 The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Queensland and
the Federal Court of Australia.

14. THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

144 Custodian - the Lender enters into this Deed and is liable under the Loan Agreement
and the Security, and the other parties to this Deed acknowledge that they are aware
that the Lender enters Into this Deed and is liable under the Loan Agreement and the
Security, only in its capacity as custodlan of the Fund pursuant to the Custody Deed
and in no other capacity and the other parties to this Deed are aware of the limited
scope of the Lender's obligations and powers under the Custody Deed.

{00625065.} {CODZ5065.} Referance: RXC 3328556
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14.2

Fage

Liability Limited - A fiability arising under or in connection with this Deed, the Loan

- Agreement and each Security is limited to and can be enforced against the Lender

only to the extent to which it can be satisfled out of the property of the Fund out of
which the Lender is actually indemnified for the liability. This limitation of the Lender's
liability applies despite any other provision of this Deed, the Loan Agreement or any
other Security and extends fo all fiabilities and obligations of the Lender in any way
connected with any representation, warranty, conduct, omission, deed or transaction

14.3

144

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

149

related-torthis Deed; the Lomy Agresment and each other Security.

No Right to Appoint or Proves - The parties to this Deed other than the Lender may not
sue the Lender personally or seek the appointment of a lquidator, administrator,
receiver or similar person to the Lender or prove in any liguidation, administration or
arrangemant of, or affecting, the Lender,

Limit of Liability Not to Apply - The provisions of this clause 14 do not apply to any
obligation or Jability of the Lender to the extent that it is not satisfied because under
the Fund's Constitution, the Custody Deed, or by operation of law there is a reduction
in the extent of the Lender's indemnification out of the assets of the Fund, as a result
of the Lender’s fraud, negligence or wilful default.

Scope of the Custedy Deed - Despite any other provision of this Deed, if any
obligation otherwise imposed upon the Lender under this Deed is, in the Lender's
opinion, inconsistent with, or beyond the scope of the Lender's obligations or powsrs
tnder the Custody Deed, that obligation, to the extent of that inconsistency or to the
extent that it is beyond the scope of the Lender's obligations or powers under the
Custody Deed, must be performed by LM in its capacily as the Responsible Entity of
the Fund.

Inconsistency with the Custody Deed - Any failure by the Lender to perform an
obligation which it determines is either inconsistent with or beyond its powers and
obligations under the Cusiody Deed wiil not amount to a breach of or a default under
this Deed. The Lender's determination as to whether an obligation otherwise
imposed upen It under this Deed is inconsistent with or beyond the scope of its
obligations and powers under the Custody Deed is final and binding on all Parties.

Future Limitations - the Lender is not obliged to do or refrain from doing anything
under this Deed (including incur any liability} unless the Lender's liability is limited in
the manner salisfactory {o the Lender in its absolute discretion.

Agents - No attorney, agent, receiver or receiver and manager appointed in
accordance with this Deed, the Loan Agreement and each other Security or otherwise
has authority to act on behalf of the Lender in a way which exposes the Lender to any
personal liability and no act or omission of any such person will be considered fraud,
negligence or wilful default of the Lender for the purpose of clause 14.4.

Fallure by the Lender - A failure by the Lender to comply with, or a breach by the
Lender of any of its obligations under thls Deed will not be considerad fo be fraud,
negligence or wilful default by the Lender if the relevant failure or breach:

{a) arose as a result of a breach by a person other than the Lender where the
performance of the action (the non-performance of which gave rise to such
breach) is a precondition to the Lender performing the said obligation; or

{00025065.} {60025065.) Raference; RXC 3320554
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Page 7

{t) was in accordance with a lawful court order or direction or otherwise required
by law.

14.10 Override Provision - All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Deed are subject
to this clause 14.

15. LM LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

154 Trustee - LM enters into this Deed, the Loan Agreement and each other Security and
the other parties to this Deed acknowledge that they are aware that LM enters into
this Deed, the Loan Agreement and each other Securfty, inits capacity as the Trustee
of the Fund, pursuant to the Fund's Constifution and the other parties to this Deed are
aware of the fimited scope of LM's obligations and powers under such Fund.

15,2 Liabitity Limited - A Fability arising under or in connection with this Deed, the Loan
Agreement and each other Security is limited to and can be enforced against LM only
1o the extent to which it can be satisfied out of the property of the Fund out of which
{ M is actually indemnified for the particular liability. This limitation of LM's liability
applies despite any other provisian of this Deed, the Loan Agreement and each other
Security and extends to all liabililies and obligations of LM in any way connected with
any representation, warranty, conduct, omission, deed or fransaciion related to this
Deed.

153 No Right to Appoint or Prove - The parties to this Deed other than LM may not sue
LM personelly or sesk the appaintment of a liquidator, administrator, receiver or
similar person to LM or prove in any liquidation, administration or arrangement of, or
affecting, LM,

154  Limit of Liability Not to Apply - The provisions of this clause 15 do not apply to any
abligation or liability of LM to the extent that it is not satisfied because under the
Fund's Constitution or other constituent documents, or by operation of law, there is a
reduction in the extent of LM's indemnification out of the assels of the Fund, as a
result of LM's fraud, negligence or wilful default.

155 Inconsistency with the Constitution - Any failure by LM ta perform an obligation which
it determines Is either inconsistent with or beyond its powers and obligations under
the Constifution will not amount to a breach of or a default under this Deed. LM's
detarmination as io whether an obligation otherwise imposed upon it under this Deed
is Inconsistent with or beyond the scope of its obfigations and powers under the
Constitution s final and binding on all parties.

45.6 Future Limitations - LM is not obliged fo do or refrain from doing anything under this
Deed (including incur any liability) unless LM's habifity is imited in the manner
satisfactory to LM in its absolute discretion.

157 Agenis - No attorney, agent, receiver or receiver and manager appointed in
acgordance with this Deed |, the Loan Agreement and gach ather Security (if any) or
otherwise has authority lo act on behalf of LM in a way which exposes LM to any
personal fiability and no act or omission of any such person will be considered fraud,
negligence or wilful default of LM for the purpose of clause 15.4.

158 Failure by LM - A failure by LM to comply with, or a breach by LM of any of its
obligations under this Deed and each other Security (if any) will not be considered to
be fraud, negligence or witful default by LM if the relevant failure or breach:

{00025068.) {00026065.) Reference; FUAC 3329556
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atose as a result of 2 breach by a person other than LM whers the
performance of the action (the non-performance of which gave rise to such
breach) is a precondition to L performing the said obligation; or

was in accordance with a fawful court order or direction or otherwise required
by law.

159 Override Provision - All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Deed are subjeffat

{0D026065.)
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Fage 8

Schedule 1

1. Mortgage No. AB586T74P given by Green Square Property Development Corporation
Pty Lid;

2, Mortgage No. AB831157C given by Lot 111 Pty Ltd:

3. Fixedand Floating Charge No. 1301177 over Lot 141 Pty Ltd:

4, Fixed and Floating Charge No. 1301176 over Glenside Group Pty Ltd;

5. Fixed and Floating Charge No. 2010141 over Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412
364,

6. Fixed and Floating Charge No. 1171133 over Green Square Property Development
Corporalion Ply Lid.

7. Fixed and Floating Charge No. 2010143 over Glenside Group (Qid) Pty Lid;

8. Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity by David Hawes dated 02.06.2005;

g, Deed of Guarantse and Indemnity by David Richard Hawes, Glenside Group Pty Lid
and Green Square Proparty Development Corparation Pty L{d dated 2 June, 2005;

10.  Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity by David Richard Hawes, Glenside Group (Qid)
Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 093, Lot 111 Pty Ltd ACN 106 102 005 and Green Square
Property Development Corparation Pty Ltd ACN 104248 053 dated 29 June 2010:

1. Deed of Cross Collateralisation dated 08.06.2005 between Green Square Property
Development Corporation Pty Ltd, Lot 111 Pty Lid (as Borrowsr), David Hawes and
Gienside Group Ply Lid (Guarantors) and LM Investment Management Limited
{Lender);

12.  Deed of Cross-Collateralisation dated 21 Qctober 2010 granted by the Borrower,
Glenside Group Ply Ltd and each Guarantor in faveur of LM Investment Management
Limited ;

13, Morigage dated on or around the date of this Deed given by Peregian Beach Ply Lid
ACN 127 412 864 intended tc be second registered over the property described as lot
74 on 5P 236546 contained in title reference 50848722,

{00025085} {00025065.} Referance: RXC 3329356
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Schedule 2
Solicitor's Certificate {Borrower}
!

of

Solitiiors CERTIFY 16 THE TRUST COMPARY TPTAL) LIMITED ACN 008 #2913 4as
follows:

1. | am a Solicitor holding a current practising certificate and | act for Peregian Beach
Pty Ltd ACN 127 412 864, the Borrower;

2. That before the Borrower execuied this Deed of Varfation, | fully explained the
contents and nature and effect of same to the Borrower or the Directors of the
Borrower and each of them who were, in my apinion, aware of and fully understood
the nature and effect of the tarms of the Deed of Variation and the Borrower's
obligations under and pursuant io the Deed of Varation;

3. The Borrower stated to me that the Borrower understood the nature and effect of the
terms of the Deed of Variation and o the best of my knowledge and belief, that
statement is true; and

4, The Borrower voluntartly exscufed the Deed of Variation in my presence,
DATED this day of December 2011

Signed:

(Signature of certifying Solicitor)

FULL NAME OF SOLICITOR TO BE
PRINTED:

FULL NAME AND ADDRESS OF LEGAL

FIRM:
{00025065.} {00025065.) Reference: RXC 3320556
Thomsons -~ -, - * Deed of vadalion properyl154873 1
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Schedule 3

Solicitor's Certificate {Guarantor}

Solcitors CERTIFY % THE TRUST COMPANY {PTAL) LIMITED ACN 008 412913 as

1. I am a Solicitor hoiding a current practising ceriificate and | act for David Richard
Hawes, the Guarantor;

2. That before the Guarantor executed this Deed of Variation, | fully explained the
contents and nature and effect of same to the Guaranior or the Directors of the
Guarantor and each of them who were, in my opinion, aware of and fully understood
the nature and effect of the terms of the Deed of Variation and the Guarantor's
obligations under and pursuant o the Deed of Variation;

3. The Guarantor stated to me that the Guarantor understood the nature and effect of
the terms of the Deed of Variation and to the best of my knowledge and belief, that
statement is frue; and

4, The Guarantor voluntarily executed the Deed of Varlation in my presence.

5. { do not act for the Borrower in this transaction.

BATED this day of December 2011
Sidned:

{Stgnature of certifying Solicitor)

FULL NAME QF SOLICITOR TG BE
PRINTED:

FULL NAME AND ADDRESS OF LEGAL

FiRM:
{00025065.} {00025065.} Reference: RXG 3379556
Thomsons - * Deed of varlstion PrOPERYTE4979_1
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Schedule 4
Solicitor's Certificate (Guarantor)
|

of

e Gutititors CERTIFY 16 THE TRUST COMPANY [PTALY LIMITED ACN 008 412913 as
follows:

1. I am a Soligitor holding a current practising certificate and | act for Glenside Group
(Qld} Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 (093, the Guarantor:

2. That before the Guarantor executed this Deed of Variation, | fully explained the
conienis and nature and effect of same to the Guarantar or the Directors of the
Guarantor and each of them who were, in my opinion, aware of and fully understood
the nature and effect of the terms of the Deed of Variation and the Guarantor's
obligations under and pursuant to the Deed of Variation;

3. The Guararnitor stated 1o me that the Guarantor understood the nature and effect of
the terms of the Deed of Variation and fo the basl of my knowledge and belief, that
statement is true; and

4, The Guarantor voluntarily executed the Deed of Variation in my presence.

5. 1 do not act for the Barrower in this ransaction.

DATED this day of December 2011
Signed;

{Slgnature of ceriifying Solicitor)

FULL NAME OF SOLICITOR TO BE
PRINTED:

FULL NAME AND ADDRESS OF LEGAL

FHRM:
{00025085.} {00025065.) Reference: RXG 1320558
Thomsons .- . Deed of variation property/ 154878 _1
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Schedule 5

Solicitor's Certificate (Guarantor)

Solicitors CERTIFY to THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED ACN 008 412 8913 as
follows:

1.

| am & Solicitor holding a current practising ceriificate and | act for Lot 111 Pty Ltd
ACN 106 102 005, the Guarantor;

That before the Guarantor executed fhis Deed of Variation, | fully explained the
gontents and nature and effect of same to the Guarantor or the Directors of the
Guaranior and each of them who were, in my opinion, aware of and fully understood
the nature and effect of the terms of the Deed of Variation and the Guarantor's
obligations under and pursuant to the Deed of Variation;

The Guaranior stafed to me that the Guaranter understood the nature and effect of
the terms of the Deed of Variation and to the best of my knowledge and belisf, that
statement is frue; and

Thae Guarantor voluntarily executed the Deed of Variation in my presence.

1 do not act for the Borrower in this transaction.

DATED this day of December 2011

Signed;

(Signature of certifying Solicitor)

FULL NAME OF SOLICITOR TO BE
PRINTED:

FULL NAME AND ADDRESS OF LEGAL
FIRM:

{00025665.} {000250E5.} Reference: RXU 5325556

Themsons - Dead of variation properly/754978 1
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Schedule 6

Solicitor's Certificate (Guarantor)

of
e ~Seoticiore-CERTIFY-to THE-TRUST COMPANY-{PTALY LHMTED ACN 008312913 T
follows:

1. | am a Solicitor holding a current practising certificate and | act for Green Sguare
Praperty Development Corporation Pty Ltd ACN 104 248 053, the Guarantor;

2. That before the Guarantor executed this Deed of Variation, | fully explained the
contents and nature and effect of same to the Guarantor or the Directors of the
Guarantor and each of them who were, In my opinion, aware of and fully understood
the nature and effact of the terms of the Deed of Variation and the Guarantor's
obligations under and pursuant to the Deed of Varlatiory;

3. The Guarantor stated to me that the Guarantor understood the nature and effect of
the terms of the Deed of Variation and to the best of my knowiedge and belief, that
statement is trus; and

4, The Guarantor volunitarily executed the Deed of Variation in my presence.

5. i do not act for the Borrower in this transaction.

BATED this day of Decsmber 2011

Signed:
{Signature of certifying Soficitor)
FULL NAME OF SOLICITOR TO BE
PRINTED:
FULL NAME AND ADDRESS OF LEGAL
FIRM:
{00025065.1 {00025965.} Relerence: RXC 3529558
Thomsons ot Daed of varaticn propertyf754579_1
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Schedule 7

Solicitor's Certificate (Guarantor)

Solicitors-CERTIFY to THE TRUST COMPANY (PTALY LIMITED ACN 008 412 9713 5

follows:

1.

i am a Solicitor holding & current practising certificate and ! act for Glenside Group
Pty Ltd ACN 003 515 893 the Guarantor;

That before the Guarantor executed this Deed of Variation, | fully explained the
contents and nature and effect of sams o the Guarantor or the Directors of the
Guaranter and each of them who were, in my opinion, aware of and fully understood
the nature and effect of the terms of the Deed of Variation and the Guarantor's
obligations under and pursuant to the Deed of Variation:

The Guarantor stated {o me that the Guarantor understood the nature and effect of
the terms of the Deed of Variation and fo the best of my knowledge and belief, that
statement is frue; and

The Guarantor voluntarily executed the Deed of Variation in my presence.

| do nat act for the Borrower in this transaction.

DATED this day of

Signed:

{Signature of cerfifying Solicitor)

FULL NAME OF SOLICITOR TO BE
PRINTED:

FULL NAME AND ADDRESS OF LEGAL
FIRM:

{00025065.} {000250635.} Redarence: RXC 3329558

Thomsons - Beed of variation PIOperyT5ASTS 1
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EXECUTED as a dead
EXECUTED as a DEED by THE TRUST

COMPANY {PTAL} LIMITED ACN 608 412
913 as Lender, by its Attorney who state that it
has had no notice of revocation of the Power of

Attorney dated 12 July 2010 registered in

Queensiand as dealing number 713351029

EXECUTED asa DEED by PEREGIAN
BEACH PTY LTD ACN 127 412 864 in
accordance with Section 127 of the
Corpoarations Act 20071,

e ervives {Qld)

Page 16

s ™

Geofffey Funnell
Statd Manager — Corporate and Legal

V

*Director/*Company Secretary

Director

AVID RCHOED HPWES

Name of *Director/"Company Secretary
(BLOCK LETTERS)
‘please defote as appropriate

SIGNED SEALED AND DELIVERED by
DAVID RICHARD HAWES
in the presence of:

Name of Director
(BLOCK LETTERS)

Vi

Wifﬁegé
{

R

EXECUTED as a DEED by GLENSIDE
GROUP (QLD) PTY LTD in accordance
with Secticn 127 of the Corporations Act
2001.

)

*Directar/*Company Secretary

Director

Dy RICHARD FEn-ES

Name of *Director/*Company Secretary

{BLOCK LETTERS}
*plexse delele as appropriate

Name of Direclor
(BLOCK LETTERS)

{00625065.} 100026065.)
Thomsons: -~ <t °

Reference: RXC 3328556

Deed of variation

property/ 754879 _1
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EXECUTED asa DEED by GLENSIDE
GROUP PTY LTD in accordance with
Section 127 of the Corporafions Act 2007;

*Dirsctor/*Company Secretary

i

Director

DAV RICHARD FEIEDS

Namg of *Director/*Company Sacretary
{BLOCK LETTERS)
“please delele as appropriate

EXECUTED asz DEED by LOT 111
PTY LTD in accordance with Section 127
of the Corporations Act 2001;

Name of Director
(BLOCK LETTERS)

a7

*Director*Company Secretary

Director
Ty ROHARD HOWES

Name of *Director/*Company Secretary

(BLOCK LETTERS)
*nlease delete as appropriate

EXECUTED asa DEERD by GREEN
SQUARE PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION PTY LTD in accordance
with Section 127 of the Corporalions Act
2001

Name of Director
{BLOCK LETTERS)

*Director/*Company Secretary

Vv
L e

Director
ayiDy Bradaonhy Hoy-Es

Name of *Directar/*Cotnpany Secretary

{BLOCK LETTERS)
*please delete as apprepriae

Name of Director
{BLOCK LETTERS)

{00025065.)
Thomsons

{00025065.)

Reference: RXC 3328556

Deed of vatlation

propery754979_1
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Annexure
Loan Deed
{00025085.} (00625065  Reference: RXG 3323556
Thomsons .- ° Deed of varation proparty/ 754079 1
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Peragian Beach Py Ltd ACN 127 412 864
{*Borrower")

and

oroperty/ 754973 _1

The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited
ACN 008 412 913 ("Lender™}

Loan Agreement

LM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD
Leval 4,
9 Beach Road
Surfers Paradise Qld 4217

Ph: 07 5584 4500
Fax: 07 55892 2505

417



THIS AGREEMENT is made on the date stipulated in ftem 1

BETWEEN: The Trust Company {PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 913 {"Lender™)
AND: The party described in ltem 2 ("the Borrower™)

- AGREEMENT ‘ ,,_ i _ S R
A, The Lender has, at the Borrowsr's request, agreed fo lend and advance to the Borrower the Loan

Amount on the conditions, among cthers, that the Borrower execute this Agreement.
8. The Lender is the custodian of the Fund.
THE PARTIES AGREE
1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
11 Definitions

in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise reguires:

{0} “Agreement” means this agreement and includes the Security.

{p} "Business Day" means a day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which the
Lender or irading banks generally are closed or obliged to doss in Brisbane.

(g} “‘Consumer Credit Legislation™ means the Cansumer Credit Code or the earlier Credit
Acts,

{y) “Confract Date” means the dafe of the Contract beiween the Barrower as Purchaser and

Stockland North Lakes Pty Lid as Vendor for the sale to the Borrower of the Land;

{s) Constifution means the Trust Deed of the Fund as amendad from time to fms.

{t) Custody Deed means the custody deed between the Lender and LM dated 4 February
1999,

{u} "Date for Repayment” means that date specified iri liern 5.

{v} "DDR. Authority” means the Direct Debit Request, perledic payment authority or periodic

debt/credit autharity relating to the DDR System.

fw) "DOR System™ means any process by which the Borrower, at the request of the Lender,
authorises the deduction of instalmenis of principal andfor interest payable by the
Borrower to the Lender in accordance with this Agresment from the Borrower's bank
account,

{=) “DA” means a Development Approval for a materiai change of use fo permit the use of the
property far apartments {ninety three (93} dwelling units/hactare} and shop 300m2 GFA or
such other number and dimensions as approved by the bLender in writing on ferms
salisfactory to the Lender.

{v) “Development Approval” means z development approval as that term is defined in the
Sustainable Planning Act, 2009 {Qld:

properiy/754973 1
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{=} “Development Management Agreement” means the agreement baiween the Borrower
and Glenside Group {CHd) Pty Ltd contained in a letter dated 28 June, 2010 from the.
Borrower fo Glenside Group {Qld) Pty Ltd which was accepted by Glenside Group (Qtd) Pty
Ltd or such other document or agreemerit that the Lender and the Borrower agree in writing
to be a development management agreement for the purposes of this Loan Agreement.

(aa) “Development Management Fees” means fees that are payable by the Borower to the
Developrment Manager under the Development Management Agresment.

(bb) "Event of Defauit" means any of the events of default described as such in this Agreement
(including the events of default deseribed in clause 7,1).
{cc) "Facility to Security Ratio” means the maximum accepiable ratie betwean the Money

Secured and the GST exclusive value of the Principal Security as determined by the Lender
in its absolute discretion and expressed as a percentage as specified in tem 13,

{ad) “Fund™ means the LM Managed Performance Fund.

{es) "Guarantor” means joinfly and severally each person described in ltem 12 and any other
person who may from time to ime guaranies the payment of the Money Secured.

() "Higher Rate”" means fhe rate of Interest stipulated in ltem 6.

(oo} “Land” means the land described as Lot 26 on Survey Plan 224073 comptised in

the reference 50780250 County Stantey, Parish Redcliffe.
(i) “Liguidated Damages” has the meaning as defined in clause 4.10.

(it} “Lower Rate" means the rate of intergst stiputated in ftem 7. 1 no rate is stipulated the rate
shall be deemed to be the same as the Higher Rate;

(i} "Loan Amount” means that sum specified in ltem 4 and includes all further advances or re-
advances, if any, under this Agreement. .

(kk) LM means LM Investment Management Limited ACN 077 208 461,

{1 "Money Secured” includes:

{a) the Loan Amount;

{2) alt moneys deemed to be principal in arrears;

{c) all money now ar in the future owing or payable to the Lendar by the Borrower or the

Security Provider either alone or jointly with another person, whether direcily or indirectly
gr contingenily under this Agreement, a Security, or on any other account whatsoever,
and including without fimitation alf such mongy arising fram:

{n any guarantee, deed, indemnily, bond, account, document or other
agreement in writing including the Security;

{ii} interest payable on the Money Secured including interest which has been
capitalised;

{iii} inferest on any judgment entered by the Lender against the Borrower or the
Security Provider in respect of the Money Secured;

{iv) alf costs, expenses or losses, including liquidated damages, incurred or
sustained by the Lender in relation to any fallurs by the Borrower or the
Security Provider to comply with the terms of the Security; and

property(754973 1
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() alt advaness, further advances, loans, credits or financial accommaodation
whether made created or given on or before the signing hereof or that may
hereafter be made created or given by the Lender in its absolute diseretion 1o
for or on account of or at the expressed or implied request of the Borrower
or the Security Provider;

{d} postage, commissicns, valuation fees, Tees, costs, charges and expenaas relating to the
advance hereunder and the Security, according o the usage and course of business of
the Lender or pavable by the Borrower andfor. any Security Provider under. any Secutity; e

(&) stamp duty or any other levy, financlal impost or tax pavable according to law or atising
out of or in connection with the Security,

{f) ail costs charges, fees and expenses incurred by the Lender in enforcing the terms of the
Security (including legal expenses on a full indemnity basls or a solicitor and own client
basis, whichever is the greater) or which in the Lender's opinion are payeble, required or
desirable for ar in connection with:

i the drawing accepting or discounting of any bill of exchange at the request
of, or for the accommodation of, the Borrower andfor the Securily Providar
under the Security;

{ik) the Lender protecting ils interest under the Security including ali moneys
which the Lender or any receiver or any atlormney appoinied under any
security may have paid or may pay In the exefcise or enforcement or
aliempted exsrcise or enforcement of any right power or remedy conferred
on the Lender by the Security;

(i} the preparation, execution, stamping or regisiration of the Security;

{iv} fult or partial release or discharge from, transfer or variation of the Security;

V) any advice in respect of the Security;

(vi) any breach of or default of any covenant conteined or implied in the Security;
or

{vi}  the Lender making good any defaulf by any party (other than a default by the
Lender) under the Security,

(vili}  any rights which the Lender may have under any law,

AND SHALL where the context so admits mean and inciude any part of the Money

Secured.
{mm} *month” means a calendar month.
{nn) "Mortgagor" means any and every parly 10 any Security, other than the Lender.
{oa} "person” includas a company ar other incorporated body.
{pp} “Plan of Sub-divislon” means a plan of subdivision subdividing the land that is acceptable
to the Lender in its sole and absolute discretion.
{(qg) “Principal Security” means the properiy referred to in Item 10.
{re) “Burpnse” means the funding fo assist with the acquisition of the Land, including to pay the

deposit {or an amount not exceeding %80,000) in respect of he SPA, the payment of
Developmert Management Fees and fo fund costs end outlays that are associated with
oblaining a DA.

property/ 7H4973 1
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{ss)
{t)

(uu)

"Receiver’ means and includes receiver or recelver and manager.

“Sector Plan” means that has been approved by the Moreton Bay Regional Councli in
accordance with the Mango Hill Infrastructure Development Contral Pan.

"Security”" means each and every document, agreement or ather security provided from
time to time which secures or provides for the payment of the Money Secured or the
performance of obligations of the Security Provider in favour of the Lender, which may be
executed.orprovided by the Security.Rrovider.or-eny-other-parsen-fincluding this-Agreemernt—-—-

{(vvy

{ww)

{x

those documents described in ftem 9 and any additionsl security provided in accordance
with clause £.1(c)) and the Principai Securily.

“Security Provider” means each and every parly to or provider of the Security including the
Barrower, the Mortgagor and the Guarantor, but not including the Lender;

"SPA" means the sale and purchase agreement between the Borrower {as buyer) and
Stockiand Morth Lakes Pty Lid ACN 068 244 762 {as selier} in respect of the Land.

"Valuer" mneans such person (having the appropriate qualifications, accreditation and
experience relating fo properiies similar o the Principal Security) appointed by the Lender as
its valuer for ihe purposes of this Agreement.

1.2 Interpretation

In this Agreement unlass the context requires otherwiss:

(2}
(b}
()
(c)

(e)

(i}

words importing:
the singular inciude the pliral and vice versa; and
one gender shall inciude all other genders.

references 1o parsons or individuals shall include corporations and parinerships and vice
versa;

references fo clauses are references fo clauses of this Agreement and references fo
sub-clauses are references fo sub-clauses of this Agreement;

references fo this Agreement and any deed, agreement or insirument shall be deemed to
include references to this Agrmement or such other deed agresment or instrument as
amended, novated, supplemented, varled or replaced from time to firne;

references to any party fo this Agreement shall Include its successors or permitled assigns;
references to an ltem shall mean an item In the Schedule hereto;

where there are two ot more persons in a party each are bound jointly and severally;
reference to any legisiation or to any secfion or provision thersof shall include any stalutory
maodification or re-enactment thereof or any stalutory provision substituted therefor and
ordinances by-laws regulations and other statulory instruments issued thereunder; and

{ime shall be of the essence.

1.3 Business Days

If any act to be done hereunder or any payment {o be made by any party under this Agreement shafl be
dus to be done or paid on & day which is not a Business Day, the time and day for such act or payment
shall be by 2.00 p.m. local time in the place where the act is fo be done or the payment made on the
Business Day immediataly following such day.

property/754973 1
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1.4 Headings

Headings are for corvenience of reference only and shall not affect the Interpretation of this Agreement,
1.5 Payments

Any paymenis required to be made by the Borrower to the Lender shall at the Lender's discretion be
deemed not lo have been made unti the moneys are actually received by the Lender as cleared funds,

2 ADVANCE

21 Lender's discration

The Lender may, in its sole discretion on the terms and conditions setf out in this Agreement.

{a} lend and advance to the Borrower the Loan Amount for the Purposei—-ﬂr'

{b} permit the Borrower o draw down the Loan Amount by two or more draw downs which total
the Loan Amount, for the Purpose on such terms and conditions as the Lender may
otherwise advise.

2.2 Conditions Precedent {o all agdvances

Prior o electing whether or not fo exercise its discretion under clause 2.1 to advance the Loan Amount
or any part of i, the Borrower must first deliver to the Lender, in & form and in substance safisfactory to

the Lender:

{2} where the Borrower or the Securily Provider is a corparation, a cerlified copy of the following:
(b} the certificate of registration or incarporation;

{c) an extract of the minutes of a meeting of the board of directors which evidences the

resolutions autherising the signing and delivery of an observance of obligations under the
Security to which 1 is a parly, and the appointment of an authorised representative and
such other resolutions as may be required by the Lender;

{d) each instrument which evidences any oiher necessary corporate or other action in
connection with the Security;

{e} where the Borrower or the Security Provider is a trustee of any trust, a certified copy of the
following:

i} the instrumants creating or varying such Trust;

() an extract of the minutes of a mesting of the trustee which evidences the resolutions

authorising the signing and delivery of an ohservance of obligations under the Security to
which it is & parly, and the appointment of an authorised representative of the Trust and
such other resolutions as may be reguired by the Lender; and

{n) each instrument which evidences any other necessary corporate or other aciion in
gonnection with the Security;

{i} a certified copy of each authorisation necessary to enter into, observe obligations under and
enforee the Security {ncluding without limitation, the approval frem the Foreign Inveslment
Review Board {if necessaryi):

§)] a certified copy of each Power of Afforney under which a person signs and delivers the
Security for the Borrower or the Security Provider and if requirsd by the Lender, evidence of
its stamping and registration and a declaration of non revocation of such Power of Attorney;

(k) a certified copy of any licences, leases or lenancy agreements effecting the Security;

property/754873_1
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0

{m)

{n)

(0}

{0}
{q)
{r

(s)
U

7

a certificate of currency of a policy {or policies) of insurance for the full Insurable value of all
lots, buildings and improvements and covering such other risks (including public Bability
insurance cover for an amount of not less than $20,000,000.00, or such other amount as
the Lender may require, for each and every event or claim) and such other insurances as
may be required by the Lender in respect of the Security for such amount or amounts as
the Lender may determine from fime to fime, noling the interests of the Lender as first
mortgages:

strata insurance for the full replacement cost of buildings, common praperty and
machinery; o _ o S :

key man life insurance on the fives of each Borrower, Mortgagor, Guarantor and/or other
persons as my be regquired by the RE.

The Borrower andfor the Securily Provider shall defiver the original policy of insurance or
alternatively a certificate of currency of such insurance with the Lender's and RE's interests
noted thereon together with receipted proof of payment of the premium for such insurance
cover;

a fully completed and executed Direct Deblt Request to enable operation of the DDR System
in favour of the Lender or as olherwise directed by the Lender,

a valuation un lerms satisfactory to the Lender in respect of the Principal Security;

this Agreement and each and every Security duly signed and delivered by the Borrower
andfor the Security Provider and such other person as may be required to perfect the
Seourlty and, if required by the Lender, evidence of its stamping and registration.

such financial information for each Securily Provider and Guarantor as  the Lender
determines, to enable the Lender to determineg the financial stalus of those parties; and.
such other information as the Lender determines.

23 Conditions Precedent to first advance

{a)
(b}

(b}

(c)

{d}
(f)

(@

The first advance of the Loan Amount {or any part} is further conditional upon:

the first advance not exceeding $80,000 or such higher amount as the Lender may approve
in #ts absolute discretion;

the bender having obfalned safisfactory resuls from ali searches and inguiries as #
considers appropriate made in respect of the credit worthiness of the Borrower and the
Security Provider;

the Lendear being satisfied in its sole discretion with the terms and conditions of the SPA;

the Lender's legal advisers having oblained satisfactory resulls from all searches and
inquiries made in respect of the real andfor personal property comprising the Security; and
the Lender's legal advisers ¢erlifying to the Lender in terms satisfactory to the Lender that
it ig in order for the Loan Amount {o be advanced; and

the Lender having inspected the Principal Security and safisfying itself in relation fo
location, Jocal market, isnancles, state of repair and presentation and such other issues
as the Lender considers relevart,

24 Corditions precedent where an advance is to be used for Development Management Fees, the
Lender:-

(&)

()

property/754873 1

being satisfied in ils sole and sbsolule discretion that the Development
Management Fee is payable under the Development Management Agreemant; and

is provided with a Tax involice from the Development Manager addressed to the
Barrower in 2 Torm and content satisfactory to the Lender;
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25 Conditions precedent where an advanoe is to be used io complete the SPA, the Lender:

{a)

{b)

(e

recaiving in form and substance satisfactory ta it a mortgage over the Land and such
other security as the Lender may require in its absolute discretion; and

being salisfied in its sole discretion with its due difigence enquiries in respect of the
Land including searches, the feasibiiity, and such other matters as the Lender may in s
absclute discretion requirs;

being satisfied that the Registrar within the meaning of the Land Sales Act 1984, has

{e)
{H)

granied to the Borrower an exception from compliance with Sections 8,9, 10 and 10A of
that Act;

Is satisfied that the Moreton Bay Council has approved amandments to the Sector Plan
to enable apariments (ninety three {93) dwelling units/hectare) and shop 300m2 GFA or
such other number and dimensions as approved by the Lender in writing-on terms
satisfactory lo the Lendsr;

being provided with & capy of the DA in a form which is satisfaclory to the Lender;

being provided with proof that the Plan of Sub-division has been registered with the
Department of Environment and Resource Management,

28 Where an advence is 10 be used to fund ¢osts associated with obiaining a DA, the Lender being provided
with documentary evidence in support of the claim for the advanege which is satisfactory to the Lender.

3. LM MAY FUND

Without prej

udice to the rights of LM otherwise, the Borrower and each Security Provider

acknowledge and agree;

{a) that all or part of the Loan Amount advanced by the Lender to the Borrower may be
funded by moneay advanced or atherwise provided to the Lender by LM;

() that LM itself may have raised that monay or part of it by way of loan;

{c) that a faifure by the Borrower to repay the loar amount in accordance with this
Agresment, or the Securily or otherwise fo comply with the terms of this Agreement, or
the Security may cause loss and demage to LM whether by increasing the barrowing
costs ta LM, by making necessary for [t to refinance any such borrowing, by giving rise fo
a liability or otherwise; and

{d) that the Borrower and each Security Provider will be liable to LM and shall keep LM
indemnified for any and all costs, expenses, loss, damage or liabllity whatsoever suffered

dir

ectly or indirectly by LM by reason of any breach of this Agreement or the Security by

the Borrower.

4, REPAYMENT

4.1 The Borrowar

will pay to the Lender the total amount outstanding of the Money Secured on the date

stipulated in ltem 5 or such other day as the Lender may advise the Borrower in writing.

4.2 Inferest under

this Agresment shall be calculated on the Money Secured o ort so much thereof as

remains outstanding and upon any judgment or ordar In which the liability of the Botrower under this
Agresmertt may become merged at the Higher Rate in accordance with the provisions of this clause.
Such interest shall be:
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(a) computed from the day on which the Lender makes the first advance on account of the Money
Secured;

{b calculated and charged on the daily cutstanding balances to the Borrower's account with the
first such payment of inferest being payable on the date set out in ltem & on account of the
Money Secured with subsequent payments being due and payable on the days referred fo in
ltem B whilst the Money Secured or part thereof remains oulstanding;

() provided no Event of Default is outstanding, interest may be, at the discretion of the Lender,
papitalised and the amount capitalised added fo the Loan Amount provided that neither the

T AU HOE N FACIIY D SECUMY Reho Bre exceeted;) and

{d} in the event of default in payment such interest shall be added o the Money Secured and
thereafter such capitalised Intersst shall besr intersst at the Higher Rate determined in
accordance with this clause.

43 Provided that:

=) the Borrowsr shall on every day on which interest is payahle under this Agreement pay lo the
Lender interast on the Money Secured or so much thereof as shall from time fo time remain
unpaid under 1his Agreement at the Lower Rate; and

) all the terms, covenants and conditions contained in and implied by any Security are duly
observed and performed;

{c} in the event of defaulf In payment such interest shall be added o the Money Secured and
thereafier such capitalised Interest shall bear interest at the Higher Rate delermined in
acrordance with this clause.

then the Lender shall accept payment of the interest calculated and chargad at the Lower Rate for every
such instalment of interest payable under this Agreement.

then the Lender shali accept payment of the interest calculated and charged at the Lower Rate for
every stch Instalment of interest payable under this Agreement.

44 During the term the Lender will contuct reviews of the Interest rate (the first review to be conducted
on the twelve month annivarsary of the date of this deed and other reviews regularly thereafter).
Following reviews occurring, the Lender may on 30 days written notice o the Borrower, elect to vary
the inferest rate.

45 If the Lender shall at any fime obtain judgment for all or any of the Money Secured such judgment
shall until satisfied bear interest at {he Higher Rale.

4.8 The Borrower shall repay to the Laender the inferest Instalments in such amount specified in lem &
(being inclusive of the fees referred fo in clause 4.8 hereof). Such payments shali unless the Lender
agrees to capitalise interest, be made through the DDR System or as otherwise stipulated by the Lender
from time to time by notice in writing to the Borrewer.

4% The Borrower shall establish and maintain for so fong as there exists any outstanding Meney Secured
a DDR Authority and execute and deliver to the Lender such documentation as the Lender
reasonably requires from time to time authorising payment under the DOR System to such bark and
bank account as nominated by the Lender from time to time.

48 The Borrower may al any time on giving to the Lender one month’s written notice, repay the whole or
any part of the Money Secured outstanding at the expiry of such notice provided that the Borrower's
fight to make such repayment, shall be conditional upon payment by the Borrower to the Lender of
the following amount{s} in addition to any other moneys payable under this Agreement & sum
eguivalent i

fa) one month's interest on the amount repaid then outstanding calculated at the Lower Rate of
interest; and
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{b) if such notice shall expire within 3 months from the date on which the Loan Amount (or part
thereof) is advanced under this Agresment, 3 months interest on the amount repald
calculated at the Higher Rate of interest less any interest paid in accordance with clause 4.8,

provided always that if an Event of Default is subsisting at the fime of repayment then the Lender (in
addition fo all othar amounis which it would be entitied to recover) will be entitied to receive paymeant
of an additional amount equivalent to one months Interest on the amount proposed to be repaid
cafculated at the Higher Rate.

4.4 The Borrower agrees with the Lender that it may not be permitted to voluntarily make greater

repayments, TTStalfTeRts ToF Turiher payments save as expressly permitted or required by this
Agreement but subject always to clause 4.8.

410  The Borrower agrees with the Lender that;

{a) ik is a fundamental basis of this Agreement, without which the Lender would not have
advanced to the Borrower the Loan Amount, that no Event of Defautt is to accur;

{b} in the event that an Event of Default does occur the Lender will suffer significart Joss  and
damages in that:

{i) an Event of Default will cause the Lender to suffer loss and damages by reason of
any reduction in the confidence of investors in the return to be derived from the Trust;

{ii) an Event of Default will cause the Lender fo suffer loss and damages by reason of
any reduction in the investments made in the Trust as a consequence thereof;

(iii) an Event of Default will cause the Lender to suffer loss and damages by reason of
any perceived change in the risk profile of the Trust within the financial markets and
amongst persons responsible for advising investors regarding the investment of
funds;

{iv)  an Event of Default will cause the Lender to suffer foss and damages bath under this
Agreement and by reference to the return to be derived from the pool of funds and
chooses in gction held by the Trust;

{v) an Event of Default will cause the Lender to suffer loss and damages by reasoen of
any inability on the part of the Lender to re-advance monles which are received by
the Lender from the Borrower earfier than the dates for repayment provided for by
this Agreement.

4.11  Inithe event of an Event of Dafaulf the Borrower shall pay and the Lander shail be entitled to an amount by
way of liquidated damages.

412  The liquidated damages referred o in clause 4.11 are difficult to estimate but that ap amount equaf to
five percent (5%) of the Money Secured (the “Liquidated Darnages”) is agreed to be @ genuine pre-
estimate of the loss and damages which will be suffered by the Lender,
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&, SECURITY

5.1 The cbligations of the Lender under this Agresment are subject to and conditiona!l upon the Borrower

and/or the Security Provider;

{a) providing the Security specified in lem 8 in such form and containing such provisions as are
satlsfactory to the Lendsr;

{b} maintaining the Security for so long as any Money Secured is outstanding; and

{c) as and when required by the Lender, causing to be enterad inte and executed in favour of

the Lender, any such securities, instruments, desds andfor agreements in writing as the
Lender shall require and may immediately affer the execution of such addiflonal sscurity
deliver 1o the Lender such documents together with alt such other instruments and do or
cause to be done such further acts or things as may be necessary for the additional security
to be duly registered in such registry or registries as the Lender shall require. The document
or docurments referred to herein shall be prepared by the solicitors for $he Lender and shall
contain all such covenants terms conditlons and provisos as the Lender may require.

8.2 The Borrower ackrnowledges that the Security is charged with payment of the Money Secured.

53 Alf of the covenants conditions terms stipulations and provisos contained in the Security to be
observed performed and fulfilled by the Borrawer and / or the Security Provider and all the
righls powers and remadies conferred upon the Lender under the Security shall with

necessary changes be read into and form part of this Agreement in the same manner as if
the same wers fully set forth herein and vice versa.
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If at any fime the Lender determines that the Facility to Security Ratio has been exceeded then the
Lender may by notice in writing to the Borrower require the Bortower, within seven days of the

4] to reduce the Money Secured by paying to the Lender such amount as the Lender

) to provide further or additional security to the Lender's satisfaction {"the further security”)

{ity  for the purpose of determining the valua of the Principal Security, the Borrower will
permit the Lender or any person authorised by the Lender {incduding specifically the
Valuer), to enter upon any properly the subject of the Principal Security at all
reasonable times or upon two day's notice fo inspect the state and condition of the

(1  the Lender shall be entitled to revaiue the property, the sublect of the Principal Security,
annually at the expense of the Borrowar during the ferm of the facility.

pending compliance by the Borrower with the terms of any notice pursuant fo clause 5.4(a), the
Lender shall not be required to make any further advances to the Borrawer, In the event that the

(i)  the Borrower shall have committed an Event of Default under this Agreement; and

{i}  the Lenter shall be entitted to exercise the discretions, powers, rights and remedies

The Borrower and the Lender may by mutual agreement from lime to time vary the Security for this
facility by releasing all or any of the Security in whole or In part and the Isking of such further Security
or the variation of any of fhe terms and conditions of this Agreement as may be agreed upon by the

This Agreement shall be a continuing and runhing security noiwithstanding any setfiement of
accuunt or any other matter or thing whatsosver and shall remain in full force and sffect until the
Lender shall be under no further ahligation whatsoever to advancs moneys under the Sesurity and
all moneys payable by the Borrower andfor the Securily Provider under the Security have been paid

54 (&)
date of service of such notice elther {at the optien of the Lender):
determines is required to restore the Facifity to Security Ratio; or
of such & value as would restore the Facility to Sacurity Ratio,
{b) the Borrower covenants and agrees with the Lender ihat:
praperty for the purpose of valuing or revalulng the same; and
{c)
Borrower does not fully comply with the terms of any such notice then;
cenferred on the Lender by this Agreement andfor the Securily.
&5
parties.
8. CONTINUING SECURITY
6.1
or recovered in full and the Lender has executed a full release hereof,
7. EVENTS OF DEFAULT
71

The Borrower shall ai the option of the Lender be immediately in default without the necessity for aty
notice ar demand upon the occurrence of any of the following events of default:

{2 the Borrower andfor the Securlly Provider falls or neglects o pay o the due date for
payment any part of the Money Secured |, or any interest or other moneys payable at the
tirme and in the manner provided by this Agreement or under any Security; or

{b} the Borrower and/or the Security Provider falls or negledts 1o ahserve or perform any of
the covenants conditions or agreements contained in this Agreement or any Security; or

{c) where the Borrower andfor the Security Provider is an individual, any Betrower and/or the
Security Provider:

(N becomaes of unsound mind or a person who Is liable to be deall with in any way
under the law relafing to menial health;

()  commits an act of bankruptey or assigns hisfher estate for the bensfit of craditors;
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{iy s presented with a petition for bankruptey or sequestration of hisfher respective
eslates;

(v; convenes a meeting, of proposes, to enter into any arrangement or composition
for the benefit of histher creditors;

{v} has a trustes in bankruptey appointed aver any of his/her property;

{iy dies or becomes incapable of managing hisfher own affairs; or

VIl Batomes Dankiupt of enters into & corﬁpositicn, assignmeﬁt or arrangement with
creditors; or

{8 where the Borrower and/or the Security Provider is a company:

(il an adminisfrator, controller, liquidator, provisional liquidator or an inspector of that
company is appoinied;

{) i an application or petition is presented (and is not withdrawn, struck out or
dismissed within seven (7) days of It being fled) or any order shall be made or any
effective resolufion shall be passed for the winding up or dissolution of that
COMmpany;

(i  an application shall be made to the Court under Section 411 of the Corporations
Act 2001;

{ivi any arangement or compromise shall be approved under Part 5.4 of fhe
Corporations Act 2001;

(v}  enevent described In section 481 of the Corporations Act 2001 cecurs; or

(Vi)  that company applies for, resolves to or is deregistered or struck off; or

=t & receiver and/or manager of any of the reat or personal property of the Borrowsr and/or
the Security Provider shall be appuinted; or

() any judgment which is obtalned against the Borrower andfor the Security Provider is
ouistanding for more than fourteen days; or

(o) any execution or distress Is enforced or levied against any of the real or parsonal property
of the Borrower andfor the Security Provider; or

{h} the Barrower andfor the Security Provider ceases 1o carry on business or a substantial

vart of its business; or

(i} the Borrower ang/or the Security Provider is unable to pay its debts {including any wages
and faxes In respect of lls employess, group fax, superannuation levies and other faxes
and charges) as and when they fall due for payment or hecomes insalvent; or

i the Borrower andfor the Securlty Provider in the reasonabile opinion of the Lender suffers
anything whereby the property of the Borrower andior the Security Provider either real or
personal may deteriorate or diminish or may become deierioraied or diminished whether
wholly or partly In titte estate value or quantity; or

{k) the Borrowsr andfor the Security Provider shall morigage, pledge, charge or otherwise
encumber or sell or dispose of, or atternpt or condract to self or dispose of any of its land
of property or assets without the previous consant in writing of the Lender,; or

i the Borrower andfor the Security Provider erecls, causes or permits o be erected any

building or other structure upon any fand mortgaged in favour of the Lender and forming
part of any Security witheut first obtaining the written consent of the Lender: or
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default is made under any agreements other than the Security which are given by the
Borrower andfor the Security Provider in their parsonal capacity or in their capacity as a
trustee, or a partner of any partnership with or without any other person in favour of the
Lender; or

in the case of the Borrower andfor the Security Provider being an incorporated body other
than a company subject to the Caorporations Act an administrator is appointed in respect
of the Borrower andfor the Sacurity Provider or any of the properiy of the Borrower andfor
the Security Provider or proceedings or other steps are taken by the Borrower andfor the

Security Provider or any other person far the winding up or dissolution or suspension of

““““““““ e e e RO PrOWET End A thie SECOTiY Provider VoG Srangemients With crediors of the

G}

()

{ar

{r}

{s)

®
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Borrower and/or the Security Provider; or

if the Borrower andfor the Security Provider breaches any undertaking at any time given
to the Lender or its legal advisers or if any condition imposed by the Lender in agreeing to
any matter {including any waiver} is not complied with or fulflled or If any warranty or
representation by the Borrower andfor the Security Provider to the Lender prior to or
subsequant te the date hereof is untrue or false; or

if & change oceurs in a circumstance which is warranted or {aken {o be warranted under
this Agreement to exist in the business assets or financial condition of the Borrower

andfor the Security Provider as the case may be which, in the reasonable opinion of the

Lender, may have a material adverse effect on the abilily of the Borrower and/or the
Security Provider to observe or perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or

any Securlty or on the rights of the Lender under any Security; or

it any other event cccurs or circumstances arise which, in the reasonable opinion of the
Lender, is likely to materially or adversely affect the ability of the Borrower andfor ths
Securlty Provider to observe and perform afl or any of its obligations under this

Agresment or otherwise to comply with the terms of this Agreement or any Security; or

if the Borrower and/or the Sscurity Provider is a trustes, whether or not the fact is notified
to the Lender, the Borrower caases for any reasomr without the prior written consent of the
Lender to be the sole frustee of any trust of which # is trustee ar without the prior wrliten
consent of the Lender pays distributes or applies or advances any capital of such a trust
of lends any amounis to any beneficiary of the trust fund of such trust or purchase units
from any unit holder of such trust fund or breaches any terms of the trust deed of such

trust; or

any other person liable for the payment of any part of the Money Secured o the Lender

shall do or suffer any of the above; or
any Security becomes enforceable or is enforced; or

the Berrower andfor any Securlty Provider enters inta or resolves fo enfer into a schame,

arrangement or compaosition with, or assignment for the bensfit of its creditors gensrally

or any class of its creditors; or

if at any time all or any material part of any provision of any Secwily is delermined or
ceases fo have effect otherwise than as permitted by the Securities or is, or betomes
void, voidable, Hlegal, invalid or unenforceable or of limited force and effect or the
performance of any such provision becomes itegal or any Security Provider alleges or

claims that any of the matiers contained in this clause have occurred; or

Any indebtedness of the Borrower or any Security Provider whether owing fo the Lender
or any other persen becomes due and payabie or capable of baing declared due and
payable prior to iis stated maturity or the Borrower or any Securily Provider fails for
whatever reason to pay any indebtedness when due or within any applicable grace period
of any mortgage, pledge, ien, charge, encumbrance or any security, preferential or trust
interest or arrangement of any kind granted by the Borrowsr or any Seourity Provider is

enforced or becomes capabla of being enforced;
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) if at any time the obligations secured by the Securities do not rank ahead of all other
obligations of the Borrower and ihe Security Providers {other than which under statute
have priority on a winding up, Higuidation, dissolufion or similar process}; or

{v) if any breach, default, amendment, fermination, extenslon, surrender or alteration of any
kind ccours in relation to any lease or tenancy agreement refating to the Property;

{z) there is a change in confrol, shareholding or the directors of the Barrower or any Security
Provider without the prior written consent of the Lender; or

{aa) the: Borrower without the prior written consent of the Lender grants any options, sells,
agreas fo sell, transfers, assigns, parts with possession, leases, agrees {o lease, licences
or assigns, supplements, varies, {erminates, cancels or surrenders any interest it has in
the Property, or

{hb)the Barrower defaults in the performance of an obligation under the SPA ar the Borrower or the
sefter under the SPA gives notice or is entifled to give notice terminating the 8PA

{ce) The Borrower fails fo provide the Lender with documentary proof on terms and
conditions which are safisfactory to the Lender that the Barrower has obtained an

unconditional offer from an independent Brancier to fund the construction of units on the
Land,

AND a determination by the Lender that any of these events has occurred shall be final and binding
on tha Borrower. The Borrower shall promptly inform: the Lender in writing upon the happening of
any of the events described in this clause.

8. RIGHTS UPGN DEFAULT

81 At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default the Lender may in the manner and at the fimes
the Lender in ils absolute discretion desms appropriate but without any obligation o do so;

{a) demand and require immediate repayment of the whale of the Money Secured and recaver
same from the Borrower andfor the Security Provider nolwithstanding that the date for
repayment thereof had not arrived;

{b} exercise any powsrs rights or privileges conferred by law, this Agreement, the Security andfor
any other collateral document or securities;

{c} perform any one or more of the Borrowsr's obligations under {his Agreemant or the Security
Provider's obligations under the Seourity; and/or

(d} apply any moneys received by the Lender in exercising its rights under this Agreement or for
any other reason in and towards full or partisl payment of any outstanding Money Secured.

The Lender may exercise is rights under this clause notwithstanding any omission neglect delay or
waiver of the right {0 exercise such option and without fiability for loss.

82 Any resfriction or reguirements for natice andior the effluxion of time relating to the exercise of the
Lender's rights and default which Is stipulated or required by any statute is hereby negalived in so far as
is lawiul.

9. COSTS AND EXPENSES

a.1 The Borrowsr wili upon the Lender's demand pay o the Lender or as directed by the Lender all costs
expenses, damages, liguidated damages, compensation and other amounts of the nature whatsoever

payable incurred, suffered or paid by the Lender in respect of this Agreement andior the Security
including without limitatior:

{a)  The Lender's andfor RE's non-refundable up frong fees and cutlays incidental to the
providing of this loan facility;
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{B) legal costs on a full indemnity basis or on & sclicitor and own client basis, whichaver is the
greater;

{c}~  ocosts resulting from or on account of any default by the Borrower andfor the Security
Provider or any Event of Default;

[{s}] the cost of oblaining any advice reasonably required by the Lender from time to fime;

{2) the costs of the Lender registering or causing to be registered any Security {or a copy
thereof) vath such government.hody orreglstrar-asthe Londerrensonabiy requires: s

H the Lender's costs, fees and expenses charged as a result of any failure by the Borrower or
the Security Provider to comply with the terms of the Security,

(g} any other fees that the RE may impose from time to Bme in its normal course of businass;

{h) costs resulting from the exercise or purported or attempied exerclse or of any of the
Lender’s rights or powers under this Agreement andfor the Security; and

) any stamp dufy loan duty or other duty or financial impost inchiding duties and taxes on
raceipts or payments and any fines or penalties arising directly or indirectly,

in respect of the Security or any fransaction contemplated therehy.

9.2 The Borrower will pay to the Lender upon demand ak other fees, charges, costs and expensas {(whether
novel or not) charged or chargeable by the Lender according to its usual praclice from time to time in
respect of its financial products and administration of its loan portfolios and as advised from time to tims by
tha Lender (o the Borrower,

83 i

{a)  the Borrower defaulls in effecting or keeping up any insurance policy required under this
Agreement or a Securily; or

{b} any insurance policy required under this Agreement or a Security becomes void or voldable
due to any cause, then

the Lender may, but without any obligation so fo do and without prejudice to the Lender's other rights
and remedies under this Agreement or a Security, effect and keep up that insurance policy at the cost of
the Borrower which must on demand repay to the Lender all premiums and other money paid or
payable by the Lender in respect of that policy, Any amount demandad by t he Lender under this clause
but which remaing unpaid for ten {10) business days from the dale of demand may at the discretion of
the Lender be capitalised to the Loan Amount and accrue interest in accordance with this Agreement.

10. BORROWER'S COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

10.1  The Borrawer will pay all moneys payable and cbserve and perform fuifil and keep all the covenants
condifions agreements stipulations and condiffons to b observed performed fulfifed and kept by the
Borrower under this Agreement and each Security,

102 The Borrower shall, at the requost at any time and from time to ime by the Lender but at the cost of the
Barrawer, defiver to the Lender a certified copy of & valuation in a form accepiable to the Lender
prepared by the Valuer and addressed in favour of the Lender as to the value of any land or property
subject to any Securify or any part thereof as specified by the Lender as ai the date of such valuation.

10.3  The Borrower shall permi the Lender during reasenable hours and at any time and from fime o time
upon the ghving of reasonable notice by the Lender to the Burrower {having regard fo the notlce
provisions in the Lease) to enter upon the Property and/or to enter upon any land on which is located
any property the subject of any Sacurity o:

{a) inspect the conditton of the land andfor he property;

property/754873_1

432



0.4

17

{b determine whether the terms of the Security are being compliad with,

{c) inspect and take coples of records relating 1o the Borrower andlor any Security Provider or any
property or business the subject of any Security; and

(@) exerclse any other rights conferred on the Lender by the common law, squity, this Agreement,
the Security or any statufe,

The Lender is authorised to debi the account{s) of the Borrower with all or parl of the Money Secured.

WL

10.6

11.

12,

2.1

12.2

13.

THe BoiTowsr iataby WARRARTS AND REPRESENTS o the Ténder as Tollows-

{a} it has power to enter into and chserve its obligations under this Agreement and each and svery
Securlty to which it is a party;

{b) it has in fult force and effect all the authorisations necessary to enter info this Agreement and
sach and every Securlfy fo which it is a party, cbserve its obligations under them and to aliow
them to be enforced;

(c} its obligations under this Agreement and each and every Security to which it is & party are valid
and binding and are enforceable against it in accordance with their terms;

{d} this Agreement and each and every Security to which | s & parly and the Fansactions under
them do not contravene its constituent documents or any law, regulations or official directive or
any of its obligations or undertakings fo which any of its assets are bound or cause a limitation
on its powers or the powers of its directors {if a corporation) fo be exceeded; and

{e) no Event of Default or event which with the giving of notice, the lapse of time ar the fulfiment of
any condition would be fikely to become an Event of Default, continues unremedied.

Each of the warranties and representations contained in Clause 10.7 shall be repeated on each day
whilst any of the Money Secured remains cutstanding with reference to the facts and circumstances
then subsisting, as i made on sach such day.

The Borowar must take out and maintain such public risk, workers' compensation, business
Interruption, key man, relevant death or total and permanent disablemeant and other kabiflty insurances
as will cover the risks of the Lender, far such amourt as the Lendar may reascnably require.

NO WAIVER

Matwithstanding any provisfon contained in this Agreement or any rule of law or equity to the confrary,
the granting of any fime or any other indulgence by the Lender to the Securily Provider In refation lo any
existing or future default under any Security or this Agreement shall not be deemead a sanction or walver
of any continuing or recurring breach nor shall the Lender's right to exercise its rights under the Security
or this Agreemenit at any subsequent time be effected or diminished by the grant of time or any other
indulgence.

NO SET-OFF

Alt payments under this Agreement shall :

{a) be paid at such place and to such person as notified in wiiting by the Lender to the Borrower,
and in the absence of such notification to the Lender af the address of the Lender specified in
this Agreement; and

[t5)] be paid free of any deduction or set-off whatsoever.

A receipt for any money paid under the Security of the Lender or by any manager, acting manager,

solicitor, clerk or any other person acting on behalf of the Lender shall be a sufficient discharge of the

obligation to pay such meoney and from seeing te the application of that money.

NOTICES AND CONSENTS
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131 In addition to any other method of service provided in any Security or the Properly Law Act (or such

equivalent legislation in the State set out in ltem 11) any notice, consent or demand given in relation to
this Agreement shall be in writing in order to be valid and shall be deemed to have been duly served if i
fsr :

{(a} delivered personally, or left al, or posied by pre-pald post to the address specified in the
Schedule hereto for the relevant party, or

(&) sent by facsimile o the facsimile number specified in the Schedule hereto for the relevant party,
or

{c) delivered personally o left at the address specified in the Schedule at the fime of delivery,
and shall be deemed {o have been served:

in the case of posting, on the nexi business day after posting, or
i the case of the facsimile on receipt of a transmission report confirming the successful fransmission.

13.2  Any notice, consent or demand given by the Lender may be given or made in writing signed by an
officer of or solicitor for the Lender and such writing may in additian to the methods of service contained
in paragraph 13.1 be delivered parsonally tc the Borrower or left at or upon the Lsuat or last known
place of abode or business of the Borrower.

13.3  The Borrower or the Lender may from Ume fo time by nofice Ih writing given in accordance with this
Agreement nominate a new address and/or facsimie number for the purposes of clause 13.1, and
such new address or facsimile notice shall apply from the date of service of such notice,

134 if the Borowaer s more than one person servics of a notice, consent or demand on any one such
person shall be deemed to be service upon all such persons Irrespective of whather that notice or
demand is or is not received by the intended recipients.

14. CERTIFICATE

141 A certificate in writing signed by an officer of or solicitar for the Lender certifving the amount payabls by
the Borrower or stating any other act, matters or thing relating to this Agreement or the Security shall in
the absence of manifest error be conclusive evidence of the maters stated therein,

15. GOVERNING EAW

161 This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accerdance with the [aws of the State referred fo in
ftem 11 (herein called "the State"}.

15.2  The Borrower irrevocably submits to and accepis generally and unconditionally the non exclusive
Jurisdiction of the Courls of the capitat city of the State and the Appeliate Courts of the State with
respsct to any legal aclion or proceedings which may be brought in any way relating to this Agreement.

186, COLLATERAL AGREEMENT

16.1  The parlies hereto agree:

{a} this Agreement is collateral to the Securifies for stamp dufy purposes:

(b} the Money Secured owing under this Agreement is secured by the Security;

{c} the Security shall be read and construed and be erforceable as if the cavenants, conditions and
provisions of this Agreement, with negessary changes, are read into and form part of the
Security; and

{d) 3 default under any of the Seourity will constitute a default of this Agresment;

and vice versa,
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16.2  To the extent that there Is an inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions
of any Security {in that there are different or conflisting obligations or requirements in relation o the
same subject matter) the provisions of this Agresment will prevail.

17. FINANCIAL RECORDS

17,1 The Borrower agrees al its own cos! to provide to the Lender on request any financlal information,
reports or records that the Lender may require at any time and from fime to time.

17.2  If the Borrower is a company, incorporated hody, partnership or trust, the Borrower shall within ninety
days from the close of each financial year while this Agreemant and any Security shall continue in forcs,
furnish the Lender with such copies of its balance sheets and profit and loss accounts as prepared by its
accountanis in accordance with the requirements of all relevant statutes and generally accepted
agcounting principles {and audited if required by the Lender at is absolute d:scretton) and any special
reports as the Lender may request from fime to time.

18, MARSHALLING

18,1  The Lender shali be under no obligation to marshal in favour of the Borrower any Security whatsoever
held by the Lender or any of the funds or assels that the Lender may be entilled 1o receive or have a
claim upon and the Lender may at its absolute discretion vary exchange renew modify release refuse to
complete or to enforce or to assign any judgments specialfies guaranfees or other securities or
instruments negeliable or olherwise held by the Lender and whether satisfied by payment or not without
affecting or discharging the liability of the Borrower hereunder.

19. TRUST

19.1 i the Borrower Is entering into this Agreement, horrowing any of the Loan Amount or is giving or
purparting to give Security over any properiy In its capacity of tnusiee of any trust {hereinafier called "the
Truet") then whether or not the Lender recsived notice of the Trust, the Borrower covenants with the
Lender as follows:

(a3} the provisions of the Security shali extend not only o the property of which the Borrower is
the beneficial owner but all properly of whatsoever nature and kind and wharesoever
situate both present and future of the Trust AND FURTHER shall extend to ali rights of
indemnity which the Borrower as frustes now or hereafter may have against the Trust and
the trust fund;

(B the Borrower has full and complete power and authority pursuant {o the Trust to enter info
the Security over the frust property an¢ the provisions of the Trust do not purport to
exclude or take away the right of indemnity of the trustee against the Trust or the trust
fund, and the Borrower will not refease such right of indemnity or commit any breach of
trust or be a parly te any other action which might prejudice such right of indemnity;

(c) anything in any deed of trust or settlement ar other document containing the terms of the

Trust the Borrower shali be and at all times remain personally liable to the Lender for the
performance of alf covenants on the part of the Borrower herein contained;

{d) the execution of these presents is and shall be deemed to be for the benefit of both the Trust
andfor one or more of the beneficiaries thareof;

{e} during the currency of this Agreement or of any Security the Borrower will not without the
consent in writing of the Lender cause permit or suffer to happen any of the following events:

{i) the removal replacement or refirement of the Borrower as sole trustee of the Trusy;

{ity any alteration to or variation of the terms of the Trust;
{iii} any advancement or distribution of capital of the Trust;
{iv} any resettiement of the trust property; or
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{v} {shauld the Trust be a unit trust) any transfer of any units of the Trust.

18.2  The Borrower further covenants with the Lender that in the event that the Borrower shall be guilty of any
breach of frust in respect of the Trust or shall cease to be the sole frustee of the Trust or otherwise
suffer removal replacement or refirement as trustee of the Trust or in the event that there should be any
breach of the covenanis contained in clause 19.1 hereof then immediately upon any such events the
Borrower will be deemed o have committed an Event of Default under this Agreement and the Money
Secured shall at the option of the Lender {notwithstanding anything herein contained) immediately
become due and payable and all the rights powers and privileges of the Lender exercisable gn defaultof ...

e BaToWer or ofherwise shall immediately become enfarceabls without the necessity for any demand
or nofice (and notwithstanding any delay or previous waiver of the provigions of this clause by the
Lander).

20, ADVANCES AND RE-ADVANCES
At any time and from fime lo time the Lender may at s absolute discretion, and at thé"'r'équest of the
Borrower advance andfor re-advance the Loan Amount or part thereof provided that in ho case shall the
meoneys s0 advanced or re-advanced exceed {he Lean Amount and the Borrower andfor Securily
Provider shall not be in breach or default under this Agreement or any Security. Prior to doing so, the
parties haereto will agree upor:
(@) the date (if any} by which the monsys so advanced or re-advanced must be repaid; and
{e)] the terma and conditions upon which the moneys are o be so advanced or re-advanced; and
{c} any fees to be paid to the Lender In consideration of it advancing or re~-advancing such moneys.

1. ASSIGNMENT

211 The Lender may assign or otherwise dispose of or deal with its rights under this Agreement and/er the
Security. The Lender may disclose to a potential assignee or any other person who is considering or
antering into contractual relations with the Lender in connection with this Agreement andfor the Securfly
all informaticn abiout the Borrawer, any related dosument and any related party to any Security and the
transactions contemplated thereby as the Lender considers appropriate.

21.2  The Borrower shall not, without the Lender's priar written consent, assign or otherwise dispose of or
atternpt to deal with: its rights this Agresment or any Security.

22, CONBUMER CREDIT LEGISLATION NOT APPLICABLE

221 Notwithstanding any provision to the confrary this Agreement shall be construed so as not ic sscure
payment of any moneys or the performance of any ohligations by any Security Provider under or in
respect of any contract or morigage to which the Consumer Credit Legislation applies.

222  The Borrower warrants to the Lender that the Loan Amount which i& {0 be provided fo the Borrower by
the Lender is to be used wholly or predominardly for business or investment purposes.

23, SEVERARILITY

231 Should any provision of this Agreement prove to be prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction then,
as to that jurisdiction, it shall be ineffective to the axtent only of such prohibition or unenforceability
without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability
of such provisions in any othar jurisdiciion.

24, POWER OF ATTORNEY

241 Appointment of Attorney
The Borrower irevocably appoints the Lender its attorney with the right:

{a) at any fime to;
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i) do everyihing which In the attorney's reasonahble opinion is necessary or expedient to
enable the exercise of any right of the Lender in refation fo this Agreement and the
Security;

{) complete this Agreement and any Security provided by the Barrower; and

(i) appoint substitites and othsrwise delegate its powers (including this power of
delegation); and

{b3 —after-any-Event-of-Befault-has-occurmed-toto-averything - that -the -Burrawerfray ewidly "
authorise an agent to do in relation to this Agreement and under any Security,

242 General

{a) Any atorney may exercise its rights notwithstanding that the exercise of the right
consiitutes a conflict of interest or duty; B

{ The Borrower will from time to time and at ait fimes ralify any exercise of a right by an
attorney,

(o) This power of atiorney is granted to secure compliance by the Borrower with iis
obligations to the Lender under this Agreement and the Security and any proprietary
interest of the Lender under any Securily;

{d) The Baorrower indemnffies and will keep indemnified any attorney against any liability,
loss, cost, expensse or damage arising from the lawful exercise of any right by the
attorney under this power of attormey; and

(&} This power of atforney is granted for valuable consideration (the recelpt of which is

hereby acknowledged), as and by way of security for the payment of the Money Secured,
tha Borrower's obligations under this Agreement and any Security and is deemad
irrevocable,

25, INDEMNITY

264  The Borrower hereby indemnifies the Lender and shall keep the Lender indsmnified from and against
any expense, loss, loss of profii, damage (including liquidated damages) or liabllity which the Lender
may suffer or incur as a conseguence of any prepayment, the occurrence of any Event of Default or
otharwise in connection with this Agreement, the Security andfor any other coilateral documents or
sacurilies.

252  Without prejudice to the generality of clause 25.1, clause 25.1 shall extend fo any loss (including loss of
profif) premium, penalty or expense which may be incurred in terminating or varying contractual
arrangements entered into by the Lender or in repaying deposits obtained or maintained as security or
in redeploying or reinvesting the moneys repaid and is in addition to any other monies payable under
clause 3.8.

263  The Borrower acknowledges that the amount of loss and loss of profit may be delermined by reference
to & pool of funds or other matters as distine! from & specific borrowing by of a specific contract of the
Lender made to fund the advance(s} under this Agreement,

254  Each indemnity In this Agreement is a continuing obligation, separate and independent from the other
obligations of the Borrower and survives termination of this Agreement. It is not necessary for the
Lender to incur expenses or make payment before enforcing a right of indemnity conferred by this
Agreement.

26, GENERAL
26.1  Nothing hereby contained shall merge extinguish, discharge, postpone, iessen or otherwise prejudicially
affect any other Security held from fime to time by the Lender or any right of remedy conferred on the

Lender, nor shali any other Security held by the Lender in any way prejudicially affect the powers and
provisions contained or Implied in this Agreement.
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26.2  This Agreement and the Security embody the entire agreement between the parties in relation to the
advance under this Agreement and supersede ali priar negotiations, agreemenis, arrangements and
understanding with respect to such advance. In particular, the Borrower and the Lender agree that this
Agreement and the Security supersede any letter of offer or loan faciiity proposal relaling to the
advance and In the event of any inconsistency belween the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
Securily and any leiter of offer or loan faciity proposal then, the terms of this Agreement and the
Security shal prevail and in the further event of any inconsistency between the terms and canditions of
this Agreement on one hand and any Security on the other then the terms of this Agreement shalt
prevail.

263  The Borrower acknowledgas that it has had an opportunity of taking independent legal and financial
advice from efther the Borrower's own legal adviser andfor accountant with respect fo this Agreement,
the Secwrity and the Borrower confirms and agrees that it does not execule this Agreement, or the
Security a5 a result of ar by reason of any promise, representation, statsment or information of any kind
or nafure given or offered 1o the Borrower by or on behalf of the Lender, the Lender's legal advisers or .
any other person, other than as expressly set out In this Agresment. ’

264 The Lender may in its absolute discrelion pay such comimission, fees or other remuneration, to any
adviser, broker, agent or other person as ihe Lender sees fit in relation fo any advance under this
Agreement and the Borrower consenis and agrees to same. The Borowsr acknowledges and agrees
that any adviser, hroker, agent or other person who infroduced the Borrower to the Lender or the
Lender's legal advisers are not and were not at any stage an agent for the Lender and do not have any
authority to bind the Lender or to vary the terms of the proposed loan facility.

26.5  If any Security Provider should provide, permit or become aware of an encumbrance of any type which
affecis the Security or the properly the subject of the Security, the Borrower shall ensure that the
Securily Provider oblains a priority agreement between the Lender and the beneficiary of such
encumbrance on lerms and conditions satisfactory io the Lender in #s absolute discretion, The
ohligation contained in this clause shall apply notwithstanding that the Lender may have netice of such
encumbrance,

27. APPLICATION OF MONEY

271 The Lender shafl have an absolute discretion (withou! the need o communicate its election to anyone)
o apply at any time any payment received by it in reduction of such part of the Money Secured as i
shall elect, Any surplus money received by the Lender shall not bear interest, and the Lender's liability
to account for the surplus monsy may be discharged in full by

(a) the Lender depositing it io the credit of an account in the name of the Borrower in any bank the
Lender thinks fit;

{b) the Lender crediting ¥ to an account in its books in the name of the person to whom it is
payable; or

{c} by the Lender paying it into court,

27.2  In applying any moneys toward satisfaction of the Money Secured, the Borrower shall be credited only
with ec much of those moneys as are actually received by the Lender and such credit is to date from the
time of such receipt, This provision shalf apply notwithstanding that in exercising any power of sale
under the Security, the Lender may have transferred any property the subject of the Security (in whole
ar in part} and taken any form of encumbrance o secure the unpaid balance of purchase money, If the
Lender takes any morigage, promissory note, bill of exchange or other secuwity in payment of or fo
secure the payment of any purchase moneys on sale of any chatiels secured by the Securily by the
Lender, no amount representative of such security shall be credited in or fowards payment of the Money
Secured until all moneys payable under or the proceeds from such security is received by the Lender in
cash.
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27.3  If the Lender receives money in cennection with this Agreement when part of the Money Secured is
contingently owing or falis within paragraph {f) of the definition of "Money Secured”, then the Lender
may depostt In any financial institution thought fit by the Lender an amount not excesding that part in an
interest-Dearing deposH account on terms which the Lender thinks fit with any person unfil that part
becomes actually payable or no longer falls within the dafinition of "Money Secured”. At that time the
Lender may retain for its own acoount the amount which is then actually payable o it. The balance is to
be paid in accordance with clause 27,1,

28. GOOD_S AND SERVICES TAX

Without fimitatlon to any other obligations under this agreement, the horrower will pay on demand the
cost of any Goods and Services Tax (GST) incurred In relation to any supply under this agreement and
the Lender may increase the amount of any payments due under the agreement 1o Include the payment
of such G8T use.

29. LM LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

281 Trustee - LM enters into this Loan Agreement and each other Security and the other pariies to this
Agreement acknowledge that they are aware that LM enters inio this Agreement,and sach other
Security, in ils capacity as the Trustee of the Fund, pursuant {o the Fund’s Constitution and the other
parties to this Agreemert are aware of the limited scope of LM's sbligations and powers under such
Furnd.

29.2  Liability Limited - A Hiability arising under or in connection with this Loan Agreement and each other
Security is Fimited to and can be enforced against LM only to the extent to which it can be satisfied aut of
the property of the Fund out of which LM is actually indemnified for the particular liability. This imitation
of LM's liabifity applies despite any other provision of this Agreement and each ather Security and
extends o afl liabilites and obligations of LM in any way connected with any representation, warranty,
conduct, omission, deed or transaction related to this Agreement,

29.3  No Right to Appoint or Prove - The parties fo this Agreement other than LM may not sue LM personally
or seek the appointment of a liguidator, administrator, receiver or similar person to LM or prove in any
tquidalion, administration or arrangement of, or affecting, LM,

29.4  Limit of Liability Not to Apply - The provisions of this clause 29 do not apply te any obligation or liability of
LM to the extent that it is not satisfied because under the Fund's Constiiution or other constituent
documents, or by cperation of law, there is a reduction in the extent of LM's indemnification out of the
assets of the Fund, as & result of LW's fraud, negligence or wilfut default,

29.5 Inconsistency with the Constitution - Any failure by LM to perform an obligation which it determines is
either inconsistent with ar beyond is powers and obligations under the Constitution will not amount fo a
breach of or a default under this Agreement. LM's determination as to whether an obligation otherwise
imposed upon it under this Agreement is inconsistent with or beyond the scope of its obligations and
powers urder the Constitution is final and binding on all pariies.

238 Future Limitations - LM is not obligad fo do or refrain from doing arything under this Agreement
{including incur any liability) unless LM's liability is limited in the manner satisfactory to LM in ifs absolute
discretion,

28.7  Agents - No atlorney, agent, receiver or receiver and manager appointed in accordance with this
Agreement .and each other Security {if any} or otherwise has authority to act on behalf of LM in a way
which exposes LM to any personat fabliity and no acl or omission of any such person will be considered
fraud, negligence or wilfuf default of LM for the purpose of clausa 29.4,
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20.8  Failure by LM -~ A faifure by LM 1o comply with, or a breach by LM of any of its obligations under this
Agreement and each other Securily (if any) will not be considered to be fraud, negligence or witful
default by LM if the relevant failure or breach:

(a) arose as a result of a breach by a person other than LM where the performance of the
action {the non-performance of which gave rise 1o such breach) is a precondition to LM
performing the said obligation; or

(o) was in accordance with a lawful court arder or direction or otherwise required by law.

29.9 Override Provision - All of the lerms, clauses and conditions of this Agresment are suhject 4 this

clause 29.
30. THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL} LIMITED LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

30.3  Custadian - the Lender enters into this Agreement and is iable under the Securlty, and the other partles
to this Agreement acknowledge that they are aware that the Lender enters Info this Agreement and is
liable under the Security, only In its capacity as custodian of the Fund pursuant to the Custody Deed and
in no other capacity and the other parties to this Agreement are aware of the limited scope of the
Lender's obligations and powers under the Custody Deed.

30.4  Liabllity Limited - A liabllity arising under or in connectian with this Agreement, and each Security is
fimited to and can be enforced against the Lender enly to the extent to which it can be satisfied out of
the property of the Fund out of which the Lender is actually indemnified for the liability. This limitation of
the Lender's liability applies despite any other pravision of this Agreement, or any other Security and
extends to all liakilities and obligations of the Lender in any way connected with any representation,
warranty, conduct, omission, deed or transaction related to this Agreement and sach other Security.

30.5 No Right fo Appoint or Prove - The parties {o this Agreement other than the Lender may not sue the
Lender personally or seek the appointment of a liquidator, adminisirator, receiver or similar person to the
Lender or prove in any liguidation, administration or arrangerent of, or affecting, the Lender,

30.6  Limit of Liability Not to Apply - The pravisions of this clause 30 do not apply to any obligation ar fiability of
the Lender to the exient that it Is nof satisfied because under the Fund's Constiiution, the Custody Dead,
or by eperation of law there Is a reduction in the extent of the Lender's indemnification out of the assets
of the Fund, as a result of the Lender's fraud, negligence or witful default.

30.7  Scope of the Custody Dead - Despite any other provision of this Agreement, if any obligation otherwise
imposed upon the Lender under this Agreement is, in the Lender's oplnion, inconsistent with, or beyond
the scopa of the Lender’'s obligations or powers under the Custody Deed, that obligation, to the extent of
that inconsistency or to the extent that it is beyond the scope of the Lender's obligations or powers under
the Custody Deed, must be performed by LM in its capacity as the Responsible Entity of the Fund.

30.8  Inconsistency with the Custody Deed - Any failure by the Lender to perform an obligation which it
determines is either inconsistent with or beyond its powers and obligations under the Custody Deed will
not amaunt 1o a breach of or a default under this Agreement. The Lender's determination as to whether
an obligation otherwise imposed upon it under this Agreement is inconsistent with or beyond the scope
of its obligations and powers under the Custody Deed is final and binding on alt Parfies.

30.9  Future Limitations - the Lender is not obliged to do or refrain from doing anything under this Agreement
(including Incur any liabllity) unless the Lender's liability is limited in the manner satisfactory to the
Lender in its absolute dizeretion.

30,10 Agents - No attorney, agen, recelver or receiver and manager appointed in accordance with this
Agreement end each other Securlty or otherwise has authorily to act on behalf of the Lender in & way

properiy/754973_1

440



25

which exposes the Lender to any personal liability and no act or omission of any such person will be
cansidered fraud, negligence or witful default of the Lender for the purpose of clause 30.4.

30.11 Failwe by the Lendsr ~ A failura by the Lender to comply with, or 2 breach by the Lender of any of its
obligations under this Agreement will not be considered to be fraud. negligence or wilful default by the
Lender if the relevant failure or breach:
{(a) arose as a result of @ breach by a person othier than the Lender where the performance of

the aclion {the nor-performance of which gave rise to such breach} is a precondition to the
Lender performing the said obligation: or -

{b} ' was in accordance with a lawful court arder or dirsction or otherwise requirad by law.
30.12  Override Provision - All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Agreement are subject to this dause
30,

3. SPECIAL COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS

Fhe special covenants and conditions (if any) contained in ltem 14 form part of this Agresment,
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28
SCHEDULE
Date of Agreement
Borrower
Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412 864

10 Clenside Sirest, Balgowlah Heights, New Scuth Wales, 2093
Facsimile No: (G2) 9986 1681

itam 3

ltem 4

ltem 5
ftem 6
ftem 7

ften 8

ftem @

Lender

The Trust Cempany (PTAL) Limited
ACN 008 412 913 C/-, Level 4, 8 Beach Road, Surters Paradise QId 4217
Facsimile No; 07 5592 2505

Loan Amount:
Six Miflion dellars {$6,000,000)

Date for Repayment: 40 calendar months from the date of the first advance of the Loan Amount.
Higher Rate; 29% per annum

Lower Rate; 25% per annum

Fayments:

Interest instaiments commencing on the 18" day of the month {or such other date as nominated by
the Lender to the Borrower in writing) immediately following the date on which the Loan Amount (or
part thereof) is first advanced under this Agreement and thereafter on the 18" day of each calendar
month in each succeeding month until the total of alf the Money Secured is repald. Pro-rata
instalments for any broken periods will be calculated by the Lender and payable by the Borrower as
directad by the Lender.

The interest payable at the time of sach monthily instalment shall be calculated on the total of moneys

advanced as at that date at the Higher rate. Should the circumsiances set out in clause 4.3 be
present then, the Lender will accept nstalments calculated on the total of moneays advanced as at
that date at the Lawer rate.

Security:

First registerad Desd of Charge intended to be execuied on or about date of this Agresment by the
Borrower as mortgagor in favour of the Lender as morlgagee over all the property, assefs and
undertaking of the Borrower of whatsoever nature and kind and wheresoever situated, present and
future.

First registered Deed of Charge executed on the same date as this Agreement by Glenside Group
(Qid) Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 093 as morfgagor in favour of the Lender as mortgagee over all the
property, assels and undertaking of Glenside Group (Qid) Py Ltd of whatsoever nature and kind and
wherescever situated, present and future.

Guarantee Indemnity by each Guarantor and supported by fixed and floating charges and land
mortgagas over &l of the assels (present and fulure) of each corporate Guarantor.,
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Lat 111 Pty Lid Security

Greensquare Property Development Corporation Pty Lid

Deed of Cross-Callateralization dated 21 October 2010 granted by the Borrower and each Guaranior
and Glenside Group Pty Ltd ACN 003 515 893In favour of LM Investment Management Limited

tem 10 Principal Security:
Fixed and Floating Charge dated on or about the date of this Agreement by the Borrower as
mortgagor securing all of its assets both present and future inchuding its interest in the SPA and any
money payable by the seller to the Borrower under or in respect of the SPA,
Real property morigage intended 1o be second registered over the property described as lot 74 on
8P 236546 contained in tile reference 50848722,

Hemi 11  Governing Law: Queensland

term 12 Guarantors:
David Richard Hawes
Glenside Group {Qid) Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 093
Lot 111 Pty Lid ACN 106 102 055
Green Square Property Development Corporation Ply Lid ACN 104 248 053

item 13  Facility to Seciriiy Ratio:

Not Applicahble.

kem 14  Special Covenants:
hot Applicakle

EXECUTED as an Agreement,
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DEED OF VARIATION OF CONTRAGT

THI§DEED is :ﬁéde the ZZWJ day of DQCMLQU‘ 201,

" BETWEEN:
| STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD ABN 89 068 244 762 of 2 Lakefield Drive,
North Lakes, Queensland 4502 :
- C‘Vandur")
AND:. o
PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD ABN 22 127 412 864 ofVSuite 202, 164A Mona Vale -
Road, St ves, New South Wales 2075 ' '
("Purchaser™)
RECITALS
A. _ The Vendor and the Purchaser are parties fo a cortract of sale dated 16 August 2010 {as varled by

way of Dead of Variation of Contract dated 2 March 2011, Deed of Variation of Contract datad 29
July 2041 and Deed of Variation of Coniract dated 4 November 2011) in refation fo the sale and
purchase of the Land {the “Contract’).

B. = The Vendor and the Purchaser have agreed fo cerlain variations to ihe Contract and have entered
into this Deed to record the variations.

The partiés agree:-

1. INTERPRETATION
1.1 Inthis Deed unless the context otherwise requires: -

“Deed" means this Deed and any Schedule;

“Land” means part of Lot 26 on SP 524073, County Stanley, Parish Redgliffe, belng
_ proposed Lot 74 as shown an the Plan of Subdivision; and

“Plan of Subdiviéion_" means the Plan of Subdivision in Annexure ¥ of the Contraﬁ.
1.2 Unless expressed to the conlrary:

‘121  words importing the singular inciude the plural and vice versa and words
tmparting any gender include the other genders;

1.22 i & word or phrase is defined, cognate words and phrases have corresponding
definitions; .

123  areference o a right includes a benefit, remedy, discretion, autivority of power
and a reference to any obligation ingludes a warranty or representation and &
reference 1o a fajlure o observe or perform an obligation includes a breach of
warraniy or representation;
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any covenant, restriction or condition on the part of fwo or mare persons shall
be desmed to bind them and their or sach of thelr heirs, executors and
administrators jointly and severally;

any term used In this Dead that is defined in the Caontract wlll have that defined
meaning. i

1.3 . Headings do not affect the Interpretation of this Deed.

2, . VARIATION OF CONTRACT

The Contract is to be va_\ried as follows:-

2.1 A new clause 80 will ba inserted, which is 1o read as foltows:-

60,

" PAYMENT OF PURGHASE PRICE, UPLIFT AMOUNT AND SECURITY -

60.1 . Daspite the provisions of clause 4 and glause 59.2, the Vendor agrees
to accept payment of the Purchase Price and the uplift amount 2s set
outin clause 59.2 by the following instalments: . ’

DATE | AMOUNT

Dats for Cdmp.'ez:‘an ] $250,000.00: phis the headworks charges as set out in

clause 35.3; pliis the heatwerks charges sel out i clause
59.3.2 plus or minus adustments caloutated in
accordance with clause 14; plus GST on the Purchase
Price .

On or befare 15 Februéui 2012 FDeferred $300,000.00 (“Deferred Payment 17
Payment 1 Datg”) :

B or bators 29 Fabruary 2012 (“Deferred | §500,000.00 {-Deferred Payment 2
Paymgnt 2 Date’) : -

On or before 30 June 2012 {‘Deferred | $1,330,000.00; plus ithe uplilt amount as sef out in
Payment 3 Daig’} i clause 5.2 (*Defarred Payment §7)

802 As security for the payments referred to In clause 60.1, the Purchaser
must on the Date for Completion provide the Vendor with the stamped
Morigage (n the form set out in Annexure 3) over the Land {as a first
registered morlgage over the Land) and the stamped Charge (in the
form sef out in Annexure 4} over the Purchaser (as a first registerad
charge over the Purchaser). . T

60.3 At least one (1) day prior to the Date for Completion, the Purchaser

must.-

60.9.1 sign and defiver to the Vendor ths Morigage which Is o be
registered on the ille to the Land as a first morigage;

60.3.2 sign and defiver to the Vendor the Charge which Is to be
reglstared over the Furchaser as a first registered charge;
and

60.3.3 provide the Vendor with any other declarations or
. documents reasonably required by the Vendor.
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60.4

60.5

60.6

60.7

60.8

60.9

At setilement, the Purchaser must provide the Vendor ar the Vendor's
soficitrs with afl documents (duly stamped where applicable and Ina
form capable of Immediate registration) necessary lo ensure:-

60.4.1 the Purchaser will be registered as the registered owner of
the Land (e.g. transfer documents); and

60.42 the registration of the Morigage fo the Vendor as a fist
registered morigage {e.g. the morigage). ’

The Vendor will then be authorised to lodge the documents referred fo
irn this clause 60.4 immediately upon settfoment. L

The Purchaser must pay (or where the Vendor agrees, provide the
Vendor with a cheque for) any duly and ragistration fees payable in
relation o the Morigage, ihe Charge and. the other documents
referred to In clause 60.4 on or before the Date for Gompletion.

The Purchaser, irrevocably authorises and directs the Vendor or the
Vendor's solicifors to complete and / or amend the Mortgage and the
Charge by insesting such other detalls and information as may be
required to duly complete and register tha Mortgage and the Chaige
provided that in each case they do niot vary the intent or effect of the
Mortgage and the Charge.

The Deforred Payment 1 must be made at the time and piace as

agreed by the parties. The time for the Deferred Payment 1 must be
between the hours of 8.00am and 5.00pm on the Delerred Payment 1.

Date. Despite any agreement by the pariies as {o a specfic time for

payment of the Deferred Payment 1 the provisions of clause 23 do not
apply.In respect of that time. In the absence of agreement as la
place, the Deferred Payment 1 must be made at the office of the
solicitors for the Vendor in Brisbane. Despite the provisions of this’
clayse 60.7, the Furchaser may on giving five (5) Business Days

- notice in writing to the Vendor pay-the Deferred Payment 1 on a dafe

earfier than the Deferred Payment 1 Dalte by making paymeént on the
data speciffed in such notlcs.

The Deferred Payment 2.must be made at the time and place as
agreed by the parties. The time for the Deferred Payment 2 must be
betwoen the hours of 9.00am and 5.00pm on the Delerred Payment 2
Date. Despite any agreement by the parties as to a specific ima for
payment of the Deferred Paymeant 2 the provisions of clause 23 do not
apply In respect of that time. In the absence of agreement as to
place, the Deferred Payment 2 must be made at the office of the
solicitors for the Vendor In Brisbane. Despite the provisions of this
clause 60.8, the Purchaser may on giving five (5} Business Days
riotice In writing 1o the Vendor pay the Deforred Payment 2 on a date
earfier than the Deferred Payment 2 Date hy making payment on the
date specified in such notice.

The Deferred Payment 3 must be made at the time and place as
agreed by the parties. The time for the Deferred Paymenit 3 must be
batween the hours of 9.00am and 5.00pm on the Deferred Faymeni 3
Date. Despite any agresment by the parlies as io a specific time for

. payment of the Deferred Payment 3 the provisions of clause 23 do not -

apply In respect of that time. In the absence of agreement as io
place, the Deferred Payment 3 must be made at the office of the
solicitors for the Vendor in Brishane. Despite the provisions of this
clause 60.9, the Purchaser may on giving five {5) Business Days
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£0.10

60.11

60,12 .

60.13

notice in writing to the Vendor pay the Deferred Payment 3 on a date
earfler than the Deferred Payment 3 Date by making payment on the
date specified in such notice.

If any of the dates for deferred payments as set out in clauses 60.7,
60.8 and 60.9 fall on a Saturday, a Sunday or a public holiday in
Brisbane then the relovant deferred payment s to be made on the
Businsss Day next foflowing the relevant deferred payment date.

Provided that the Purchaser is not In default under this Contract, the
Mortgage or the Charge, the Veridor witl (in exchange {for the Deferred
Payment (by bank cheque)) provide a release of the Morlgage and a
release of the Chargs following payment of the total of the Deferred
Payment fo the Vendor. a

For the purpose of this. clause 60, “Deferred Paymemnt” }neans the

total of the Deferred Payment 1, the Deferred Paymeni 2 and the -

Deferred Payment 3.

This clause will nat merge on seiflement.”

2.2 A new clause 81 will be insertad, which Is to read as follows:-

‘“§1, ' INTEREST

611

§1.2

61.3

81,4

In consideralion ol the Vendor agree!ﬁg to defer the paymenis
referred to In clause 80.1 untll the Deferred Payment Date 1, the
Doferred Payment Date 2 and the Deferred Payment Date &

respectively, the Purchaser will pay to the Vendor interest on any part )

of the Deferred Payment remaining unpaid calculated on daily
balances af the Interest Rate from the Date for Completion up to and
inoluding the date the total of the Deferred Payment Is paid to the
Vendor. .

Interest must be paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor monthly in
arrears on the first day of each calendar monih. The Purchaser must
make payment of the interest under this clause 61.2 to the Vendor
without set-off, -counterciaim, withholding or deduction by the metho

‘tha Vendor reasonably requires. )

This clause will not merge on seitfernent,
For the purposes of thls clause 61:-

6141 ‘“Interest Hate" means fifteen (15%) percent simple interest
per annum; and .

61.4.2 “Deferred Paymani” means the total of the Deferred
Payment 1, the Deferred Payment 2 and the Deforred
Payment 3. “ :

2.3 ftem O of the ¥em Schedule is to be varled deleting the reference to “Twalve (12%)

percent simple Interest per annum” and replacing %t with "Twenty (20%) percent simple

interest per annum”,

2.4 - Anew Annexure 3 will be Inserted, which is to be as eet out in Schedule 1 to this Daed;

and

25 A new Annexure 4 will be inserted, which is to be as set out in Schedtle 2 o this Deed.
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3. VARIATION

The Coniract is deemed to be varled from the date this Deed Is made to the extent of any
Inconsistency with this Deed but wilt otherwise remain in full force and effect. -

4.  CONFIDENTIALITY

4.1.

42

43

4.4

The Purchaser agrees that the matters set out in this Deed including the commercial
terms of this Deed, and the acrangements between the Purchaser and the Vendor and

any information felating to the negotiations telating to this Deed (Confidential -

Information) are strictly confidential.

The Purchaser must not disclose that it has entered info this Deed or the contents or
terms of this Deed or any Confidential Information. to any third party without the prior
written consent of the Vendor, ofher than:

421  to the-Purchaser's auditors, legal advisars, accountants, financlal advisors,
financlers and financiers' legal advisors, and then orly o the extent necessary
“and 6n the condition that person Is obliged to keep the Confidential Information
confidentlal; or :

482  as may be required by any applicable law or the rules ar requirements of a
’ regulatory body {inciuding a stock exchange). ’

The Purchaser must use is best endeavours and must ensure that any person over whom

it has contra!, use their bast endeavours to prevent the unauthorised -access to, use o -

disclosure of the Confidantial information.

The Purchaser may not make any public announcement or press release relating to the
negotiations of the parties or-the existence or subject matter of this Deed without the priar

writtan consent of the Vendor, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

5. COSTS AND DUTY

5.1

5.2

The Purchaser will bear alt costs in refation to the preparation, negotiation and execution
of this Deed and any documents referred fo or contempiated by this Deed. The
Purchaser must, on demand by the Vendor, pay to, or as directed by the Vendor, and
indemnlfy the Vendor against, all legal cosls, eipenses, liahilities, fees and
disbursements (including all jegal costs on a solicttar and own client basls) paid or
incurred by the Vendor of or incidental to the negetiation, preparation, exgculion’ and
stamping of this Desd and any documents referred to or contemplated by this Dead.

Al stamp duty and registraiion fees payable on this Deed and on any other instruments of
transfer, deods, agreements or other documents referred to or contemplaied by this Deed
must be pal_d by the Purchaser.

6. - TIME OF THE ESSENCE

In every circumsiance, time is of the essence of this Deed.

7. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

This Deed Is to be governed and determined in accordance with the law of the State of Queensland
and the parties must submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts of that State,
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EXECUTED as a DEED

The Vendor

EXECUTED as a DEED by STOCKLAND)

- NORTH LAKES PTY LTD ABN 99 068)

244 762 by its duly congtituted Auomce:}r)
FAOSLE Y TAwEy Anoded )

under Power of Attotney No, 72605 (34)
in the prasence of:

Witngss
The Purchaser

EXECUTED as a DEED by PEREGIAN)
BEACH PTY LTD ABN 22 127 412 864 in)
accordance with section 127 of ths)
Corporations Act 2001. i )

Attarnoy

Sole Director / Secretary
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SCHEDULE 1
“ANNEXURE 3 - MORTGAGE"
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QUEENSLAND LAND HEGISTRY

. MORTGAGE ) _ FORM 2 Versfon 4
. Land Titie Act 1994, Land Act 1994 and Water Act 2000 Duty tmprint Page 10f 13 -
Dealirigg Number . _]
[IIIII W OFFICE USE ONLY

Privacy Statement
Collection of this Information Is’ aulhunsed by the Land Titie Act {994 the

‘Land Act 1994 and the Water Act 2000 and is used fo mainia the

‘publicly searchable registers in the land regisiry and the watar reglster.
For more Information about privacy in NR&W sea the depariment's
webelte,

L.odger (Name, address, E-mall & phome numbar

1. Interest being mortgaged (u share show fraction) Lodger
: ' ‘ Shand Taylor Lawyers Code
FEE SIMPLE Level 12, 241 Adelaide Street BE196A

BRISBANE QLD 4000 _
Email: belark@shandtaylor.com.au
Ph: (07) 3307 4500

Ref: BSC: 100446

Title Reference

2, Lot on Plan Description County Parish
LOT 74 ON SP 236546 STANLEY -REDCUFFE 50848722
3. Mortgagor

PEREGIAN BEAGH PTY LTD ACN 127 412 864

Surname/Gompany niame and Number (iné!ude tenancy if more than one} -
STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD

ABN 29 068 244 762

4. Mortgagee Given namgs

5. - Description of debt or liability secured
The “principal sum” described in the attached schedule

6. 00venantlExecution The Morlgagor covenanis with the Mortgagee in tem"ts of'the attached schedule——aﬁaeheé

and charges the estate or Interest descnbed in item 1 wath the repaymentfpayment fo the Mortgagee of aI[ sums of money

referred {0 in item 5.

NOTE: Witnessmg officer mus! be aware of their ob!igattons under section 162 of lhe Land Title Act 1894.

Separate executions are required for each morigagor and mortgagee. Signatories are to provide to the witness,
ewdenca that they are the person entitied to sign the Instrument (including proof of identity).
PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD ACN 127 412 864

.............

o eeeme e stres e e ey et RRR S SRR AR Y S

Wilnessing Officer {signature, full neme & quahfmatlnn) Execution Date tortgagor's Signature
fo —— :

Witnessing Officer (signature, full name & gualification) Execution Date Merigagor's S_ignaﬂ_.lre

Witnessing Off:cer {signature, full name 3 quahflcanon) Exsecution Dale "Mongagee s or Solicltor's Signa!ure

STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD ABN 89 088
"844 762 by its duly constinted Adtorney
under Power of Attorney

No.

(Wiinessing afiicer must be In accordanee with Sehedule 1
of Land Titte Act 1994 eg Legal Practitioner, JP, G Do}

*Mote: A Salielior Is required lo print full name if signing on behalf
of the Martgagee and no witness Is required In this instance
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QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY : ' SCHEDULE Form 20 Version 2

Land Title Act 1994, Land Act 1994 . . Page 2 of 14
and Water Act 2000 o ' ‘ .

I_.

1

Title Reforence 50848722

The Morigagor and Mortgages agree aé follows:-

- 1

CONSIDERATION

1.1, This Morigage Is given in consideration of the Mortgagee at the request of the Morigagor {which -
request is testified by its execution hereof} entering into the Contract of Sale and as provided by that
Contract of Sale, ' Sl

1.2. . For consideration aforesaid the Mortgagor hereby irrevacably appoints the Morigagee and each of the
officars of the Mortgagee jointly and each of them severally the attorney of the Maortgagot for the
purpose of signing all documents and doing ali acts on behalf of and in the name of the Mortgagor
necessary to perfect the within security and immediately on or at any time after any breach or default
by the Morigagor hereunder to exercise in the name of the Morigagor all rights, powers and remedies
of the Mortgagee expressed or implied hetein or to deal with the Mortgaged Land in any way which the
Morlgages may in its dbsolute and unfettered discretion deem fit and to receive any moneys payable
to the Mortgagor in respect of the Morigaged Land whether in respect of insurance compensation or
otherwise and to do ‘all things required to be done by the Morigagor hereunder and to execute all
documenis and to do all things necessary in regard 1o any such maiters.

PRINCIPAL SUM

2.1. - Inthis Mortgage unless the bontrary intention appears the “principal sum" means all monies payable
by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee under the Contract of Sale.

2.2 The principal sum of this Mortgage shall inciude In additon to the meaning ascribed o it by ¢lause 2.1
*.above all and any costs, expenses and damages arising from afl actions, suits, proceedings, causes of
action, claims, demands and orders whatsoever for which the Morigagor may now or hereafter

become liable to the Mortgagee in relation to this Morigage. '

TITLE

The Mortgagor covenants with the Mortgagee that:

3.1, the Mortgagor has or i eniitled fo an absolute and indefeasible fitle to all and every part of ihe
Mortgaged Land subject only to the prior encumbrances notified in this mortgage and that no other
person has any Hght title estate or interest in the Marigaged Land or any part thereof as purchaser nor
is any part of the Mortgaged Land subject to any: right subsisting under any adverse possession of
such Mortgaged Land or to any easements or to any rights or claims whatscever excepting only such
easements rights or claims (if any) as are expressly contained in the Deed of Grant and/or Ceriificate
of Tille and/or Lease of the Mortgaged Land or are notified as aforesaid; -

3.2 ‘every Deed of Grant or Gertificate of Title or other document of title to the Morigaged Land (but subject
to the rights of any prior Morigagee under a prior encumbrance notified in this morigage) shall he
. delivered to and remain in the custody of the Mortgagee uniil the whole of the principal sum has been

paid to the Mortgagee;

3.3. the Mortgagor and every other person having or claiming any estate or interest in fhe Morigaged Land
or any part thereof otherwise than by viriue of a prior encumbrance notified in this mortgage will at all
times hereafter at the request of the Morigagee and uniil forgclosure or sale at the Morigagor's cost
and afterwards at the cost of the person requiring the same do all such acts and execute and deliver

_ alf such deeds documents instruments and assurances far further or more effeciually mortgaging or
assuring the Morigaged Land and every part thereof fo the Morigagee pursuant to the intent of this
mortgage as the Morigagee may require and the Morigagor zuthorises the Mortgagee or any of the
officers of the Mortpagee for and on behalf of the Mortgagor to sign or execute every such documient
deed instrument and assurance and do every such thing so as to perfect or attempf to perfect the
security intended to be hereby given and also for and on behalf of the Maortgegor to comply with all or
any requisitions of the Department of Environment and Resource Management;
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QUEENSLAND LAND FEGISTRY SCHEDULE Form 20 Version 2

Eand Tile Act 1994, Land Act 1994 . Page 3 of 14
and Water Act 2000 " . .

=

Title Reference 50848722

INSURANCE

The Mortgagor will insure and keep insured the Morigaged Land for its {ull insurable value or such amount as
may be specified by the Mortgagee from time to time against loss or damage by fire siorm tempest and any
other risk stipulated by the Morigagee and will effect public liability insurance in the name of the Morigagor {and
noting the interests of the Mortgagee) with an insurance office approved by the Morlgagee. In the event of loss
or damage the Morigagor must not (without first consulting the Morigages) enforce settle or compromise any
claim against any insurance company in respect of any insurance policy wholly or partly In respect of the
Mortgaged Land.  Any moneys received on account of such Insurance shali be applicéble towards repair or
rebuilding of the improvements.. The Mortgagor will pay all premiums on of before the due date for payment
thereof and will hand each policy evidencing such insurance and all receipts for monays paid and other usugl
evidence of insurance to the Mortgagee immediafely upon the issue thereof. The Mortgagor will not do or
permit any thing or act whersby any insurance policy at any fime relating to the Morigaged Land may become
liable to be vitlated or cancelled or the premium thereon may be Increased. -The Morigagor shall not without the
prior consent of the Morigagee effect any insurance in respect of the Mortgaged Land other than in accordance
with this clause: In fhe event that the Morigagor or any other psrson receives any moneys paid on any such
insurance (notwithstanding that such-ather insurance was effected in breach of this Morigage}, the Mortgagay

shall immediately pay to the Mortgagee any such moneys which until payment shall be held in trust for the
Mortgagee. _ ' :

COMPENSATION AND PURCHASE MONEYS

.

All moneys which may become payable as purchase money or compensation or otherwise in respect of the -

Mortgaged Land or any part thereof shall at the option of the Morigagee be applicabile In the first instance in or
towards payment of the moneys hereby secured. The Mortgages is empowered o make claim therefor and
alons to agree compromise or seftle any such claim and fo demarnd sue for recovery receive and give discharge
for all such moneys and {0 execute any necessary assurances and rejeases and al} of the foregoing fo do in the
name of the Morlgagor and the Morigagee notwithstanding anything in any stafuie under which, or under an
acquisifion pursuant to which, the moneys may be payable. The Mortgagor releases the Mortgagee from any
claim for anything done or omitted by the Mortgagee under this sub-clause and should any such moneys come
into the hands of the Mortgagor before a final discharge of this mortgage the same shall forthwith be paid to the
Mortgaaes. .

RATES, TAXES AND OTHER OUTGOINGS

" 6.1, The Mortgagor will pay punctuafly all taxes (including land tax) rates charges and other impositions

whatever which now or hereatter are or may be imposed upon the Morigaged Land or any part thereof
or on the profits thereof or upon the owner gecupier or morigagee of the Mortgaged Land in respect of
it and other land of on the profits thergodi. .

6.2. The Mortgagor will comply with all requirements of law imposed on the Mortgagor as owner andfor
occupier of the Mortgage'q Land. -

6.3. The Mortgagor will pay punctually all moneys due and payable and observe and perform all other .

covenants and obligations binding under each and svery lease morigage charge and encumbrance
now or heresfter aifeciing the Mortgaged Land. : ’ -

6.4. On demand by the Morigagee the Morlgagor will produce proof fo the reasonable satisfaction of the
Mortgagse of compliance by the Mortgagor with all covenants and cbligations herein contained or
implied {including production of receipts for ali payments that ought to have been made).

" REPAIR

The Mortgagor will whether or not the Mortgagee has taken possession of the Mortgaged Land make such
repairs as may be necessary for keeping the improvements in good and tenantable repair order and condition
and in particutar will whenever the Mortgagee considers it necessary paint in a proper and workmanlike manner
to the satistaction of the Mortgagee such parts of the improvements as are usually painted and will on baing
required by the Mortgagee to do so forthwith amend every defect in the repair and condition thereof, and wil
torthwith carry out all work that may be ardered by any competent authority in respect thereof. The Morlgagee
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and itz nominees may at all reasonable titmes be at liberty to enter upon and inspect the Morigaged Land and its
state of repair. ‘ :

FURTHER COVENANTS

8.1. The Morigagor will not without the ;Sriur consent in writing of the Mortgagee sell, agree to sell, give any
option to purchass, transfer, lease, agree io lease, part with possassion, subdivide, morigage, charge
. or atherwise further encumber the Martgaged Land. . )

8.2..  Inthe event of the Mortgaged Land being subject to the Body Corporate and Community Management
Act 1997 the Morigagor will forthwith upon receipt thereof furnish the Mortgagee with a copy of every
notice of meeting and other notice received by the Morigagor from the body corporaie and ihe
Mortgagor will not without the prior censent in writing of the Mortgagee concur in or agree fo any

dealing with the cammon property or vete in favour of any resolution of the body corporate which is ~

required to be passed by a resolution without dissent or adds to or alters the by-laws of the body
corpotate. e ) , Co

8.3. Except with the prior consent in wriiing of the Morigagee the Mortgagor will not apply for or obtain from
-the Crown or from any statutory auttiority any money or material or otherwise do or suffer to be done
anything whereby any charge or liabllity shall or might be imposed on the Morigaged Land in priarity to
or in deragation of this security. ) .

84. The Mor{gagor wilt prepare and deliver to andfor produce for the inspection of the Mortgages or the

nominee of the Mortgagee on demand at any time or times all books of account and other documents
relating to the financial position of the Mortgagor as the Morigagee may reasonably require,

COSTS AND DUTY

10.

The Mortgagor and Mortgagee will each bear thelr own costs or and incidental to the negotiation, preparation
and execution of this morigage. The Mortgagor will upon demand by the Morigagae pay all costs {including
legal costs as between selicitor and client) expensss and other amounts incurred or paid by the Morigagee in
_respect of thase arising out of in consequence of or on account of any default by the Mortgagor or the exercise
or purported or attempted exercise of any of the Morigagee's rights or powers. The Mortgagor will pay any
mortgage duty or other duty including duties and taxes on recelpts or payments arising directly or indirectly in
respect of this Morigage or any collateral security. ’ ‘

CHARGE

11.

The Mortgagor hereby charges to the Mortgagee with payment of the principal sum the Mortgaged Land and all
income derived or to be derived there from and aiso the Mortgagor’s right to recelve any moneys, damages;
compensation or otherwise which are due and payable or which become due and payable in respect of ihe
Mortgaged Land under or pursuant to the Queensiand Building Services Authority Act 1991 or otherwise, and in
respect thereof all rights, remedies, claims or powers which shall accrus to the Mortgagor. All such moneya
untit payment to the Morigagee shall be held on trust for the Morigagee.

NOXIOUS TRADES

12,

The Mortgagor shall not camy on or permit to be carried on upon the Mortgaged Land any ilegal, noxicus
noisome or offensive art, trade, business or occupation. :

INDEMNITIES

The Morigagor shalf indemnify and hold indemnified the Mortgagee from and agalnst all actions claims
demands losses interest fees damages costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever which the Mortgagee
may sustain or incur or for which the Mortgagee may become liable whether during or after the term of this
Marigage (and any such amaunt shal! form part of the principa! sum) In respect of or arising from:- '

121.  any neglect or default of the Morigagor to observe and perform any; of the terms covenanis and
conditions contained in or implied by this Morigage;
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12.2.  any loss or damage occasioned by or lizbiliy Incurred by the Morigages of the Morigagor in the
exercise non-exercise or purported exercise of any of its powers rights and privileges contained in or
implied by this Mortgage whether or not the Mortgagee acted nagligently or was guiliy of laches or
waiver; ; :

12,3,  any rates taxes charges outgoings and assessmenis {including any land or property tax) that may at
any time be payable chargeable assessed or become due upon or in respect of the Morigaged Land
and any liability to any competent authority in respect of any breach of duty or law relating 1o the
Mortgaged Land; ’ :

124, any claims by any leasee tenant 6'é'ct'1pier licensee inviteg or other parson in respect of or arising out of
their use of or presence upon the Mortgaged Land or otherwise, -

125.  any actual or assumed obligation of the Morigagee {whether solely or jointly with the Murtgagér of any
other person howsosver arising) to pay any moneys of 1o perform any act, matier or thing relafing
directly or indirectly in any way to the Mortgaged Land. S

13. STATUTES

The Morigagor will duly. ancl_ punctually comply with and observe 1hé provisions of every act ordinance or
regulation at any fime imposing any duty obligation or charge upon or in relation to the Morigaged Land. '

14. MORTGAGOR TO GIVE NOTICE

The Mortgager shall promply give nofice in writing to the Mor’tgagée upon becorlng aware of the foiluviriﬁg_:—

i4.1. any event or circumstance whereby a claim for compensaition may arise in relation o the Mortgaged
Land; : T o

J 142, any event or circumstance whereby a claim under any policy of instrance may arise in refation to the
- Mortgaged Land; ’ g -

14.3. any event or circumsiance whereby a charge upon the Mortgaged Land may arise in favour of any
stafutory authority or other person;

144.  any resumption or intended resumption of the Martgaged Land or any part thereof and the Mortgagor
; shall not lodge any claim for compensation or reduce or compromise such claim without the prior
l consent in writing of the Mortgagee; '
145.. any damage to or defects in the Mortgaged Land;
14.6. any changé in the planning scheme or any planning scheme policy affecting the Mortgaged Landi

14.7.  any defallt in the performance of any other morigage or encumbrance affecting the Mortgaged Land '
- or any security collateral thereto;

14.8.. any event or circumstance whereby the value of the Mortgaged Land is or may be adversely affected; -
- and ’ :

- 14.9.  the occurrence of any of the events descrfbed in default clause 17.

15. OTHER CHARGES

in the event of a sale by the Morigagee of the Mortgaged Land or any part thereof the same may be sold either
subject to or discharged from moneys secured by any prior mortgage and the Mortgagee may pass and setile
the agcounts of any prior Morigagee and all the accounis so passed or sefiled shall be binding on the
Mortgagor. .
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16, - PERFORM OTHER SECURITIES
The Mortgagor will carry out and observe and perform all of the ferms covenants and conditions buntalned inor
implied by each and every of the following:
16.1. -any collateral security;
18.2.  any morigage or encumbrance of the Mortgaged Land whether or riot registered and whether or nut
ranking in priority to this Mortgage;
16.3, any securities collateral o the mortgagés' or encumbrances described in clause 16.2; or
16.4. arly leasé ag(eemaht or hire purchase agraement in respect of imp!'ovements. A
17.  EVENTS CAUSING MONEYS TO BE PAYABLE ON DEMAND

17.1.

17.2.

173,

The principal sum of other monies payable to the 'Mortgagee under this Mortgage or so much thereof -

as remains unpaid (together -with interest accrued and unpeid to the date of demand) will become
immediately payable 1o and recoverable by the Morigages upon the happening of any of the folluwmg
events: - .

17.5.1. default by the Mortgagor In payment at the times and in the manner prowded in this

mortgage (or any other agreement between the Mortgagor and Mortgagee) of the
principal sum or-other moneys payable to the Mortgagee or any part thereof or of the
imerest therson or any part thereof; or.

17.1.2. default by the Mongagor in the observance or performance of any of the covenants
) abligalions or, provisions contained or implied in this morigage and on the part of tha
Mortgager to be obsetvaed or performed; or

17.1.3. the appointment of a receiver or recelver and manager of any of the asseis of the
* Morigagor or the appointment of an administrator {as defined by the Corpuratzons Act
2001) of the Mortgagor; or

17.1.4. the occurrence of any act or event mentioned in Section 461 of the Corporations Act
2001 I relation o the Merigagor or an Investigation into the affalrs, of the Mortgagor
pursuant to Section 13 or Section 14 of the Australian Securities and Investmenis
Commission Act 2001; or

17.15. a2 resolution being proposed or an appfication being made for the winding up of the
. Mortgagor; or

171.6. the Murlgagor faiting to comply with a statutory demand (as defined by tha Corporations
Act 2001); or

17.1.7. any execution being levied against any of the assets of the Morigagor and rernamlng
unsatisfied for seven days; or

17.1.8. possession or control of any of the assets of the Morigagor being laken by an
encumbrancer or person appointed by an encumbrancer.

" The Morigagor will pay the monies payable in accordance with clause 17.1 on demand In writing by

the Meortgagee.

Upon demand being matie by the Mortgagee pursuant fo clause 17.1 the Mortgagor will pay to the
Mortgagee simple interest at the rate chargeable on the principal sum or at the higher rate if more than
one is specified on any principal or other monsys payable to the Morigagee under this morigage or
interest from time to time due and unpaid under this mortgage and also on any principal or other
roneys or interest accrued and unpaid to the date of such demand and such interest shall accrus and
be recoverable from day 1o day.
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MORTGAGEE'S POWERS

f8.1.

in the event of default by the Mortgagor in payment at the times and in the manner provided in this
morigage of the princlpal sum or cther moneys repayabie io the Mortgagee under this mortgage or
any patt thereof or of the interest thereon or any part thereof or upon default being made in the
observance or performance of any of the covenants agreements or conditions contained in this
morigage or implied by the Property Law Act 1974 the Mortgagee shall (nofwithstanding any omission
neglect or waiver of the right to exercise ali or any of such powers on any former occasion} be at
iiberty: - ,

18.11. 1o exercise all or any of the powers of a Mortgagee under the said Act immediately upen
’ or at any time after default as hereinbefore mertioned without the necessity of giving the
Meorigagor any nolice whatsoever required by the said Act or otherwise other than such
‘nofice as is required by such Act upon default being made In paymént at the times and
in the manner provided in this morigage of the principal sum or intérast or other moneys -
payable to the Mortgagee under the mortgage or any part thereof;

18.1.2. todooneor more of the followlng acts matters or things, namely: -

(&) - to do such things as the Morigagee may think fit to carry on and manage on the
Mortgaged Land any business being conducted on the Mortgaged Land and to
preserve the goodwill thereof and io sell the goodwlil either separately or
together with the Mortgaged Land; . .

()] 1o do any act or execute any document or amend any document (including this
Martgage) 10 enable regisiration thereaf; :
(c)' 10 do any act matter or thing which the Mortgagor should do or have done under
- this Mortgage;
{d) . 1o execute any transfer morigage plan of subdivision development aﬁplication-

consent or other applications or documents which may be necessary or desirable
pursuant to provisions of the Land Title Act 1994, Integrated Planning Act 1997
or the Property Law Act 1974 or other statutory provision in connection with the
‘exercise of any other power hereunder; ' :

(e} 10 execute and procure the registration of a transfer in pursuance of the exercise
of the Morigagee's power of sale; )

® to make payment on behalf of the Morigagor of the whole or any part of the

" moneys claimed by any person fo be charged or secured on the Mortgaged Land

or any part thereof or o be payable from the same or from the proceeds of the

sale thereof and whether the interest claimed by such person ranks or waould if
established rank prior to or subsequent to this mortgage; :

(@ to acquire any land encroached upon by any buildings of improvemenis erected
partly on the Worigaged Land and to execuie all contracls iransfer and
" documents in connection therewith; '

13)] to acquire for such consideration as the Morigagee shall think fit the whole or
any part of any Interest claimed by any persan {other than the Morigagee) in the
Mortgaged Land or any part thereot and whether such interest ranks or would if
established rank prior to or subseqgueni to this mortgage and whether the same
is registered or unregistered; ’

)] to subdivide or re-subdivide the Mortgaged Land info lots or units and in
connection with such subdivision or re-subdivision to agree to such conditions as
may be required by any assessment manager {Including a local government),
and to enter into agresments for the provision of electricity wafer sewerage and
other services which ihe Morigagee may think necessary or desirable;
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to execute and appeal from judgments;

upon the Mortgagee becoming entitled to possesston of the Mortgaged Land to
deliver up, at the expense of the Mongagor, any personally of the Morigagor
which may be Gpon the Morigaged Land at the address of the Mortgagor herein
or at such other address of the Morlgagor as notified to the Meorigagee or fo
store, at the Mortgagor's expense, any such personality at such place and upon
such terms as the Mongagee thinks fit; i "

where the Morigaged Land is subject to the Body Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997 to exercise any power of voting conferred on the
Mortgagor as a member of the body cotporate or committee thereof and to apply
for and obtain from the body corporate any information to which the Mortgagor
shall be entitied as a member of the body corporate PROVIDED that nothing
herein contained shall render It obligatory upon the Mortgagee 1o attend or vote
at any mesting of the bady corporate and the Mortgagee shall not be answerabie
or accountable to the Mortgagor by reason of any exercise or fallure to exercise
such power of voting AND the Mortgagor will from time to fime whenever
requested by the Morigagee execute a proxy in proper form in relation to any
meeting of the body corporate in favour of such person or persons as the
Mortgagee may nominate and deliver the same to the Morigagee;

after ' becoming entitted‘ to possession of the Mortgaged .Land to let the
Morigaged Land or any part thereof on lease or otherwise for such term and at
such rent and upon such conditions as the Morigagee shal} think fif;

to settle accounts betwsen the Marigagor and any person claiming any interest
in the Mortgaged Land or any account whatsoever; ’ B .

{0 give effectual releases and réceipts for any money received or receivable by
the Morigagee pursuant fo any power contalrted or implied herein; -

to receive the proceeds of any insurance policy over or in respect of the building

fixtures fences or other improvements on the Mortgaged Land and also to -

recelve any compensation or consideration payable in respacl of the acquisition
{compulsory or otherwise) of the Mortgaged Land or any part thereof or of any
interest therein pursuant to any statute regulaiion by-law or any agreement;

as the Mortgagee shall think fit to apply any moneys received pursuant to
ciauses (p) and (1) of this clause in the reparation or replacement of any buildings
fixtures fences or improvements or towards satisfaction of the interest principal
sum arid other moneys secured hereby (notwithstanding that the same may not
be due);

to sell or lease the Morigaged Land or any part thereof together with other

property in mortgage from the Mortgagor to the Morigagee whether (if land)
under the Land Title Act 1994 or not by one contract and one price or ai one rent
or in any other manner that the Morigagee may deem expedient; :

fo allow a purchaser upon sale of the Mortgaged Land or any part thereof any
time for payment of the whole or any part of the purchagse money with or withaut
interest and either with or without taking security thereof;

to institute proceed with or seltie any legal procsedings or disputes against or by
any person claiming any Interest in the Mortgaged Land in respect of any
insurance on any buildings fixtures fences or other improvements on the
Mortgaged Land in respect of any compensation or consideration payable or
claimed o be payable in respect of the acquisition of the Mortgaged Land or any
interest thevein or otherwise in respect of any moneys which the Mortgagee is
authorisaed to receive hereunder or in respect of any matter affecting the
Mortgaged Land; and .
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{u) to appoint a recsiver and/or manager to the Mortgaged Land.

18.2.  Any receiver appointed by the Mortgagee shall be the agent of the Morigagor who shall be solely
responsible for his acts and defaults and for his remuneration. " Any recelver shall in addition to the
powers implied by law have all powers-conferred on the Morigagee hereby or by law which the
Mortgagee may see fit 1o confer on the receiver and the receiver shall also have power to appaint such
person or persons as the receiver may think fit to exercise on behalf of the receiver such powers and
authorities of the receiver as the receiver may think fit.

19. ENVIRONMENTAL LAW.

18.1.. The Morigagor will duly and punctually comply with and observe all statutes, ordinances, regulations and
by-laws of an environmenta! or anfi-poliution nature and all orders or directions of any competent court of

same affects or might affect the Morigaged Land or the carrying on of any activity upon the Morigaged
Land. - . -

19.2.  If any event or conduct should occur which exposes or might expose the Mortgaged Land or any occupier

: thereof or any person in control of any activity carried on upon the Mortgaged Land to any liability or
i : obligation pursuant to environmental law the Mortgagor will promptly take or cause to be taken alt such -
action as may be required or desirable to effectively deal with the consequences of such event or conduet
in order fo negate the said liability or obligation or if negation should not be possible then to minimise any
loss, damage or other conssquence arising from such event or conduct AND the Morigagor will indemnify
the Mortgagee and keep the Mortgagee indemnified against all loss and llability whatsoever arising from
any breach of environmerital law o of the covenants of the Mortgagor herein contained. ‘

19.3. The Morigagor agrees:A-

19.3.1. to comply with all environmentat laws and with the conditions (if any) of any permit, work
. approval, frade waste agreement, environmental authority or licence required by an
environmental faw and to Immediately inform and advise the Morigagee of a viciation,

breach or failure to conform with those conditions; .

i 19.3.2. not to pollute, place or bring upon the Morigaged Land contaminated substances or
environmentally sensitive materials (except with the previous written consent of any lawful
authority);

- 18.3.3. to infarm the Mortgagee immediately upon any contamination of the Mortgaged Land and to
take such action ss is necessary to immediately remedy any contamination of the
Morigaged lLand;

19.3.4. In the event that the Morigagor is placed into receivership or is otherwise wound up, any
comaminated material on the Morigaged Land will be deemed 1o be the properiy of the
Mortgagor and the Mortgagor will be entitled to separate the contaminated malerial from the
- Morfgaged Land, place the contaminated material into appropriate siorage containers and
store those containers either on the Morigaged Land or remove the contalners from the
Morigaged Land; and : '

18.3.5. io authorise the Mortgagee to obtain any information required by it from amy environmental

informatiar.

20, NOTICES

20.1.  Any demand or notice to the Mortgagor shalt be effectively signed on behalf of the Mortgages if it is
executed by the Mortgagee any of its officers ite soliciior or lis attorney.

i
i
5 202,  Any demand or nofice required or authorised by this morigage may be served as provided by Section
! 257 of the Property Law Acf 1874, If any demand-or notice is posted it shall be deemed served the
I
L

authority pertaining thersto (all of which are hereinafter referred to as environmental law) in so far as the

law regulatory body and to provide assistance to the Mortgagee in cbtaining that
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" day after posting notwithstanding that at the date of such service the Mortgagor to the kﬁowledge of
the Morigagee or otherwise be a lunatic dead bankrupt in liquidation or absent.

21.  EXCLUSION OF MORATORIUMS
The provisions of any statute or regulation postponing payment of money reducing rates of interest or purporting
to curtail or restrict the rights powers or remedies of the Mortgagee are-expressiy excludad from and shall not
apply to this Morigage or any ranewal or extension of it.
22.  MORTGAGEE'S PRIORITY
This Mortgage shall confer upon the Mortgagee priority over any subsequent security over the Mortgaged tand
for all moneys intended to be secured by this Morigage notwithstanding that the whole or any pait of those
moneys may be advariced readvanced or-made available after the date of this Morigage or after the date of any
_ subsequent security. This Mortgage shall be and remaln in force as a continuing security until the principal sum
-|s paid in full. The Mortgages's rights under this Mortgage shall not be discharged postponed or in any way
prejudiced by any subsequent security nor anything contained in this Morigage nor by the operation of the rules
known as the rule in Hopkinson v. Ralt or the tule in Claytons Case. ‘
23, COVENANTS TO ENURE
The Mortgagor's obligation to perform and the Morigagee's right to require fhe Moritgagor to pedaerm all of the
torms covenants and canditions contained in or implied by this Mortgage shali not be affected by any omission
_ delay or waiver on the part of the Morigagee requiring the Mortgagor fo perfarm them or by any partial or other
discharge release variation of this Morigage or any of the security conferred by this Morigage or any- of the
terms of this Mortgage or any collateral secutity or any guarantee. .
24, MORTGAGEE'S STATEMENT
A statement in writing by the Morigagee or any duly authorised person on its behalf of the princlpal sum or any
- component parts shall be binding upon the Marigagor except in the case of manifest error.
25, CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE '
Any authority consent or other thing to be given mads or exarcised by the Morigages under this Morigage must
rat be unreasonably, capriciously or arbitearily withheld. o
26, STATUTORY POWERS
All powets rights and remedies conferred upon the Mortgagee ar any Recelver by law or by any siaiute shall be
in enlargement and augmentation of those contained in this Morigage and shall not curtail diminish or qualify
any of tham. )
27. APPLICATION OF MONEY RECEIVED

All moneys received by the Mortgagee pursuant to this Mortgage shall be applied In the absolute discretion of
the Morigagee towards reduction or satisfaction of such part of the principal sum as the Mortgagee elects
without the need to communicate its election to any person. The Martgagor shall be given credit for moneys
only when same are actually received by the Mortgagee such credit to date from the time of such receipt and all
other moneys left outstanding on cradit or otherwise shall untl actually received by the Morigagee form pari of
the principal sum. if at any time the Morigagee receives surplus moneys such surplus shall ot carry Interest
and the Mortgagee may pay same to the credit of an account in the name of the Morigagor in any bank tha
Mortgagee thinks fit and thereafter be under no liability in respect of same. Mo claim or demand whatsoever
that the Mortgagor has now or may have at any time against the Morlgagee wilk confer upon the Morigagor any
right whatsoever by way of sei-off or otherwise to extinguish in whole or in part the Morigagee's right under this
Mortgage to-have the principal sum paid to him in full by the Mortgagor in accordance with this Mortgage and/or
any collateral security.
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28. SEVEHRABILITY
i any term covenant or condition of this Morigage or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall
be or become illegal invalid or unenforceable the same shall be sovared and the remaining terms covenants
and conditions shall not be affected. ' ’

29, OTHER SECURITIES
Neither the taking of this Morigage nor any other matior or thing shall merge discharge extingulsh postpone or
prejudice ariy other securiy at any time held by the Morlgagee or any right or remedy which the Morigagee has
at any time agalnst the Morigagor or any other person and no such other security or thing shall affect.

30. BARGAINING POWER
The parties acknowledge that prior 1o entering this Morigage:-
30.4.  each parly could negotiate for the alteration of or rejection of any. of the provisions of this Morlgage; -

and S

30.2;  there was no material inequality in bargaining power between the parties; and
30.3. - each parfy had consuited or had the opportunity to consult independent legal advisers. -

31,  ASSIGNMENT '
The Morigagee may assign or participaie its rights or obligations under this Marigage or any part thereof and
transfer its obligation or any pari of any of them and for this purpose may disclose to a potentiai-participant
assignee or transferee such information abouf'the Morigagor as shall have been made available to the
Morigagee. Where the Mortgagee assigns or participates its rights or obligations or any part thergof, the
Morigagor shall execute such documents &s in the opinion of'the Morigagee are reasonably necessary. The
Morigagor shall not agsign transfer or deal with their rights or obligations hereunder.

32 " GENERAL

32.4.  No person deafing with the Mortgagee shall be bound or conicerned to enquire as to the regularity of or
‘ the occasion for the exercise of any power éxercised or purported to be exarcised by the Mortgagee,
This declaration Is intended as a representation to any person reading this mortgage and if acted upon

the Marigagor declares that the Mortgagor will be stopped from asserting facis fo the contrary.

322, So long as the Morigagee acts in gaod faith and without fraud the Morigagee shall not be liable fo the

Mortgagor in damages or otherwise for any loss occasioned to the Morigagor fram the exercise or
_ purported exercise by the Mortgagee of any right ot power hergunder notwithstanding any irregularity
therain.

1323, Mo judgment or order obtained by the Morigagee and no covenant by the Mortgagor shall operate to

maerge the rights of the Morigagee against the Morlgagor AND interest shall continue to acerue and be
payable o the Mortgagee pursuant to this mortgage until paid notwithstanding that the covenants to
pay the principal sum or any other moneys secured by this morigage may be the subject of any
judgment or order.

32.4. This mortgage shall not be discharged or affected by the death mental iliness or bankruptey of any
principal debtor or by the death mental iliness or bankruptey of the Mortgagor or any ohe or more of
them (if more than one} or by any change which may take place in the person or persons now or
hereafter comprising any partnership or firm for the time being constituting the Morigagor and
notwithstanding the incorporation of such partnership or firm and notwithsianding also (if the
Mortgagor is a company) any reconstrucilon or other change in the constitution of such company of its
amalgamation with or its absorption of or by ary other company or by any change which may take
place in the constitution of the Morigagee or by any other circumstance or event but shall continue to
he operative until actually discharged by the Mortgagee And in the svent of there being more than one
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Mortgagor the Mortgagee may give such release discharge or indulgence to any one or more of them
as the Morlgages may think fit and such release discharge of indulgence shall not discharge or affect

in any way the rights and remedies of the Mortgagee under these presents or othetwise against the

other or others of them.

_Time is of the essence in raspect of the Mortgagor's obligations under this Mortgage.

A provision of this Morigage which can and is intendad to operate after its concluston wll remain in full

 force and eifect.

The Mortgage will bind each of the signatories to this Morigage even if bne or more of the named
parties does not execute this Mortgage. )

This Mortgags Is fo be governed by and construed in accordance with all applicabie Queensland Laws
and the parties must submnit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the_Queensl'and Courts.

MORTGAGOR A TRUSTEE

33.1.

33.2.

33.3.

33.4.

The provisions hereinafter set out In this clause 38 shall apply in any case where the Mortgagor holds
the Morigaged Land &s trustes of a trust (hereinafter calied “the Trust’) and when used in this clause
the expression "the Trust Deed" shall include the originat deed constituting the Trust and every deed
{if any) supplemential thereto. - : )

The covenants and agreemenis of the Mortgagor under or pursuant to this morigage shall bind the
Mortgagor in his own right as well as in his capacity as trustee of the Trust and nothing contained or

" imptied in this clause shall fimit the personal liability of the Morigagar on his own account under this
morigage. '

The Morigagor warrants that: -
333.1. _ the Morigagor is the sole trustee of the Trust;
33.3.2. the Morigagor has power under the Trust Deed to execute this morigage and perform his

obligations thereunder and any necessary action has -been taken to authorise the
execution of this mortgage under the Trust Deed; '

'33.3.3. this mortgage Is executed and all transactions secured by this morigage are or wilt be

entered into &s part of the due and proper administration of the Trust;

33.34. the Mortgagor has a right to be fully indemnified out of the property or assels of the Trust
which right is not restricted or iimited in any way;

33.3.5. the Mortgagor Is not in breach or:default of his dutles and chligations under the Trust
© Deed. )

Notwithstanding anything in this morigage the principal sum or other moneys payable to the.
Mortgagee under this morigage or s¢ much thereof as shall remain unpaid (together with interest:

thereon accrued and unpaid to the date of demand therefore in writing by the Morigagee) shall
become forthwith payable to and recoverable by the Mortgagee (and notwithstanding any defay ot
previous waiver of the provisions of this clause by the Mortgagee) and the Morigagor will pay the

same on demand therefore in writing by the Mortgagee if, without the wriien consent of the

Moartgagee, the Martgagor:-

334.1. retires, resigns or is removed as frustes of the Trust,

33.4.2. causes ar permits or suffers any amendment variation or revecation of the Trust Deed;

33.4.3. causes or petmits or suffers the appointment of any naw or additional trusiee of the
- Trust; )
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334.4, causes or effects or permits or suffers any ressttliement setting aside sale transfer
alienation assignment or abandonment of any of ihe property or assets held an the frusis
. of the Trust Deed; ‘
3345 causes or pefmits ot suffers the determination of the vesting date under the provisions of
the Trust Deed; ’
33.4.6. causes or permits or sufers any breach or default of the dutles and obligations on the

Mortgagor's part contained in the Trust Deed;

3347 causes or effects or creates or suffers or permits any restriction or fimitation on the

Mortgagor's right of indemnity whether arising under the Trust Deed or otherwise; or

33.4.8. makes any distibution of capital of the Trust and without limiting the generality of the

foregoing pays or applies any amount being part of the capital of the Trust or any of the
" property or assets held on the trusts of the Trust Deed to any beneficiary of the Trus_t.

The Morigagor will on demand being made by the Morigagee exercise all such rights of indemnity
which it as trustee may possess and enjoy in relation 1o the property or assets held on the trusts of the
Trust Deed and the Mortgagor irevocably appoints the Mortgagee and each of the officers of the
Mortgagee jointly and each of them severally the Attorneys and Atiorney of the Morigagor and in the

name of the Mortgagor ic execute and do all such assurances, documents, acis, deeds and things as

the Mortgagee may deem necessary for the due performance and observance of this clause by the
Mortgagor and for the purpose of giving effect to this clause as fully and effectually as the Mortgagor
could do, and the Morigagor hereby agrees to ratify all and whatsoever the Attorneys or Aftorney may

‘tawfully do or cause to be done in or about ar by virlue of this clause.

INTERPRETATION

itis hereby agreed and declared that:-

34.1.

34.2,

34.3.

34.4.

34.5.

34.6.

34.7.

where in this morlgage the context requires or admits the plural number includes the singular number

and vice versa and the masculine gender includes the ferinine gender and also the neuter gender,

the word "person” includes a company and "company" includes a corporation; any reference fo the
death or personal representatives of a person shall refer also to the liquidation or appointment of any
liquidator or official manager of a company where the sense requires.

the expression "the Mortgagor® used hersin includes if this mortgage is given by one person that
person his eXecutors administrators and transferees and if this morigage is given by more persons
than one those persons jointly and every two or more of them jointly and each of them severally and
their respective executors administrators and iransferees and if a company is a Morigagor includes
that company its successors and iransferees.

the expression "the Morigagee” used hersin includes the successors and transferdes of the
Marigagee.

the exprassion “the officers of the Morigagee” used hersin includes any director, secretary or
attorney(s) of the Mortgagee.

all refererces to Statutes hersin shall refer also to Statutes amending madifying or re-enacting the
Statuie referred to.

the expression "Mortgaged Land” means the fand described in Item 2 of the atiached Form 2
Morigage and includes all buildings, fixtures, improvements, plant and machinery of whatsoever

nature created or placed on such land at the date hereof or at any time while this security continues in
force. :

the expression “Contract of Sale” means the contract of sale dated 16 August 2010 (as varied by way
of Daed of Varlation of Comndract dated 2 March 2011, Deed of Varlation of Contract dated 22 July
2011, Deed of Variation of Contract dated 4 November 2011 and Deed of Vartation of Contract dated
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Purchaser for the sale and purchase of the Mortgaged Land. )
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THiS DEED OF CHARGE is made on the

DEED OF CHARGE

day of 2011.

BY
PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD ACN 127 412 884 of Suiie 202, 184A Mona VYale Road, St lves,
-New South Wales 2075 .
(the “Chargor”)
T0 '
" STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD ABN 99 068 244 762 of 3 Lakefield Drive, Norih Lakes,
Quesnsiand 4509
(the "Chargee™
RECITALS '
A The Chargee has agreed to enfer into the Contract ot Sale with the Ghargor. in consideration of
the Chargee deferring payment of part of the Purchase Price and other amounts under the
: Contract of Salg, the Ghargor has agreed to execute this Charge. ‘
B In consideration of the maiters set out in Recital A, the Chargor has agreed to give this Chargeé to

the Chargee as security for the payment of all moneys for which the Chargor is now or hereafter

indebted or liable or contingently indebted or liable to the Chargee.

THIS DEED WITNESSES AS FOLLOWS:

1

" DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 - Interpretation
In this Chargs, unless the context otherwise requires:
111 a reference 10 any legislation or legislative provision includes any staiutory
modification or re-enactment of, or legislative provision substituted for, and any
statutory instrument issued under that legistation or legislative provision;

“1.1.2  aterm which is defined in the PPSA has the meaning it has in the PPSA, unless
- the conirary intention appears in this gharge;

1.1.3 a word denoting the singular Includes the plural and vice versa;
114 a word denoting one gender includes all genders;

115 a word deroting an individual or person includes a corporation, firmn, authority,
government body and vice versa;

1.1.8 a reference 1o a clause is to a clause of this document;

147  a reference to any parly includes that parly's executors, administrators,
substiutes, successors and permitted assigns;

1.1.8 headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the
interpretation;
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1.1.9

2

“gny term used in this Deed that is defined in the Confract of Sals will have that

defined meaning.

1.2 Definitions

In this Charge unless the context otherwise requires:

124

122

123
1.2.4

1.25

1.2.6

1.2.7

1.2.8

1.2.9

1.2.10

1211

»Aceommodation” means the providing of any financial facflity or service
- including finance;

“Arrangement” means an arrangement (including a request, bill of exchange,
agreement, Guarantee, or a Security Interest) by_or with the Chargor under
which obligations are or could in the future be pwed io the Chargee in relation fo
the Property and/or the Secured Moneys; : )

“Borrower” means
"Charge™” means this Deed of Charge;

“Charges” includes the Chargee his successors, adminisirators and permitted
assigns;

“Chargot” means Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412 864 and includes its
successors, administrators and permitted assigns as the case may be;

"Colfalera) Security” includes the Mortgage and any othier morigage, charge,
agreement, Guarantee, indemnity or instrument of any kind wherchy the
Secured Moneys are secured or intended to be secured in-favour of the’
Chargee; :

“Contract of Sale” maans the confract of sale dated 16 August 2010 (as varied
by way of Deed of Variation of Contract dated 2 farch 2011, Deed of Variation
of Contract dated 29 July 2011, Deed of Variation of Contract dated 4
November 2011 and Deed of Variation of Contract dated on or about 20
December 2011} entered info by the Charges as Vendor and the Chargor as
Purchaser for the sale and purchase of the Land;

“Effective Controi” of the Chargor means:

(a} santrol of the composition of the Board of Directors of the Chargor;

* (b) control of more than half the voting rights atiaching to the shares in

the Chargor; or

(c} conirol of more than half the issued shares or capital‘of the Chargor
{excluding any part which carries no right to paricipate beyond a
specified amount in the distribution of either profit or capital),

- and includes the acquisitian by any means of a person of a relevani interest

{whether aclual or deemed within the meaning of the Corparations L.aw} in
shares In the Chargor sufficient to allow that person either alone or jointly to
excrcise the control referred to in items (a), (b} or (¢) of this definition. For the
purposes of this definition, controt shali be determined having regard to the
provisions of the Corporations Law;

"Event of Default’ means each of the events set out in clause 6.1 of this
Charga or otherwise referred to in this Charge as an Event of Default;

“Guarantee” includes an indemnity;

G:ANrPoribiMattenABLA704760_1.DCC 20 December 2011 9:41 AM

467



3

1242 “Insurable Property” means all of the Property and assets charged by this
security which are of an insurable nature;

1.213 “Land” means the land described as Lot 74 on SP 236546, County of Stanley,
Parish of Redcliffe, Title Reference 50848722, being the land sold by the
Chargee as Vendor to the Chargor as Purchaser under the Contract of Sale,
and includes all buildings, fixtures, improvements, plani and machinery of
whatever nature created or placed on such land at the date hereof or at anytime
while this security continues In force;

1.2.14 “Mertgage”™ means the morigage over the Land dated on or about the dateof
this Charge entered inio by the Chargee as Marlgagor and the Chargor as
Morigagee as security for the Secured Monays;

1.2.45 “PPSA" moans the Personal Property Seturifies Act 2009 (Cth);

1.2.16 "Property" has the meaning given it by clause 2.1, and includes (without
limitation) any right, title and interest in the Property acquired now or in the
future and all proceeds of the Property; : )

1.247 "Hei:aivar" includes a regeiver and m'anager;

1.2,18  “Secured Moneys™ meahs all amounts which the Ghargor owes to the
Chargee at any time and includes all monies payable by the Chargor to the
Chargee under the Contract of Sale;

1219 “Securily Interest” means any securily interest under. the PPSA or any

: security for the payment of money or performance of cbligations including a
maortgage, charge, lien, pledge, trust, power, or title rotention or flawed daposit
Amrangement; ‘ :

1.220 “Tax" means any iax, rale, levy, impost and duty (other than a tax on the net
overall income of the Chargee) and any interest, penalty, fine or expense
relating to any of them; ‘

1221 “Transaction Document" means any Collateral Security, finance agreement,
loan agreement or other document eniered inte with the Chargee to which the
Chargqr is or becomes a parly. :

2 CHARGE

2.1

2.2

Charge by Beneficial Owner

The Chargor as beneficlal owner charges with the payment to the Chargee of the
Secured Moneys the whole of the Chargor's property undertaking and assets of whatever
nature and wherever situated both present and future and real and personal including its
goodwill, plant and equipment, bock debts and other ¢hoses in action, its uncalled and
unpaid capital and uncalled premiums on iis shares and including all -assets acquired
after the floating security herehy created crystaflises and including any Securily Interest
of any Guaraniee. .

Fixed Charge

The charge creatéd by this security is & fixed charge as regards all freshold and
leasehold property, goodwill, fixtures, plant equipment and other chattels (except stock-

in-trade) uncalled capital, uncalled premiums, books of account, vouchers and other -

documents in respect of the business transactions of the Chargor, negotiable and other
securities and documents evidencing title or right to possession of any properly deposited
with or required to be deposited with the Chargee by the Chargor and the Property fo
which any such docurrents relate.
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23

2.4

25

2.5

Floating Charge

The Charge created by this security is a flodting charge as regards all other property and
assets charged by this security but the Chargor is nof at liberty to create any charge or
morigage In priority to or pari passu with or subsequent o thig security or to make any

. assignment of lts book debts except with the prior written consent of the Chargee.

Automatic Crystallisation of Floating Charge

Upon the happening of any Event of Default the floating charge created by this security
and referred o in clause 2.3 will ipso facto and without any act by the Chargee being
necessary become a fixed and specific charge upon the Property and assets previously
subjact only 1o the floating charge.

Operation as Fixed Charge

The floating charge created by this security may be converted into & fixed and specific
charge at any time by notice in writing to the Chargor signed by the Chargee as regards
any property or assets forming part of the Property -charged by this security which are
speclfied in the notice and which in the reasonable opinion of the.Chargee may be at risk
of being seized or sold under any form of distress or exacution levied or threatened or
otherwise in jeopardy and the Chargee may appoint a receiver of such property or assets
in-accordance with this security. .

Decrystallisaiion ot Floatlng Charge

The Chargee may at any time by rofice in writing to the Chargor convert the charge

hereir created from a fixed charge into a floating charge as regards any asset or assels
specified in such notice and upon such notice being received by the Chargor this Charge
as regards such specified asset or assels shall immediately become and operaie as a
floating charge subject to the provisions hereof and shall cease 10 be 4 fixed charge aver
such specified asset or assels.

PAYMENT OF MONEY

- 34

32

3.3

Payment of Secured Moneys

The Chargor will pay to the Chargee all of the Secured Moneys whether the liability to the
Charges: : . -

314 is actual or contingent:
31.2 arose before or arises after the execution of this security;

31.3 is pursuant fo this security, any Collateral Security, any loan agreernent or
: agreement of any other kind.

The Chargor's covenants contained in this clause apply to every accommodation
provided by the Chargee to the Chargor or any third parilgs or fo any person at the
request of the Chargor and/or any third parties. :
Payment on Demand

The Secured Moneys will be payable to the Chargee at the times and in the manner
provided by any agreement under which they are payable or on demand if no such time
or manner Is provided. :

Payment of Interest
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The Chargor wilf pay interest to the Chargee on ali principal moneys owing from time o
time and secured by this Charge as agreed by the parties.

4 COVENANTS CONCERNING INSURANCES

41

42

insurances

The Chargor shall insure all Insurable Property against:

4,11 any loss theft or damage and destruction;

412 any loss. including without limiting the generality of the foregoing loss of rent
income capital or other revenue derived from the Insurable Property caused by
ar contributed to by any loss theft damage or destruction of the insurable
Properiy ot any other event; and : ‘

41,3 any lighility from time 1o time of the Chargee or the Chargor in respect of the
ownership use or oceupation of the Insurable Property.

_ Policies of lnsurance
All po!icies of insurance shali:
421  be taken oui with an insurer approved by the Chargee:
422  beisken outin the names of the Chargee and the Chargor;
423  insure the Chargor's and the Chargee's respective insurable interests;
424  be for such amounts and cover such risks and contain such terms and
conditions as the Chargee requires; and

425  notbe varied without the written consent of the Chargee.

4.3 Full Replacement Value
All insurance against loss theft or damage or destruction of the Insurable Property shall
untess the Chargee otherwlse agrees in writing, be for the full replacement value thereof
from time to time. .

44 Preduction of Palicy
All documents relatirig to insurance, including without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the policies relating thereto, all renewal certificates, certificates of currency and
endorsement slips, shall be delivered by the Chargor to the Chargee immediately upon
receipt by the Chargor. :

4.5 Aésignment
As further and better security, the Chargor hereby assigns to the Chargee the Chargor's
right title and interest in any insurance of Insurable Properly and all moneys which are
now or which hereafter become owing to the Chargor prospectively contingently or
otherwise by any insurer under such insurance.

4.6 Maintenance of Insurance
The Chargor shall:
4.6.1 mainiain all insurance;
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4,11

8

462  duly-and punciually pay or cause to be paid alt pfemiums and other moneys

payable under, and perform observe and fulfil the terms of, all Insurances;

48.3 produce o the Chargee the policy of Insurance and the receipts for the payment
of each premium and all other moneys payable-in respect of each polisy {or
other evidence of payment satisfactory to the Chargee) at least fourteen days
before the due date for renewal thereof; and :

464  ensure that every policy of Insurance: -

(a) contains an agreement by the insufer that, notwithstanding the lapse

of any such policy (except by reason of expiration in accordance with -
its terms) or any right of cancellation of the insurer or any cancellation .

by the Chargor whether voluntary or involuntary, such policy ghall
gontinue in force for the benefit of the Chargee for at least 30 days
after written notice of such cancellation has been sent by ceriifisd mail
{u the Chargee and that no reduction in imits or coverage in any such
policy or part therecf shall be effected except with the prior written
approval of the Chargee; and . :

(b} ' insures the Chargee's interest up to the limits of the bolicy regatdiess
of any breach or violatlon by the Chargor of any warranties,
declarations or conditions contained in such pelicy. '

Discldsure

The Chargor shall before entering into any insurance disclose tﬁ the proposed insurer all

-facts material io the insure_zr’s risk thereunder.

No Liability

The Chargee shalt not incur any liability to the Charger arising out of any failure by the
Chargee fo effect or renew any Insurance nor shall the Chargee incur any liability arising
out of any failure by the insurer for any reason to meet any claim under any Insurance.

Option as to Payments

If any part of the Insurable Property is lost stolen damaged or destroyed the sum recsived
under any Insurance shall at the option of the Chargee be applied:

4.9.1 towards the replacement or repair of such Insurable Property; and/ot
49.2 inor towards repayment or reduction of the Secured Moneys.
Moneys Paid to Chargor

if any moneys payable under any insurance come into the hands of the Chargar those
moneys shall be paid to the Chargee immediately and until payment to the Chargee shall

be held by the Ghargor in trust for the benefit of the Chargee.

Not Prejudice Insurances
The Chargor shalt not cause or permit anything fo be dorie which may: .

4.11.1  render any part of any insurance void voidable or otherwise unenforceable;

- 4,11.2 hinder or prevent the Chargor or the Chargee from recovérlng any moneys In

respect of any nsurance; or

4113 cause the premiums and other moneys payable to any insurer to be increased.
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5 CHARGOR'S OBLIGATIONS

5.1

. B2

5.9

: ‘ 5.4

55

. 5.6

57

. Compliance with Statutes

The Chargor must duly and punctually observe and comply with all statutes, regulations,

ordinances and by-laws and afl orders and notices from any statutory or other authority in.
respect of any properly and assets charged by this security in respect of the carrying on

of any activity thereon including (without limiting the generality) those which are of an:
environmental or anti-pollution nature,

Conduct of Buslness

The Ghargor must conduct its business in a proper and efficient manner and must keep

proper baoks of account in relation to its business.
Books of Account

The Chargor must give to the Chargee such Information as Is required by the Chargee

“relating 1o the business of the Chargor and the Property and assets charged by this
security and must make its books of account available for inspection by the Chargee atall -

reasonable times. -
Prior Securities
The Chargor must duly and pi.tnctuaﬂy pay all moneys payable and secured under any

security taking priority to this security and must duly and punctually observe and comply,
with &l covenants and conditions of such cther security which are to be cbserved or

-performed by the Chargor. ) |
Indemnity

‘The Chargor must indemnify the Chargee against alf Joss or liability arising from any.

breach of any of the Chargor's obligations under or pursuant to this security.
Performance of Obligations

If the Chargor defaults in the performance or observance of any of Its obligations under or
pursuant fo this security the Chargee may (but will not be’ obliged to} and without
prejudice to any other rights, powers or remedies of the Chargee pay any such moneys
as may be dus and payable by the Chargor under any of such obligations or perform or
observe any of such obligations AND all moneys so pald or expenses so incurred by the
Chargee will be Secured Moneys and will be payable by the Chargor to the Chargee on
demand and will bear interest to accrue from day to day at the rate {or highest rate i
more than one) agreed between the parties.

. Security Interests

5.7.1 It the Chargee requires, the Chargor must énter inte an agresment acceptable
to the Chargee regulating the priority between this charge and any other
Security Interest in the Property.

572 The Ghargor must:

_{@)  notincrease the amount secured under any other Security interest in
the property without the Chargee’s consent; and

(b} comply- with any obligation in connection with any other Sacurity

Interest in the Property.
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6 EVENTS OF DEFAULT

611

6.1.2

€.1.3

6.1.5

6.1.8

6.1.7

6.1.8

6.1.10
6.1.11
6.1.12

8.1.13

8.1.14

6.1.15

6.1 Events of Default

Each of the following is an event of defautt (whether or not caused by anything outside
the contrel of the Chargor):-

the Chargor makes default in the payment of aﬁy’ of the Secured Moneys or fdils
io observe or perform any of the covenants of obligations on its part contained
in this or any Collateral Sscurity; '

a representation, warranty or statement made or deemed to be made by the
Chargor in this security is untrue or misleading in any material respsct;

the Chargor without the priar consent in writing of ihe Charges creates or
purports of altempts to creale any charge or morigage over the whole or any
part of the Property or assets charged by this security or any Collateral Security;

the Chargor enters into any compromise or arrangernent with its creditors;

" an order is made or an effective resolution Is passed for the winding up of the

Chargor or 2 meeting is summoned or convened for the purpose of considering
such a resolution; :

the Secured Monseys or any part thereot are in the reasonable opinion of the
Chargee applied for any purpose other than the purpose for which the same
were advanced or provided by the Chargee or any works far which the same
were advanced are not carried out and performed in a manner satisfactory fo
the Charges or are not carried out or performed with due expedition;

this security is void, voidable or omerwise unenforceable by the Chargee or is
claimed to be so by the Chargor; : ; '

the Chargor selis, assigns or transfers the whole or anry pari of its undertaking
or assets or atiempts to do 0 otherwise than in the ordinary course of its
business without the prior consent in.writing of the Chargee or there is a change
in the Effective Gontrol of the Chargor; -

possession or control of the Property of the Chargor ot any part thereof is taken
by an encumbrancer or a person appointed by an encumbrancer;

a receiver or receiver and manager is appointed in respect of the Chargor or
any of its property; .

the Chargor Is deemed to be, or states that it is unable to pay its debts when
thay fall due; - ‘

an administrator (as defined by the Corporations Act 2001) of the Chargor is
appointed; '

the Chargor passes a resolution (without the prior consent in writing of the
Chargee) that any part of its share the Chargee which has not already been
cafled up shall not be-capable of being called up except in the event and for the
purposes of the winding up of the Chargor; o

the Chargor is carrying on business at a foss and in the reasonable opinion of
the Chargee the further catrying on by the Chargor will endanger this security;

the Chargor without the prior writters consent of the Chargee offers for sale or
sells, factors, alienates, charges or parts with possession or disposes of alt or
any of the book debts of the Chargor,
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8.1.16  the Chargor without the prior consent of the Chargee makes any alteration fo its
Constitution which in the reasonable opinion of the Chargee might detrimentally
affect the interest of the Chargee;

6.1.17  the Chargor or the Chargor stops payment or without the prior consent in writing
of the Chargee ceases or threatens 1o cease fo carry on its busineas or a
substantial part of its business;

-6.1.18  the bankruptey of the Chargor;

- 8.1.12  the Chargor is desmed to be, or siates that it is unable to pay iis debts when
they fall due; : '

6.1.20 default is made in payment as and when due of any moneys payable under any
morigage, charge or encumbrarnce upon property or asscls charged by this
security whether ranking in priority to or pasi passu with or subsequent to this
secutity; )

6.1.21 an event described in Section 461 of the Corporations -Act 2001 gecurs in
respect of the Chargor. ' o

6.2 H[g"hté o! The Chatgee ' ,
Upon the happening of any Event of Default the Chargdr will be in default under this
gsecurity and the Secured Moneys will immediately become due and payable and the

charge created by this security will immediately become enforceable without the need for
~any notice or demand and notwithstanding any delay or previous waiver by the Chargee.

7 APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER

7.1 Appolntment

At any time after the happening of an Event of Default the Chargee, by notice in writing.
signed by any officer of the Chargee, may appoint any gualified person to be a Receiver
of the Property and assets charged by this security or any part thereof and may remove
any Receiver and appoint another Recelver in his place and fix the remuneration of any
such Receiver and determina the conditions upon which he shall hold office.

7.2 Agent of the Chargor

Every Receiver appointed by the Chargee will be the agent of the Chargor and the
Chargor alone will be responsible for his acts and defauits and such a receiver will
without any consent on the part of the Chargor have power:

7.21 to take possession of, collect and get in the whole or any part of the Property
and assets charged by this security;

722 1o take or grant or assign. or surrender or accept surrenders of leases in the
- name of the Chargor or otherwise of the whole or any part of the Property and
_assets charged by this security which leases may be from year W0 year or for
any term of years or for any term less than a year at such rent and upon such

terms and conditions as such Recelver may think expedient;

7.2.3  fo carry on or concur in carrying on the business of the Chargor and o make
and effect all repairs, purchases and insurances and to do gll acts which the
“Chargor might do in the ordinary conduct of its business for the protection or
improvement of the Property and assets charged by this security or for
obtaining income or returns therefrom; : ‘
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7.24

7.25

7.2.6

7.27

7.2.8

729

7.210
7.211
7.2.12

7.243

7.2.14

10

to borrow any maoneys which in the opinion of the Recelver may be required for
any of the purposes mentioned in this clause and in the name of the Chargor or

otherwiss o secure any moneys o borrowed by morigage or charge over the

Property and assets charged by this security or any part therecf and so that
such mortgage or charge may rank In priority to or pari passu with or after the
charge hereby created; -

without prejudice to the powers conferred by the preceding sub-clause to
borrow moneys from the Chargee for the purpose of carrying out any of the
powers herein contained or conferred on the Receiver by taw but so that unless
otherwise agreed by the Chargee any moneys ‘so borrowed will be deemed 1o -
have been bomowed by the Chargor on the security of the charge herehy
created and will carry interest accordingly .and will form part of the Secured
Moneys provided that the provisions of this sub-clause wili be without prejudice
to any greater priority which may be conferred by law in respect of the moneys
s0 borrowed, and the Chargee will not be bound to enguire as to the need for
such borrowing and will not be responsible for the application, mis-application or
ron-application of the moneys so borrowed;

to sell or concur In selling afl or any of the Property and assets charged by this’
security either by public auction or by private treaty or by tender or by way of
hire purchase agreement and either for cash or or: credit and upon such cther

. terms and conditions as the Receiver may consider expedient and by deed or’

other instrument in the. name and on behalf of the Chargor or otherwise to

‘convey and assure the same o any purchaser;

to employ and appoint managers, officers, solicitors, attorneys, agents,
auctioneers, workmen and servants for all or any of the purposes hereof at such
remuneration as the Receiver thinks fit and to confer on or delegate to any such
persons ali or any of the powers, authorities and discrefions hereby conferred;

to make any arrangements or compromises which the Receiver thinks
expedient in the inferest of the Charges;

to give recsipts for all moneys and other assets which may come 1o the hands

of the Receiver in exercise of any power hereby conferred and such receipts will
be sufficient discharge tharefore and any persen paying or handing over any
such moneys or other assets will not be concerned to ses fo the applicafion
thereaf; ' ’

10 camy out and enforce a specific performance of or otherwise obtain the
benefit of all contracts entered into or held by the Ghargor or enteved into in
exercise of the powers or autharities hereby conferred;

to make debtors insolvent or bankrupt and to wind up companies and to do all
things in connection with any insolvency, bankruptcy or winding up which the
Receiver thinks necessary for the recovery or protection of the Property and
assets charged by this security or for the security of the Chargee;

1o take proceedings at law ot in équity in the name of the Chargor or othetwise
for all or any of the aforesaid purposes; :

to do all things necessary to perform or observe, any of the covenants on the
part of the Chargor contained In this security; ’

to compel the execuiion by the Chargor or the fiquidator thereof of any
confracts, transfers, morigages, deeds, documents and things as may be
considered by the Receiver to be desirable for the purpose of effectuating any
sale, disposition of morigage or agreement made by the Receiver under the
powers conferred by this security or by faw; -
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73

7.4

75

11

72145 1o exercise all the powers of the Chargor and ali the powers of the governing

body of the Ghargor;

7.2.16 1o do all such other acts and things without limitation as the Receiver thinks .
expedient in the interests of the Chargee; L

7217 todo ali or any of the things or exersise ali o any of the powers aforesaid in the
name of the Chargor or otherwise whether a Recelver is or is not appointed as
aforesaid it will be fawiul for the Charges at any time after the happening of any
Event of Default and without the neéd for any demand or notice to exercise all
or any of the powers, authorities and discretions conferrad on a Receiver by this
security. A reference to a notice under this clause includes any notice under the
PPSA (including a notice of a veritication statement}.

It such a requirement under clause 7.2.17 cannot be excluded, but the law provides théi a
period of notice or lapse of ime may be stiputated or fixed by this charge, then itis
stipulated and fixed as being either one day or the minimum period that the law requires.

Moneys Received

All moneys received by any Receiver or by the Chargee under or by virtue of this sécurity
will be applied in the following manner: :

731 . in ﬁayment of alt rents, rates, taxes and other outgoings having priority-to the
charge hereby created or which such Recelver or the Ghargee thinks it 1o pay;

7.3.2  .in keeping down all annual sums or other paymenis {if any) and the interest-on
all principal sums (if any) having priority o the charge created by this security;

733 in payment of ali costs, charges, expenses and outgoings properly incurred ar
incidental to the exercise or performance or aitemptad exercise or performance
of any of the powers or authorities conferrad by this security and with such
costs |n the case of legal costs being charged as between solicitor and own
client; - - -

734  inpayment of the remuneration of the Receiver;
735  Inpayment to the Chargee of the Secured Moneys;

7.3.6 the surplus (if any) wil belong to the Chargor but such surplus wilf not carry
. Interest. .

Receiver Attorney of Ghargor

The Chargor for valuable consideration hereby itrrevocably appoints any Receiver
appointed by the Chargee as the attorney of the Chargor for the purpose of enabling him
in the name and on behalf of the Chargor to sign or sign, seat and deliver all such
conveyances, transfers, mortgages, leases, instruments, nofices, agreemenis and other
documents and to take all such steps and proceedings and to do all stich acts and things
as may in the opinian of the Receiver be necessary of expedient for carrying into effect or

_faciiitating anything done or proposed to be done by the Receiver in exercise of any of

the powers conferred on him-under or by vittue of this security.

‘Heceiver not Liable

Naither any Receiver appointed by the Chargee nor the Chatgee will be answerable or
accountable for any involuntary losses of any kind which may happen in ot about the
exercise or exacution of any of the powers or authorities herein contained and will not by
reason of such Receiver or the Chargee entering into possession of the Property and
assets charged by this security or any part thereof be liable to account as Chargee in
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possession or for anything except actual receipts or be liable for any loss upor realisation
or for any default or omission for which a Chargee in possession might be liable and
evety Receiver appointed undér this security will be deemed as regards responsibility for
loss damage or misconduct to be the agent of the Chargor which will be salely
responsible for his aclions and defaults. ’

Indemnity

Every regeiver, attorney, manager, agent or other person abpointed by the Charges
under this security and the Chargee will be entitled 1o be indemnified out of the Property

_and assets charged by this security in respect of all Kabilities and expenses incurred by

them, it or him in the execution or purported exacution of the powers, authorities or
discretions vested in them, it or him pursuant to this security including liabilities and
expenses congequent on any mistake, oversight, error of judgment or want of prudence
on the part of the Chargee or any such appointes {unless the same amounis to witful ar
gross negligence) and against all actions, proceedings, costs, claims and demands in
respect of any matter or thing done or omitted in any way relating to the Property and
assets charged by this security and the Chargee may retain and pay out of any monay in
its hands arising from the provisions of this security all sums necessary to effect such
indemnity. .

8-  THE CHARGEE'S POWERS

B.1

8.2

8.3

Exercise of Power

- Notwithstanding that & Recelver has or has not been appointed it shall be lawful for e

Chargee at any time after the happening of any Event of Default or after the Secured
Moneys have become payable pursuant fo the provisions of this charge or any
agreement and without giving any notice to exercise all or any of the powers conferred on
a Recelver or which would be conferred on a Receiver if appointed by this charge as If
the ‘same had been expressly conferred on the Chargee and the Chargee may itseif

- exercise such powers authorities and discretions andfor may appoint an agent or joint

arid/or several agents for that purpose. When any such agent(s} are appolnted the

Chargee may: "

8.1.1 fix the remunsration of such agent(s) upon the same basis that such agent(s)

* would have been eniiled o remuneration if appoinied as Receiver(s) pursuant

to the provisions of clause 6.1 or otherwise pay the reasonable charges of such
ageni{s};

812 withdraw thie appointments of any such agent(s); and

81.3 In the case of the removal retirement or death of any such agent(s) may appoint
another persen or persons in its place. ‘

Act Jointly

The Chargee or the Receiver may exercise any of the powers conferred upon the
Chargee or the Receiver in conjunction with the exercise of similar powers by any other
encumbrances of the Property charged by this Charge or part thereot ar by any receiver
appointed by such aother encumbrancee and may enter into and give effect to such
agreements and arrangements with such other encumbrancee or receiver as the
Chargee or the Recelver thinks fit

Consequences
in addition to any other rights provided by this Charge or any other Transacton

Deocument, at any time after-an Fvent of Default, whether or not it is continuing, the
Chargee may do ali or any of the following:
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8.3.1 by notice to the Chargar declare the Secured Monsys immediately payable;

8.32 by notice fo the Chargor terminate any obligation of the Chargee under any
Transaction Docurnent to provide advances or financial accommodation;

833 to the extent permitted by law, without notice, exercise powers expressed 1o be
exercisable following art Event of Default; or

8.34  atthe cost of the Chargor, appoint & firm of iIndependent accountants or other
experis 1o review and repori fo.the Chargee on the affalrs, financial condition
and businass of the Chargor. The Chargor shall do gverything in its powet 10
ensute the review and report can be carried out promplly, completely and
accurately. Without limitation it wili co-operate fulty with the review arid ensure
that the accountants and experts are given access to all premises and records
of the Chargor and given all information concerning the Chargor which they
require from time to time. It will ensure that where the Chargor is a company
that its officers and employees do the same.

8 GENERAL

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

Warranty as to Assels

The Chargor warrants that it has good right to charge the Property and assets charged by
this security free from encumbrances other than other securities aiready held by the
Chargee (if any).

Petfect Security

The Chargor must at its own expense do ali things and exccute all documents reasonably
required by the Chargee for more perfectly assuring to the Chargee the Property and
assets charged by this Charge.

Stamp Duty and Charges

The Chargor will indemnify‘ the Chargee against any stamp duty or any duty or tax

payable in respect of this Charge or any loan or other transaction hereby secured or in -
connection with the receipt of any monsys by the Chargee under or pursuant to this

Charge.
Completion of instruments

The Chargee will be at liberly at any time to complete in favour of the Chargee or any
appointee of the Chargee or any purchaser under tho powers given by this Charge all
instrurnents of whatever nature executed by or on behalf of the Chargor in blank and
deposited with the Chargee as collateral security to this security, :

No Enquiry

In relation to the exercise of any pawer of authority contained in of implied by this Charge
no person dealing with the Chargee or any atiorney or Receiver appointed by the
Chargee will be bound io enquire whether any Event of Defauli has happened or
otherwise as to the propriety or regularity of the exercise of such power or authority and
notwithstanding d@ny impropriety ot irregularity therein such exercise will as far as regards
the safety and protection of such person be deemed to be valid and effectual and the
remedy of the Chargor in respect of any impropriely or Irregutarity will be in damages
only.

Setilement of Claims
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In the event of loss or damage by fire or otherwise the Chargee alone with have the
powsr to make, enforce and compromise any claim in respect of evety insurance and o
sue for, recover, receive and give discharges for all insurance moneys whether the policy
is in the name of the Chargee or Chargor or both and whether or not the same covers
other property as well as the Property and assets charged by this sscurity or parl thereof
and every such policy and the insurance moneys payable thereunder will be held by the
Chargee as further security for the Secured Moneys. '

Moneys Received

In applying the purchase money to arise from any sale by the ,Chargée or ahy Receiver

‘appointed by the Chargee towards satisfaction of the Secured Moneys the Ghargor will -
be credited only with so much of the said money available for that purpose as is actually

received in cash by the Chargee and such credit will date from the time of such receipt.
Amounts Due

A statement in writing signed by the Chargee as to the amaunt of the Secured Moneys al
the date mentioned in such statement will be prima facie evidence that such amount is so
due or owing or sequred.

Inspection

it will be lawfui for the Chargee'or any person authorised by or on behalf of the Chargee

-to enter upon any of the Property or assets charged by this security at all reasonable

times fo Inspect the state of repair and condition thereof and to inspect and take coples of-
or exiracts from afl books of account, vouchers and other documents relating in any way
10 the business transaciions of the Chargor. .

. No Merger

Neither the taking of this security nor anything herein implied will be held to merge,
discharge or prejudice any other security now held or hereaiter taken by the Chargee for
payment of any of the Secured Moneys or affect any claim or demand which the Chargee
now has or may hereafter have against any other person as surety of otherwise nor will
any other security now held or hereafter taken by the Chargee abate or prejudice the
powers and provisions herein contained and this security will be a confinuing securily
notwithstanding any settlement of account, intervening payment or other matter or thing
whatsoever unti! a final discharge hereof has been given to the Chargor.

Judgments or Orders

Despite any judgment oy order which the Chargee may hereafter recover against the
Chargor in respect of any of the Secured Moneys or any part thereot the Chargee will
hold such judgment or order collaterally with this security as security for the due payment
of-the moneys for the time being owing under any such judgment or order (with interest
{hereon at the rate herein provided) and this security will not merge in any such judgment
or ardar. .

No Waiver
This security may be enforced despite the accepiance of interest by the Chargee after

any default and notwithstanding any previous or other default and without the need of any
notice to or of any further consent or concurrence on the part of the Chargor. -

10 THE CHARGEE AS ATTORNEY

101 Appointment
The Chargor irrevocably appoints the Chargee its attorney with the right at any time:
GANtPortbMMattenABLY704760_1.B0OC ’ 20 December 2011 9:41 AM
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1011 to perform the obligations of the Chargor under this security;

10.1.2  to do everything which in the attomey's opinion is necessary or expedient to
- enable the exercige of any Tight of the Chargee or any Receiver in relation to
this security; ‘ :

10.1.3  if the Properly or assets charged by this security or any part thersof is or is
praposed to be the subject of any dealing which will or may have a materiat
adverse effect upon the ability of the Chargor to perform its obligations under
this document, to do any thing in relation to the Properly and assels charged by
this security or. any part thereof to prevent or delay that material adverse effect.

10.1.4 1o appoint substitutes and otherwise delegate its righits including this right of
delegation AND the Chargor irrevacably appoints the Chargee its attorney with
~ the right at any time after an Event of Default has oceutred fo do everything that
""" the Chargor may lawfully authorise an agent to do in respect of the Property
and assets charged by this security. ‘

10.2 Exercise of Rights

An aftorney may exercise his rights notwithstanding that the exercise of the right
constiiutes a confiict of interest or duty and the Chargor wil ratify any exercise of a right
by an attorney.

“10.2  Valuable Consideration

Any Power of Atiorney pursuant to this securily is granted for valuable gohgideration

teceipt of which is acknowledged by the Chargor and to secure the performance of the -

gbligations of the Chargor to the Chargee under this security.

CHARGOR AS SURETY

12

Notwithstanding that as between the Chargor and any third pariy the Chargor is a surety for that
third party, itis agreed that as between the Chargor and the Chargee, the Chargor will be deemed

1o be & principal debtor to the Chargee for all Secured Moneys or by any Collateral Security

charged by this security will be a principal and not a collateral security it being intended that the

obligations and liability of the Chargor will be absoluie and unconditional in any and all

circumstances so that the Chargor will not be released by time or any other indulgerce or
concession being given to any third party or by any variation of the provisions of this security or any
Coltateral Security or by the bankruptcy or winding up of any other pariy of by any other thing

- whatsoaver whereby the Chargor would have been so released but for this provision.

TRUSTEE PROVISIONS

124 Chargor as Trustee

The provisions set out in this clause will apply in any case where the Chargor is the
trustee of any trust (hereinafter called "the Trust") and when used in this clause the
expression "the Trust Deed" will include the original deed consiituting the Trust and every
deed (if any) supplemental thereto. L _ o o

122 Capacity of Chargor

A referance in this Charge to "the Chargor” is a reference to the Chargor in its awn
capacity and also in its capacity as trustee of the Trust and the covenants and
agreements of the Chargor under or pursuant to this Charge wil bind the Chargor in its
own right as well as in its capacity as trustee of the Trust,
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12.3 Property of the Chargor

A reference to the Property and assets of the Chargor is a reference to the same whether

owned or to be owned by the Chargor in its own right or whether held by the Chargor as

trustee of the Trust and all of the same are and will be charged to the Charges.
12.4 Chargor’s Warranties

The Chargor warrants that:- -

1244 the Chargclr‘is the sole trustes of the Trust;

12.4.2 the .Chargor has power under the Trust Deed to execute this security and
parform its obligations thereunder and any necessary action has been taken to
authorise the execution of this security under the Trust Deed;

12.4.3°  1his security Is executed and all transactions secured by this security are or will -
be entered into as part of the due and proper adminisiration of the Trust;

12.4.4  the Chargor has a right to be fully indemnified out of the Property or assets of

- the Trust which right is not restricted or limited in any way;

1245 the Chargor Is not in breach or default of its duties and obhgatlons under the

Trust Deed.
125 - Chargor's Obligations

Despite anything contalned in this Charge the Secured Moneys will become forthwith

payable {0 and recoverable by the Chargee (and notwithstanding any defay or previous

waiver of the provisions of this clause by the Chargee) and the Chargor will pay the same
on demand by the Chargee if, without the prior written consent of the Chargee the
-Chargor:- .

1251  retires, resigns or Is removed as frustee of the Trust;

1252 causes or permits or suffers any amendment, varation or revocation of the
Trust Deed;

125.3 causes or permits or suffers the appo;ntment of any new or additional trustee of

" the Trust;
1254 causes or eﬂects ar permits or suffers any resetttement, sefiing aside, sale,
' transfer, alienation, assignment or abandonment of any of the Property or
assets held on the trusts of the Trust Deed,;

1255 causes or permits or suffers the determination of the vesting date under the
prowsmns of the Frust Deed;

12.5.6 causes or permiis or suffers any breach or default of the duties and obl;gatmns
on the Chargor's part contained in the Trust Deed

12.8.7 causes or effects or creates or suffers or penmits any restriction or Emitation on

. the Chargor's tight of indemnity whether arising under the Trust Deed or
otherwise;

12.5.8 makes any distribution of capital of the Trust and without limiting the generality
of the foregoing pays or appiies any amount being part.of the gapital of the
Trust or any of the Property or asseis held on the trusts of the Trust Deed fo
any beneficiary of the Trust.
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13 NOPPSANOTICE REQUIRED UNLESS MANDATORY

The -Chargee need not give any notice under the PPSA (including a notice. of a verification
statement) unless the notice is required by the PPSA and canot be excluded.

14 MISCELLANEOQUS

141 Notices

_Any notice, demand, cerfification or other communication ander this Charge must be
given In writing and may be given by an authorised representutive of the sender.

142  Method of Giving Notices

A notice, demand, certification or other communication required or permitted to be given
by one party to another under this Charge is treated as being duly given if it is:

14}.2.1 left at that pariy's address;

1422 sentby pre-pald mail to that party's address; or

1423 ‘transmitted by facsimite to that party's address.
143 Time of Receipt

A notice, demand, certification or other communication given to a party in accordance
with this clause is treated as having been duly given and recelved:

14341 when deliverad (if it is left ai that party's address);

1432 on the third business day after posting (if it is sent by pre-paid mail);

14.3.3 on the business day of transmission {if it Is gent by facsimile to the facsimile
number of that party and no intimation is received that the notice has not been

received, whether that intimation comes from that party or from the operation of
tacsimile machinery or otherwise). -

144 Address for Service
For the purposes of this clause the address of a party is Its address shown in this security

or its registered office or principal place of business in Queensland as notified from time
to time to the Australian Securities and Investments Gommission.

145  Costs and Expenses
The Chargor shall pay, and if paid by the Chargee, reimburse 1o thé Chargee: -
14.5.1 The Chargee's reasonable costs and expenses relating to:

(a) stamping and registration of this document or any document
contemplated by it;

)] any consent, request for consent, communication, waiver of any right,
or the variation, replacement of discharge of this document, or any
collatera! security or any document contemplated by them;

{©) the exercise or attempted exercise Of the preservation of any rights of
the Chargee under this document andfor any coflateral security;
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1414  Jurisdiction

This Charga is to be governed by and construed in accordance with all applicable
Queensiand laws and the parties must submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the
Queensland Courls.
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EXECUTED as a DEED

EXECUTED as s DEED by PEREGIAN)
BEACH PTY LTD ABN 22 127 412 864 in)
accordance with section 127 of the)
Corporations Act 2001. : )

Sole Director / Secretaw

STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD
ABN 99 068 244 762 by its duly

R

constituted Attorney
. . Attorney
under Power of Aitorney No.
in the presence of: _ )
Withess
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714235916 Vd REGISTERED Recorded Date 22/12/2011 18:32 Page 1 of 1

SNIV-24

QUEENSLAND LAND BEGISTRY TRANSFER Fo TS
r i meame e amnn Oﬁyt”@lr 61 ouiPaged ot |

Chont Ne: )

Trarsaclion ¥o7 _‘S: Q g: _L .S_
Dty Paid § (‘Zﬁb&ﬁ»——
——

UTES sarremssimsmstasene R— "

g2 &
=

L e

nare: 22 L Signes: oo fof M o

BE 200

i/

1. Interest being transferred (if shares show as a fraction) Lodger {Name, address, E-malf & phone numégr) Lodger
Fee simple CHANDTRY L oL Cade
Nata: A Farm 24 - Propesty Information (Transtar) must be aftached lo Ihis Form l"' % E [ q eﬁ

wherg interest being transferred is “foe simple” {Land Title Act 1994), "State
leasehold” {Land Act 1994} or "Waler Allocalion” (Water Act 2000)

2. Lot on Plan Description County Parish Title Reference
LOT 74 on SP 236546 STANLEY HEDCLIFFE 50848722

3. Transferor
STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD ACN 068 244 762

4. Consideration
$2,685,537.02

5. Transferee Given names Sumame/Gompany name and number {include tenancy # more than one}

PEREGIAN BEAGH PTY LTD
ACN 127 412 864

6. Transfer/Execufion The Transforor transfers to the Transferee the estate and interast described in item 1 for the

cansideration and in the case of monetary consideration acknowledges receipt thergof. The Transteror declares that the information
contained in tems 3 to 6 on the attached Form 24 is true and correct. The Transferee states the Information contained In items 1. 2, 4
1o & on the attached Form 24 is frue and correct. Where a solicitor signs on behalf of the Transferee the information inflems 7, 2, 4 to

6 an Farm 24 is based on information supplied by the Transferee.
NOTE: Witnessing officer must be aware of thelr abligations under section 162 of the Land Title Act 1994.

Separate executions are required for each transferor and transieree. Signatorles are to provide to the witness,
evidence that they are the person entitled to sign the instrument (includjng proot of identity).

/4

ﬂ STOCKLAND NOATH LAKES PTY LTD ACN 055 244
7 BY |[T8 ,DULY, CO\\E;I'ITLFTED ATTORNEY

UNDEA PQWER OF

Maria Skouros / 5,? ATTORNEY NG. WHO DEGLAAES
HE=ME HAS RECEIVED NG NOTIGE OF REVOCATION
o

Commissioner for. Declarations........... OF THE POW
M RegstereaNoows KN Qdacch ..
Witnessing Officer (signature, full name & qualification) Execution Date ransferor's Signature

e 2l A [}

Withessing Officor {signature, full rame & qualiticalion) Execution Date ; 2
Vi Sitioer (snaiure. i name & aualiioation)  ExeculionDate  ‘Transieree's or Selicitor's Signature

(Witnessing officer must be in accerdance with Schedule 1
of the Land Tile Act 1994 eg Legal Practtioner, JP, C Deg)

<

© The State of Queensland (Dept of Naturai Resources and Mines) 2013

*Nota: A Solicitor is required 1o print full name if signing on behalf
of the Transleres and no withess fs required in this instance
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71423689  REGISTERED Recorded Date 23/12/2011 11:19 Page 1 0f 3 )

o SMV-25
(i) QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY MORTGAGE FORM 2 Version 4
Land Title Act 1994, Land Act 1984 and Water Act 2000 Duty imprint Page 1 of 3

AR

714236897

]

$132.50
23/12/2011 11:18
BE 300
;meinsite.
1. Interest being mortgaged (if share show fraction) Lodger {Name, address, E-mail & phone number) Ladger
FEE SIMPLE Thamsons Lawyers Code
Level 16 Waterfront Place
1 Eagle Street 08
BRISBANE QLD 4000
Ref: RXC/RIE 3329556
2. Lot on Pian Description County Parish Title Reference
LOT 74 ON §P 236546 STANLEY REDCLIFFE 50848722
3. Mortgagor

PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD
ACN 127 412 884

4, Mortgagee Given names

Surname/Company name and Number

(include tenancy if more than one)

THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED

ACN Q08 412 913

6. Description of debt or liability secured

The Money Secured, as defined by Document no. 704075487

6. CovenantExecution. The Mortgagor covenants with th
- * standard terms

sochedule

e Mortgagee in terms of: - 2he-attached-schedule“altached
document no. 704075487 and charges the estate or interest

described in item 1 with the repayment/payment to the Morigagee of all sums of money referred to In item &.

* dalete if not applicable
NOTE:

Witnessing officer must be aware of their obligations under section 162 of the Land Title Act 1994,

Separate executions are required for gach mortgagor and mortgagee. Signataries are fo provide to the witness,
evidence that they are the person entitled to sign the instrument {including proof of identity),

s

..................................................

............... AR =] o 2 R T3 T
Witnessing Officer (signafure, full name & qualification)

L/
odenrine Paus s Gortont | sotlC ok,
Witnessing Officer (signature, full name & gualification)
W”ttneséing Officer (signature, full name & qualification)
(Aftnessing officer must be in accordance with Schedule 1

of Land Title Act 1394 eg Legal Practitioner, JP, C Dec)
QUEENSLAND TITLES REGISTRY

L

€ Tha State of Queansland (Dant of Natural Rescurces and Minas) 2013

PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD ACN 127 412 864

22012 2o
Execution Date

.....

Dy O R AED

Sole Director

ot =s Mortgagor's Signature
Execution Date Mortgagor's Signafure
L3 Ve ey , SRt~ SRS W
Execution Date ¥ 's.or Solicitor's Signature
RO ALE A CHESAMIAY
-1 o (4
/ !

Execution Date “‘Mortgagee's or Solicitor's Signa'ﬂl.r'ex
*Note: A Soflcitor 1 required to print full name If signing on behalf
of the Mortgagee and no withess is required In this Instance
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”
QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY SCHEDULE / ENLARGED PANEL / FORM 20 Version 2
Land Title Act 1994, Land Act 1994 ADDITIONAL PAGE / DECLARATION Page 2 of 3
and Water Act 2000
Title Reference 50848722

THIS 1S THE SCHEDULE REFERRED TO IN ITEMS 5 AND 6 OF THE MORTGAGE DATED 22 [ \Z 2011
1. DEFINITIONS

The Mortgagor acknowledges that in this Mortgage, a reference to 'Loan Amount', 'Fund’, 'Constitutiors’, 'LM', and
'Custody Deed' have the meaning given to them in the Deed of Vartation between Mortgagee as Lender, the
Mortgagor as Borrower and David Richard Hawes, Glenside Group (QLD) Pty Lid, Lot 111 Piy Ltd, Green Square
Property Development Corporation Pty Lid as Guarantors and Glenside Group Pty Ltd, dated on or about the
date of this Morigage. :

2 GENERAL COVENANTS

21 The provisions of the Document are incorporated in and form part of this Mortgage as if fully set out in this
Mertgage.

2.2 The Mortgagor must comply with every provision of this Mortgage {including the provisions of the Document).
2.3 Before Executing this Mortgage, the Martgagor received a copy of this Mortgage and the Document and read and
understood them.

3. CONSUMER CREDIT LEGISLATION

The Mortgagor deciares that the Money Secured has been provided by the Mortgagee wholly or predominanty for
business or investment purposes and the Mortgagor warrants that the Censumer Credit Code has no application
to the Money Secured or this Morigage.

4. LIMIT OF LIABILITY — THE MORTGAGEE

4.4 Mortgagee

The Mortgagee enters into this Morigage, and the other parties to this Mortgage acknowledge that they are aware
that the Mortgagee enters into this Mortgage, only in its capacity as custodian of the Fund pursuant to the
Custody Deed and in no other capacity and the other parties to this Mortgage are aware of the limited scope of
the Mortgagee's obligations and powers under the Custody Deed.

4.2 Liability Limited

A liability arising under or in connection with this Mortgage is limited to and can be anforced against the
Mortgagee only to the extent to which it can be satisfiad out of the property of the Fund out of which the
Mortgagee is actually indemnified for the liability. This imitation of the Mortgagee's liability applies despite any
ather provision of this Mortgage and axtends to ali liabilities and obligations of the Mortgagee in any way
connected with any representation, warranty, conduct, omission, deed or transaction refated fo this Morigage.

4.3 No Right to Appoint or Prove

The parties to this Mortgage other than the Morigages may not sue the Morigagee personally or seek the
appointment of a liquidator, administrator, receiver or similar person to the Mortgagee or prove in any liquidation,
administration or arrangement of, or affecting, the Mortgagee.

4.4 Limit of Liability Not to Apply

The provisions of this clause 4 do not apply to any obligation or liability of the Mortgagee to the extent that it is not
satisfiad because under the Fund's Constitution, the Custody Deed, or by operation of law there is a reduction in
the extent of the Mortgagee s indemnification out of the assels of the Fund, as a resuit of the Mortgagee's fraud,
negligence or witful default.

property 752891 1
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4.5 Scope of Custody Deed

Despite any other provision of this Mortgage, if any obligation otherwise imposed upon the Mortgagee under this
Mortgage is, in the Mortgagee's opinion, inconsistent with, or beyond the scope of the Mortgagee 's obligations or
powers under the Custody Deed, that obligation, fo the extent of that inconsistency or to the extent that it is
beyond the scope of the Morigagee 's obligations or powers under the Custody Deed, must be performed by LM
in {ts capacity as the Responsible Entity of the Fund,

4.6 Inconsistency with the Custody Deed
Any failure by the Morigagee to perform an obligation which it determines Is either inconsistent with or beyond its
powers and obligations under the Custody Deed will not amountto a breach of or a default under this Morigage.
The Mortgagee's determination as fo whether an obligation otherwise imposed upon it under this Mortgage is
inconsistent with or beyond the scope of its obligations and powers under the Custody Deed Is final and binding
on all Parties.

4.8 Future Limitations
The Mortgagee is not obliged to do or refrain from doing anything under this Morigage (including incur any
liability) uniess the Mortgagee's liability is limited in the manner satisfactory fo the Mortgagee in its absolute
discrefion.

47 Agents

No attorney, agent, receiver or receiver and manager appointed in accordance with this Mortgage and each other
Security or otherwise has authority fo act on behalf of the Mortgagee in a way which exposes the Morfgagee to
any personal liability and no act or omission of any such person will be considered fraud, negligence or wilful
default of the Mortgages for the purpose of clause 4.4,

4.8 Failure by the Mortgagee
A failure by the Mortgagee to comply with, or a breach by the Mortgagee of any of its obiligations under this
Mortgage will not be considered to be fraud, negligence or wilful default by the Mortgagee if the relevant failure or

breach:

(a} arose as a resulf of a breach by a person other than the Mortgagee where the performance of the action
{the non-performance of which gave rise to such breach) is a precondition fo the Mortgagee performing
the said obiigation; or

(19} was in accordance with a lawful court order or direction or otherwise required by law.
4.9 Qverride Provision All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Mortgage are subject to this clause 4.

property/752891_1
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9§ SHANDTAYLOR

"LAWYERS

SETTLEMENT STATEMENT
VENDOR: STOCKLAND NORTH LAKES PTY LTD ACN 068 244 762
PURCHASER: PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD ABN 22 127 412 864
PROPERTY: LOT 74 ON SP 236546

SETTLEMENT DATE: 22 ECEMBER 2071

ADJUSTMENT DATE: 21 DECEMBER 2011

SETTLEMENT FIGURES

Purchase Price $2,380,000.00
Plus Additional Dwelling Amount {see below) $380.006.60

$2,760,006.00
Plus Headworks Adjustrent (see below) 528441850

$3,044,424 50
Plus Land Tax Adjusiment (see below) $10,832.84

$3,055,257.34
Plus GST $305.525.73

$3,380,783.07
Less Deposk $47,800.00
Balance Purchase Price $3,313,183.07
Instalment owing on Date for Completion $803,177.07
Deferred Payment 1 owlng on or before 15 February 2012 $300,000.00
Defesred Payment 2 owing on or before 29 February 2012 $500.000.08
Deferred Payment 3 owing on or before 30 June 2012 '$1,710,008.00

RATES ADJUSTMENT

No rates adjustment has been made on the basis the rates notice for the Praperty has not yet issued (as the
Property has only recently been subdivided). The parties agree to make the required adjustment when the new
rates notice issues in the future. In the event the next rates notice issues 0 the Vendor, the Vendor will
immediately forward this to the Purchaser for full payment by the Purchaser subject to canying out the nacessary
aciustmant. i

LAND TAX ADJUSTMENT

] Relevant unimproved value of the Property as at 30 June 2011 = $1,043,400.00

* Total Relevant Unimproved value of Vendor's land holdings &s at 30 June 2011 = $119,710,648.00

. Total Land Tax payable In relation to the Vendor's land holdings = $2,369,212.96
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. Land Tax payable in relation to the Properly = $1.043,400.00 / §119,710,648.00 x $2,369,212.96 =
$20,650.10

. The Purchaser's share is as follows: -

192days $20,650.10 = $10.832.84
366 days

HEADWORKS

in accordance with clauses 35.3 and 5.3 of the Coniract, headworks (water and sewerage) and bulk water supply
charges are payable by the Purchaser as follows:-

48 45 FT X {$1,893.00 + §641.14) = $122,355.80
221.7TEP X $731.00 - $162,062.70
TOTAL ’ - $28441850

The ET and EP sot out above are based on the ET and EP allogated under clause 41.2 of the Contract togethar
with the addifional ET and EP allocated under clause 59.3.1 of the Contract to reflsct the increased density of
apartments.

ADDITIONAL DWELLING AMOUNT

In accordance with clause 59.2 of the Caniract, the Purchaser must pay to the Vendor the amaunt of $17,273.00
(excluding GST) for each additional dweliing that is permitted to be developed on the Property in excess of 100
dwelfing units/ha, The total additional dwelling amount is caiculated as follows:-

. Bwellings permitted on the Property on the basis of 100 dwalling units/ha = 70 dwellings

. Dwellings permitied on the Propetty on the basis of the development permit obtained from Gouncit = 92
dwellings

. Additional dwellings permitted under development permit obtained from Council = 22 additional dwsllings
) Additional dwelling amount = $17,273.00 x 22 additional dweltings = $385,006.00

BANK CHEQUES REQUIRED ON DATE FOR COMPLETION

1.  Stockland Development Ply Limited $B03.177.07 /

OTHERITEMS REQUIRED AT SETTLEMENT
The Purchaser must provide to the Vendar at seitlement: -
1. the execuied and stamped Transfer documents in regisirable form;

2. ihe executed Mortgage in raglstrable form;

3.  ihs execuied Charge;

4, chegue in the amount of $7,267.90 made payable to “Departmént of Envirenment and Hssoumé\/

Management” in respect of the registration fees for the Transfer and Morlgage;

5.  cheque in the amount of $144.00 made payable to "ASIC" In respect of the registration fess for the Charge;
and
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8.  chegue in the amount of $5,775.00 (inclusive of GST) rade payable to “Shand Taylor Lawyers" in respact of /

the Vendor's lagal costs payable for the preparation, negotiation and execution of the Deed of Variation,
Martgage, Charge and Deed of Priarity.

The Vendor heteby undertakes o lodge the executed Transier and executed Morigage in the Department of
Environmani and Hesource Management immediately upon settlement being completed.

The Vendor must provide to the Purchaser af seflement a tax inveice in respect of the taxable supply.

DEFERAED PAVMENT 1

. In gccordance with clause 60,1 of the Contract the Deferred Payment 3 of $300,000.00 is to be paid on or before
15 February 2012,

DEFERRED PAYMENT 2

In accordance with clatuse 80.1 of the Contract the Deferred Payment 2 of $500,000.00 is to be paid an or before
29 February 2012,

DEFERRED PAYMENT 3

in accordance with clause 60.1 of the Gontract the Deferred Payment 3 of §1,710,006.00 is to be paid on or batore
30 June 2012.

LOCATION OF SETTLEMENT

Depariment of Environment and Resource Managemsnt
Lavel 11, 53 Albert Street
Brishans Qld 4000

TIVE OF SETTLEMENT

4.15pm
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PRIORITY AND SUBORDINATION DEED

THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED ACN 008 412 13 AS CUSTODIAN
EOR THE AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND - CURRENCY PROTECTED ARSN
133 497 817

LM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED ACN 077 208 451

THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED ACN 008 412 $13 AS CUSTODIAN
FOR THE LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND ’

PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD AGN 127 412 864
DAVID RICHARD HAWES

GLENDSIDE GROUP (QLD) PTY LTD ACN 144 620 093
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This Deed is dated ihegg day of )U“\i’ 0Ot S

BETWEEN: The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited AGN 008 412 813 as custodian for the LM Australian Income

Fund — Currency Protected ARSN 133 487 817 of- Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise Qild

4247 {“First Mortgagee”)

AND: LM Investment Management Limited ACN 077 208 461 of {evel 4, 0 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise
Qid 4217 ("LM")

AND: The Trust Company (PTALY Limited ACN 008 412 913 as custodian for the LM Managed
Performance Fund oi- Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, QLD 4217 ("Second Mortgagee”) -

AND Peregian Beach Ply Ltd ACN 127 412 864 ¢/ Rhodes Docherty & Co, Suite 202, 164A
Morna Vale Road, St lves NSW 2075 ("Security Provider™;

AND David Richard Hawes 10 Glenside Street, Balgowlah Heights NSW 2093 (“Security Provider’)

AND Glanside Group (Qid) Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 093 Suite 2, 23 Narabang Way, Belrose, NSW, 2085
(“Security Provider”)

WHEREAS:

A, The Security Providers have executed the First Morgagee Securities to securs to the First Mortgagsee

the payment of money and the performance of obligations.

B. The Security Providers have executed the Second Morigagee Securities to secure to the second

Morlgagee the payment of money and the performance of obligations.

C. The parties have agreed fo execute this Deed in order ta regulafe the priorifies which shall apply as
hetween the First Mortgages Security and the Second Mortgagee Security.

1. BEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

These meanings apply unless the confrary intenfion appears:

Authorised Officer msans:-

(8) in respect of a Security Provider, any director or company secretary, or any person from time
to time nominated by the Security Provider by a notice to the First Morigagee, as an
authorised officer to sign notices or documents in connection with any of the Deed, such
notice to be accompanied by specimen signatures cof those persons so appointed; and

)] in respect of LM or a Financier, any psrson whose title or office includes the word Director,
Associaie Director, Manager of Company Secretary or cognate expressions of any person
from fime ta Bime nominated as an authorised officer by LM or & Financier,

Borrower means Paragian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864,

Business Day means a day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which the Lender or frading

banks generally are closed ar obliged to close in Gold Coast, Queensland,

Custody Agreement means the custody agreement between the First Morlgagee and LM dated

4 Fepruary 1999.

Encumbranice means any:

(ay security for the payment of money or performance of obligations, including a mortgage, charge,

lien, pledge, trust, power or tifle retention or flawed deposit arrangement; or
{00024429.} oz
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{b) right, interest or arrangement which has the effect of giving another persen a preference, priority
or advantage over craditors including any right of set-off; or

(c) right that a person (other than the owner) has to remove something from land (known as a profit
4 prendre}, easemant, public right of way, restrictive or positive covenant, tease, or licence o
use or OGCUpY; or

(d) third pariy right or inferest or any right arising as a consequence of the enforcement of a
judgment,

of any agreemsnt to create any of them or allow them to exist,
Financler means either the First Mortgagee or the Second Morigagee.

Financiers’ Debts means the total at any ime of:

(2) all monetary cbligations which af that fime are secured under the First Martgagee Securities;
and :
(b} sl monetary obiigations which at that time are secured under the Second Mortgagee Securities.

First Mortgagee means The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 913 as Custodian for the
Australfan Income Fund ~ Currency Protected ARSH 133 497 @17.

First Mortgagee Debt means all amounts thah at any time; for any reascn or circumstance in
connaction with the First Morigagee Loan Agreement or any Transaction Document {as defined therain}
or this Deed (including transactions in connection with them), whether at law or otherwise; and whether
or not of a type within the contempiation of the parties at the date of this Desd:

(@) are payable, are owing but nof currently payable, are contingently owing, of remain unpaid, by a
Security Provider fo the First Morigagee, or

{D) the First Morigagee has advanced or paid on a Security Provider's behalf or at a Security
Provider's express or implied request; or

{c) the First Mortgages is flable to pay by reason of any sct or omission on 8 Security Provider's
part ot that the First Mortgagee has paid or advanced foliowing an act or omissionona Securlty
Provider's part; or

(d} are reasonably foreseeable as likely, after that fime, to fail within any of the above paragraphs.

This definition applies:

{ irrespective of the capacily in which & Security Provider or the First Morigages became
entitled to, or liable in respect of, the amount concerned;

(&) whether a Security Provider or the First Mortgages are liable as principal dabtor, or
surety of ctherwise;

{i3)] whether a Security Provider is liable alone, or together with another person,

{ivy even if a Security Provider owes an amount or obligatien to the First Morigages
hecause it was assighed to the First Marfgagee, whather or not:

{A} the assignment was before, ai the same time as, or after the dale of this
Deed; or

{B) a Security Provider consentad to or was aware of the assignment; or
() the assigned obligation was secured before the assignment;
V) aven if the First Mortgages Debt was assigned to the First Mortgagee, whether or not:

(A) a Security Provider or Second Mortgagee consented to or was aware of the
assignment; or

{00024429.}
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(B) any of the First Morfgagee Debt was previously unsecured;

{vi) if 2 Security Provider is a trustes, whether or not the Security Provider or Guarantor
has a right of indemnity from the trust fund. .

First Mortgagee Loan Agreement means the agreement entitied "Loan Agreement’ dated on or about
the date of this Deed between the First Morigages, LM investment Management Limited ACN 077 208
461, Peregian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864 the Borrower, David Richard Hawes ang Glenside Group
(Qld) Pty Ltd A.C.N. 144 820 093 for a Jvan amount of $1,710,008.00.

First Mortgagee Securities means the documents described in Scheduls 1 and Inciudes any Further
Assurance in connection with any of them.

Fund means the LM Australian income Fund — Curency Protected ARSN 133 497 17, LM Manage
Performance Fund. .

Further Assurance means any document, including an Encumbrance, given by the Seourity Provider o
the Guarantor to a Financier to provide more effective security to the Financier over the Sectured
Property for the payment of amounts which are secured by a Security or to enable the Financier to
exercise its rights in connection with a Security.

Proceeds means, in respect of the Second Mortgagee:

(@) any amournt recsived or recovered by the Second Mortgages in respect of its Subordinated
Diebt in the Winding Up of a Security Provider; and :

(b} any amouni received or recovered by the Second Morigages in connection with faiiure by itor a
Security Provider to comply with its obligations under this Dead.

Receiver includes a receiver ar recelver and manager.

Second Mortgagee means The Ttust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 813 as Custodian for the
LM Managed Performance Fund.

Second Mortgages Loan Agreement means the agreement entitled the toan Agreement dated 28
June 2010 on or bout the date of this Deed between the Seoond Mortgagee as Lender, Pereglan Beach
Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864 as Bomower and David Richard Hawes, Glenside Group (Qid) Pty Lid ACN
144 620 003, Lot 111 Pty Ltd ACN 108 102 005 and Green Sguare Property Development Corporation
Bty Lid ACN 104 248 053 as Guarantor as amended from time to time.

Second Mortgagee Securities means the documents described in Schedule 2 indudes any Further
Assurance in connection with any of them.

Secured Property means sll of the preperly and assets that are secured by a Security.

Security means any of the First Mortgagee Securities or the Second Mortgagee Securities.

Securlty Provider means the person or persons who provide a Security.

Subordinated Debt means in respect of a second morigage, all amounts that at any time, for any
roason or circumstance in connection with any agreement, transaction, instrument (whether ar not
negofiable), document, event, act, omission, matter or thing whaisoeves whether at Jaw or otherwise;

and whether or not of a type within the contemplation of the parties ai the date of this Deed:

(=) are payabie, are owing but not cusrently payable, are contingently owing, or remain unpaid, by a
Security Provider to that Second Mortgages; or

{b) the Second Morigagee has advanced or paid on: a Security Provider's behalf or at a Security
Provider's express or implied request; or

(c} that Second Morlgagee is liable to pay by reason of any act of omission on a Security
Providers part or that the Second Mortgages hag paid or advanced following an act or omission
on the Security Provider's part; or

(d} are reasonably foreseeable as likely, after that time, to fall within any of the above paragraphs.

$00024428.}
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This definifion applies:

Taxes means taxes, levies, imposts, charges and duties imposed by any autherity (including stamyp ang

0] imespective of the capacity in which a Security Provider or that Second Mortgages
becarmne entitled io, or liable in respect of, the amount concerned,

{ii) whether a Security Provider is liable as principal debtor, or surety or atherwise;
(iify whether a Security Provider is liable alone, or tegether with another person;

{v) gven if a Security Provider owes an amaunt or cbligation to that Secend Morigages
because it was assigned to the Second Mortgagee, whether or not: .

{A) the assignment was before, at the same time as, or after the dafe of this
Deed; ar

(2) the Security Provider consented {o or was aware of the assighment; or
C) the assigned obfigation was secured before the assignment;

{v} aven If the Subordinated Debt was assigned fo that Second Martgagee, whether or
net: ’

{A) the Security Provider or First Morigagee conseniad to or was aware of the
assignment; or

{=3] any of the Subordinated Debt was previously unsecured;

{vi) if 2 Security Provider is a frusige, wheiher or not the Security Provider or Guarantor
has a right of indemnity from the trust fund.

transaction duties) together with any relsted interest, penalties, fines and expenses in cennection with
them, except if imposed on, or calculated having regard to, the cvarall het income of the Financier.

Trust means the LM Managed Performance Fund.

Winding Up means, in respect of a company, the happening of any of the following:

(@)
(o}
©

o

an order is made that it be wound up; or
appointment of a liquidator to it; or

appointment of & provisional liquidator to it and the provisional iquidator is required to admit all
dabts to proof or pay ail debts capable of being admitted to proof propartionately; or

entry by it into a scheme of arrangement or deed of company arrangement, composition with, or
assignment for the bensfits of, all or any class of, its creditors.

1.2 {nterpretation

In this Deed unless the context requires otherwise:

{a)

{c)

(00024429 }

words lmporting:

(i) the singular include the plural and vice verss; and

{li} one gender shalt include ait other genders.

rafarences to persons or individuals shall include corporations and partnerships and vice versa,

references o clauses are references lo clauses of fhis Deed and references to sub-clauses are
references fo sub-clauses of this Deed;
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4.1

1.3

1.4
1.6

{d) references to this Deed and any deed, agreement ar instrument ghall be deemed to include
references 10 this Deed or such other deed, agreement or instrument as amended, novated,
supplemented, varied or replaced from time: 1o fime;]

e} references 1o any party o this Deed shall include its successors or permitied assigns,
) where there are two or more persons In a pary each are bound jointy and severally;
(@) reference to any legisiation or to any section or provision thereof shall include any statutory

madification or re-enactment thereof or any statutory provision substiiuted therefore and ordinances
by-faws requiations and other statutory instruments issued thereunder; and

{n) time shall be of the essence.

If any act to be done under this Deed or any payment fo be made by any pasiy under this Deed shall be
due to be done or pait on a day which is not a Business Day, the time and day for such act or payment
shall be by 2.00 p.m. local time in the place where the act Is to be done or the payment made on the
Business Day immediately following such day. ’ -

Headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the interpretation of this Deed.

Any payments required to be made by the Borrower or a Security Brovider to the First Mortigagee shall at
the First Mortgagee's discrefion be deemed not to have been made until the moneys are actually recelved
by the: First Mortgagee as cleared funds.

CONSIDERATION

Each Financier and Securlty Provider acknowledges entering info this Deed and incurring obligations and
giving rights under this Deed for valuable consideration.

PRIORITIES

The Financiers agree that the First Morigsgee Secuities have priority over the Second Morigagee
Securities for the payment of amounts secured at any time under the First Mortgagese Securitles,

These priorities apply to anything received (including money) from the disposat of, or other dealing with,
the Secured Proparty whether or not it ecours as a consequence of the enforcement of a Security.

PAYMENTS

42

4.3

Subordinated Debt not payable until First Mortgagee Debt repaid
The parfies agree that subject to clause 4.7 and clause 4.4 nons of the Subordinated Debt is payabig
until the First Mortgagee Debt is repaid in full.

This clause applies despite any contrary agreement between the Second Morigagee and a Secusity
Frovider.

Prohibition en payments

Where:

{c} an event of default or a potential event of default is subsisting under the First Mortgagee Loan
Agreement; and :

(dy the First Morigagee nietifies the Second Mortgagee:
0] of the existence of such an event of defauit or potential event of default; and
)] that the First Mortgagee Debt remains unpaid;

the Second Mortgagee agrees not to accept, and the Security Providers agree not to make, any
repayment or prepayment of any Subordinated Debt until such time as the First Morlgagee
natifies the Second Morigages that onie of the circumstances describad in () and (i) no longer
apply.

Second Morigagee's restrictions on a Winding Up

‘The Second Mortgagee may not prove, ar vote, in respect of its Subordinated Debt during a Winding Ug of
the Security Provider or Guarantor uniess it doss su in accordance with the First Mortgagee's instructions.
{The Second Mortgages agrees to do these things in accordance with the First Mortgagee's instructions.}

{00024429.}
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4.4  Effect of iodgement of proof

At the same time as the Second Morigagee lodges proof of its Subordinated Debt, the Subordinated

Debt (up to the amotnt daimed in the proof in accordance with the First Mortgagee's instructions) is

payabte. .
4.5  Becond Mortgagee will direct payment to First Mortgagee

I the First Mortgages asks, the Secand Mortgagee agrees to direct payment of its Procesds fo the First
Mortgagee, in the form prescribed by law of, if no form is preseribed, in a form approved by the First
Mortgagee.

4.6  Progesds held on trust

The Second Morigagee holds the Proceeds on trust for the First Morigages and the Second Mortgagee.
Immediately after raceipt of the Proceeds, the Second Morigagee agrees to deposit them into an
account specificaly designated by the First Mortgagee. The Secand Mortgagee agrees to distribute the
Praceeds:

(@} firet, to the First Mortgagee to satisfy the First Mortgagee Debf; and

{b} secondly, to the extant of any batence after repayment of the First Mortgages Debt, to itself to
satisfy its Subordinated Debi. ’

This clause establishes a frust over the Proceeds. It does not create a chargs over the Proceeds.

4.7  Second Morgages to pay over amounts racovered
If, an amount in tha form of money or any other properiy:-

(2) is received or recovered by the Second Morigagee on account of its Subordinated Debt {which
is not subject to the trust in clause 4.6); or

{b) is paid fo any person ofher than the Secand Morlgagee in connection with the Sesond
Mortgagee's Subordinated Debt; or .

{c) is set off against the Second Marigagee's Subordinated Debt (whether by operation of taw or
otherwise),

that Second Morigagee agrees to immediately pay to the First Morigagee an amount equal fo the lesser of:
(i) the amount received, recovered, paid or set off; or

{iiy the First Mortgagee Debt at that time.

5. CONSENTS

£1 Consent of Financlers

The Financiers agres that the creation or existence of a Security is not a breach of any ofher Security and
to the extent that the creation of existence of any Security requires the consent of either of them, consettt
is given.
52  Consent of each Security Provider
Each Security Provider:
(&) consents to, and acknowlsdge the order of priosities and subordination set out in this Deed; and

(b} acknowledges that this Deed doss not affect the obligations underiaken by it in each
arrangement betweaen a Finangler and the Security Provider.

(00024429 }
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8. BENEFIT OF PRIORITIES

51 The priotities set out in this Deed are not affected by any act of omission by a Financier or any other
person. For example, these priorifies are not affected by:

(2) any act or amission:
{iy by which the Financiers’ Debts are not yet payable; or
)} varying or releasing an Encumbrance (including a Security) or manetary obligation; or
(=) a paymant which may be received, or & credit which may be allowed, by 3 Financier from the
Security Provider or the Guarantor or any other persen in respact of the Financiers’ Debts; or
{c) a fluctuation in the amount secured by a Security from time to ime; or
{h a notice received by a Financler under a Security; or
{e) a notice received by a Financier of an Encumbrance; or
(T the order of execution or registration of a Securify or anything in a Security; or
() the order in which financial accommodation is provided or liabiliies (whether actual or

cenfingant) are incurred; or

{ any failure to enforce an Encumbrance (including & Security), chose in action or judgment.

7. SECOND MORTGAGEE SECURITIES

74 The Second Morgagee and each Security Provider agree not to exercise their rights under the Second
Marigagee Securlties to reduce or cancel the financial aceommodation available under the Second
Mortgagee Securifies without the consent of the First Mortgages (such consent may be given or refused by.
the First Morigages at its absolute discretion). .

8. CONTINUATION OF RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

8.1  Exceptio the extent this Deed expressly states otherwise, this Deed dogs not affect:

{a} the rights and remedies of the Financlers in connection with the Sscured Property, of
{b) & Security Provider's or Guarantor’s obligations in connaction with the Financiers' Debts or any
Security,

9.  ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER OF A SECURITY

8.1 Financier assignment

A Financier may not assign or otherwise deal with a Security or its Financler's Debts unless:
(=) the assignment or dealing ocours in connection with the enforcement of 2 Security; or

(b} the person obtaining an interest in that Security or Financier's Debt has entered into a deed
with each Security Provider (as applicabie) and the other Financier in which it agrees to be
bound by those provisions of this Deed which relate to the Financier who is dealing with that
Security or Financiers Debt, and has dalivered the deed to the other Financier.

8.2  Dealings by Security Provider

A Securlty Provider may not assign or otherwlse deat with its rights under this Deed or allow any interest in
It o arise or be varied, without the Firat Mortgagee's consent.
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10. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES AND RESTRICTIONS

10.1 Representations and warranties

Each Financier represents and warranis {except in relation to matters disclosed to the other and accepted
by the other in writing) that:

{a)

(b

{0)
()

{e}

)

10,2 Reliance

it has been incotporated in accordance with the laws of its place of incorporation, is validiy
existing under those laws and has powar and authority to carry on its business as it is now
haing conducted; and

it Is the legal and beneficial owner of, and has good tle to, each Security held by it free from
Encumbrance; and .

it has power o enter into this Deed and comply with its obligations under it and

this Deed and the priorities and subordination established by it do not contravene its constituent
documents {if any} or any law or obligation by which it is bound or ta which any of its assets are
subject, or cause a limitation on #s powers (or, to the extent applicable, the powers of its
directors) to be exceeded; and

it has in full force and effect the authorisations necessary for it to enter inte this Deed, to comply
with its ehligations and exercise its rights under Tt and allow it fo be enforced; and

its obfigations under this Deed are valid and binding and are enforceable against it in
accordance with its terms.

Each Finandier acknowledges that the other has entered into this Deed in reliance on the representations
and warrantles in this clause 10.

10.3  Sscond Mortgagee's restrictions

Without the consent of the First Morigagee and except as otherwise expressly permitted by this Deed the
Second Mortgagee may not, and may not agree to, do any of the following while the First Mortgagee Debt
remains outstanding or is avallable to be drawn under the First Mortgagee Loan Agreement:

(=)

()

{©)

4
{e)

N

{g)

{06024429.}

demand or accapt payment, repayment of or otherwise aflow #ts Subordinated Debt 1o be
satisfied or extinguished; or

sue far or take any other action fo recover its Subardinated Debt (other than enforcement of the
Security in atcordance with the terms of this Deed}; or

vary, replace, trangfer, waive or release any of its rights or cbligations in respect of its
Subordinated Debt or rescind or ferminate any agreement In connection with its Subordinated
Debt; or

exervise any right of sat off in respect of its Subordinated Dabt, or

ralse financlal accommaodation from, or otherwise creale or increase indebtedness fo, the
Security Pravider or Guarantar; or

requisklon or convene a mesting to consider:

(i) a resolution for the winding up of a Security Provider; or
(H) any arrangement, assignment or composition or protection from any creditors under
statuts for a Security Provider; or ’
(i) a resolution for the appolntrment of an administrator to a Security Provider; or
vote:
6] for the winding up of 2 Security Provider or Guarantor; or
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{ii} in connection with any proposed arrangement, assignment or composition or
protection from any credifors under statute for a Security Provider; or

(b} apply 10 the court ta wind up, or prove in the winding up of, a Security Provider or Guarantor.

10.4 Security Provider's and Guarantor’s restrictions

Without the consent of the First Morgagee ard except to the extent otherwise expressly permitted by this
Deed a Security Provider may not, and may not agree to, do any of the following while the First Martgagee
Dabt remains outstanding or is available fo be drawn under the First Morigagee Loan Agreement:

{a) pay, repay, purchase or otherwise satisfy or extinguish any Subordinated Debt: or

(b) vary, replace, transfer, waive, release or affect any of iis rights or obiigations in respect of any
Subordinated Diebt or rescind or terminate any agreement in connection with any Subordinated
Debt; or

(c) exercise any set off In respact of any amouni payable to it by the Second Mortgages; of

{d) enter into any arangement, take any sction or fail to do anything. which results in any

Subordinated Debt not being subordinated to the First Morigagee Debl.

14. FINANCIERS' RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS

11.1  Delivery of docurnents of tifle

Al documents of fitle in respect of the Securad Property which are in the possession ar conftrol of the
Second Mortgagee raust be delivered by the Second Mortgagee o the First Morigagee who agrees i
hold them untit it receives all amounts for which it has priority under this Dead. The First Mortgagee
agrees to then defiver ail documents of title In respect of the Secured Property which it holds to the
Sacond Morigages.

11.2  Notice of default and enforcement
Each Financier agrees to notify the other Financier:

(2} i_f_a Security Provider is in default under its Security; and

[{s)} before # takes any action to enforce a Security {including appoirtment of a Receiver).
{However, if the Financier reasonably considers that any delay in taking the action wouid
adversely affect the value of the Financier's Securities or the Secured Property, the Financier
agrees o notify the other Financier of the action faken as soon as reasonably practicable after
taking the action).

If a Financier notifies the ofher Financier that it intends fo appoint & Receiver aver the Secursd Properly
and the othier Financier advises that it alse intends to do se, the Financiers agree to consult in good faith to
agree on the appoiniment of the same person as Receiver. !f the Financiers do not agree within thres
days of teceipt of the notice under this clause, the Second Morigagee agrees to appoint the same
Receiver as tha First Morigagee appolnts, Failure to comply with this clause does nof affect the priorities
under this Deed.

11.3  Consent to enforcement of Securities

Despite clause 11.2, the Second Mortgages agrees to obtain the consent of the First Morigagee before it
takes action to enforce a Security (inckuding the appointmant of a Recelver) if the action fo be taken by the
Second Merigagee, if iaken, could sxclude the First Mortgagee from taking corresponding action under
one af its Securities or could adverssly affect the corresponding action taken by the Flrst Mortgagee.

1.4 Distributions
The Financlers agree io co-operato with each ather in the distribufion of the proceeds of.

(=) anfarcement of each Security; or

{s}} the sale of, or dealing with, the Secured Property,
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+0 ensure the distribution is in accordance with the priorities and subordination set outin this Deed.

11.5  Appertionment

if a Seclrity becomes enforceable and the Financlers' Debts are comprised of separate amounis awing
on different accounts, then, in relation to a Security held by a Financier. the Financier may determing the

manner in which it will apportion the priorities conferrad on it by this Deed betwesn those respective
amounts owing (but subject to and consistently with the terms of that Security).

11.6  Marshalling

A Financier need not resort to any Encumbrance it holds for the payment of amounts secused under a
Security held by it before the Financler rescris to any other Encumbrance it holds for the payment of the
same amounts.

117 Excess receipts - contingencies

If a Financier receives an amount as part of its entitiement under this Deed on account of an amount which
may become due for paymeant by the Financler to a third party and the rights of the third party to claim on
the Einancier ends without a claim for the full ameunt received having been made, then:

(a) it the other Financier has priority for payment under this Deed, the Financier agrees to pay to
the other Financier an amourt equal to that amount {(or such lesser amount as is required if fhe
other Financiecs priority is for an amount less than the amount which the Financier would
otherwise be obliged to pay fo the other Financier). or

{b) if the Finandier has priority for payment under this Deed, it agrees to apply In or towards
payment of the amount for which it has priority under this Deed, an amount equal to that
amount {or such lesser amount as is required if the Financler's priotity is for an amount less
than the amount which the Financier would otherwise be obliged to apply).

11.8 Release of Securities

If on the disposal of, or other desling with, the Secured Property, whether or not on enforcement of a
Securlty, the proceeds are insufficient to pay io the Second Mortgagee the amounts secured by the
Second Mortgagee Securities (or that one of the Second Morigagee Securities which relates fo the
Secured Property), then the Second Mortgagse agrees to give to the First Mortgagse:

{a) a discharge of the Secont Morigagee Securifies (or & discharge of that Security which relates
to the Secured Property); and

(b} any other document required by the First Mortgages to enable the First Mortgagee to provide
clear title to the Secured Properly {0 a purchaser.

The Second Mortgagee need not comply with this clause uniil the First Mortgagee establishes fo the
remsonable satisfaction of the Second Mortgagse that the disposal of, or other deating with, the Secured
Property has been made in geod faith. The Second Martgagee need net release any personal obligation
fram the Security Provider or any Guarantor or any other person.

11.9 Financial accommodation raised by Recelver
The Second Mortgagee consenis to any Recaiver appoinied by the First Mortgages raising financiaf
accommodation from the First Mortgagee but only if the Receiver is empowered to do so under a Security,
14.10 Reinstaternent of rights

Under faw relating to insolvency, & person may claim that a fransaction (including 2 payment) in
connection with this Deed or the First Mortgagee Debt is void or voidable. 1fa claim is made and ughsld,
concaded or compromised, thern:

(a) the First Maorigagee Is immediately eniitfed as against the Second Mortgages fo the rights under
this Deed in respect of the First Mortgagee Dabt fo which it was entifled mmediately before the
transagction; and

(b) on request from the First Mortgagee, the Security Provider, the Guarantor and the Second
Mortgagee agress to do anything (including signing any document) to restors to the First
Mortgagse any right the First Mortgagee held from the Security Provider or Guaranior of the
Second Morigages immediately before the fransaction.
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12.

The Second Mortgagee’s and Security Provider's and the Guarantor's obligations under this clause are
continuing obligations, independant of the Second Morigages's and Security Provider's and Guarantor's
other obligations under this Deed and continue after this Deed ends.

PAYMENTS

13.

Each of the Second Morigagee and each Securlty Provider agrees to make payments under this Deed:

(2) in full without set off or counterciaim, and without any deduction in respect of Taxes unless
prohibited by law; and

(b) if the payment relates o the First Morigagse Debt, in the currency in which the payment is due,
and otherwise in Austrafian dolfars in immediately available funds, -

SECURITY PROVIDER’S AGREEMENT AND CO-OPERATION

14.

Each Security Provider agrees:
(a) to co-operate in the implementation of this Deed, and

(b} that if a Financier makes a payment to the other Financier in accordance with this Deed on the
disposat of, or other deeling with, the Securad Property (whether or not on enforcement of a
Security), then the Financier whe receives the payment wilt be taken to have received the
payment from the Security Provider (as appropriate}.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

14.1

14.2

18,

Appointment

The Second Mortgages irrevacably appoints the First Morigages and each Authorised Officer of the First
Martgagee individually as the Second Morigagee's attorney and agrees lo ralify anvthing an Atierney does
under clause 14.2.

Powers

An Aftorney may untit she First Morigagee Debt has been repaid in full:
(a) do anything which the Second Mortgagee can lawfuily autharise an attorney fo do including:

{i) ifa Security Provider becomes insclvent, canvene end attand meetings and vote in
respect of its Subordinated Debt; and

(i) if a Security Provider becomes insulvent, exarcise a right of proof of the Second
Mortgages or do anything which the Attorney believes is expedient to give effect to
any of the First Morigagee's rights under this Deed.
These things may be done in the Second Wortgagee’s name or the Attormey's name, and they include
signing and delivering documents, starting, conducting and defending legat proceedings and recaiving any
distiibutions on its Subordinated Debt; and '
(8) delegate their powers (including this power) and reveke a delegation; and

{b} exercise their powers even if this involves a conflict of dity or they have a parsonal interest in
doing so.

If an Atormey is nof enfiied to exercise its rights as Aftorney under clause 14.2(a)i), the Second
Marigagee agrees to exercise those rights as the First Morigagee divects.

COSTS

15.1

Each Security Provider agrees to pay or reimburse each Financler on demand for.

(&) the Financlers costs, charges and expenses (including those incurred in connection with
advisars) in making, enforcing and doing anything in connaction with this Deed including legal
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costs in accordance with any writien agreement as to legal costs or, if no agreement, on
whichever i the higher of a full indemnity basis or soficitor and own cilent basis; and

(b) all guties, fees, Taxes and chargse which are payable in sonnection with this Deed or &
payment or recelpt or ather transaction centernplated by it.

i6. FURTHER STEPS

181 I @ Financier asks, esch Security Provider and each other Financier agree to do anything {such as
obtaining consents, signing and producing documents, producing receipts and getting documents
compieted and signed).

() fo bind it and give effect to this Deed; or

{b} to enable the Finandier to register & Security to refiect the priorities set out in this Deed; or

{c) to enable the Financier to exercise the Financier's rights in connection with the Secursd
Property.

17. NOTICES

171 A notlcs or other communicaion connected with this Deed (including any document relating to a
proceeding in a court) (“Natice”) has no legal effect unless it is in writing.

17.2  In addition to any other method of service provided by law, the Nofice may be:

(a) sent by prepaid ordinary mail to the address for service of the addressee, if the address is in
Australia and the Notice is sent from within Australia;

(b) sent by prepaid airmail to the address for service of the addressee, if the address is outside
Australia or if the Notice is sent from outside Austraiia,;

{©) sent by facsimile to the facsimile number of the addresses, or

(d} delivered at the address for service of the addresses.

17.3 A Notice must ba signed by the sender (if an Individual} or an Authorised Officer of tha sender and marked
for the attention of the person identified in the Detalls,

i7.4 A certificats signed by the sender (if an individual) or an Authorised Cfficer appointed under a Transaction
Docurttent staling the date on which & Notice was sent or delivered undet clayse 17 is prima facie
evigence of the date on which that Notice was sent or defiverad.

17.5 If the Nofice is sent or delivered in a manner provided by clause 17, it must be treated as given to and
received:

(a) if mailed from within Australia fo an address in Australia, on the second Business Day {at the
address to which it is mailed) after maiting;

{b} if mailed to an address outside Australiz or mailed from outside Australia, on the ffth Business
Day (at the address to which it is mailed) after maiiing;

(c) if sent by facsimile before 5 p.m. on a Business Day at the place of recaipt, on the day i is ssnt
and otherwise on the next Business Day =t the place of recaipt; or

{d) if otherwise delivered, upon defivery.

17.6 Despife clause 17.5(c) a facsimile is not treated as given or received unless at the end of the transmission
the senders facsimiie machine issues a report confirming the transmission of the number of pages in the
Notice,

17.7 A Notice sent or delivered in a manner provided by clause 17 must be treated as validly given io and
received even if:

(a) the recipient has been liquidated or deregistered or is absent from the place at which the Notice
is delivered or fo which it is sent; or
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{b) the Naotice Is returned unciaimed.
17.8 A Notice connected with this Deed is imevacable and is not effective until actually received by the Lender.

17.9 A party may change ifs address for service or facsimile number by giving Notice of that change o each
cther party,

17.40 If a party to which a Nofice is intended to be given consists of more than one (1) person then the Notice
must be treated as given fo that parly if given 1o any of those persons.

18. GENERAL

18.1 Continuing subordination
The subordination in clause 4 is a confinuing obligation despite any intervening payment, settlernent or
other thing.

18.2 Prompt performance ]
1f this Deed specifies when a party agress io perform an obligation, the party agress to perdform it by the
time specified and the parly agrees to perform all other obligations promptly.

18.3 Consents
Each parly agrees to comply with all conditions in any consent any other party gives in connection with this
Deed.

18.4 Set-off

A Financier may set off any amount owing by the Financier to a Security Provider {whether or nat due for
paymani) against any amount due for payment by the Security Pravider (as appropriate) to the Financler
under this Dead.

The Financier may do anything necessary to effect any sat-off under this clause {including varying the date
for payment of any amount cwing by the Financler to the Security Provider or Guarartor (as appropriate)
and making currency exchanges). This clause applies despite any other agreement between a Security
Pravider or Guarantor and the Financier.

18.5 Discretion in exercising rights
Each Financier may exercise 2 right or remedy or give or refuse its consent in any' way it considers
appropriate {including by impesing conditions), unless this Deed expressly states otherwiss.

18.6 Partial exercising of righis
If a Financiar does not exercise a right or remedy fully or at a given time, the Financier may still exercise it
later.

18.7 No iiability for loss
A Financier is not tiable for joss caused by the exercise or attempted exercise of, failure fo exercise, or
delay in exercising, a right or remedy. ’

18.8  Conflict of intorest
Each Financier's rights and remedies under this Deed may be exercised even If this involves a confiict of
duty or the Financier has a personal interest in thelr exercise.

18,9 Remedies cumulative
The rights and remedies of each Financier under this Desd arg in addition to other tights and remadies
given by law independently of thig Deed.

18.10 Other Encusnbrances or judgments
This Dead does not merge with or adversely affect, and is not adversely affected by, any of the following:

{a) any Encumbrance or other right or remedy to which a Financier is ontitled; or
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(o)) a judgment which a Financier obfains against 2 Security Provider in cornection with the First
Martgagee Debt or Subordinated Debt.

Each Financier may still exercise its rights under this Deed as well as under the judgment, other
Encumbrance or the right or remedy. : ‘

18.11 Inconsistent iaw
To the axtent permitted by law, this Deed prevails to the extent it is inconsistent with gny faw.

18.12 Supervening legistation
Any present or fuiure legislation which operates to vary the obligations of e Security Provider of the
Guarantor or & Financler In connection with this Deed with the result that a Financier's rights, powers of
remedies are adversely affected (including by way of delay o posipenemant) is exciuded except to the
extent that its exclusion is prehibited or rendersd insffective by law. .

18.13 Variation'and waiver
Uniess this Dead expressly states otherwise, a provision of this Deed, or right created under i, may not be
waived or varled except in writing signed by the party or parties to be bound.

18.14 Counterparts
This Deed may consist of a number of copies, each signed by one or more parties to the Deed. If so, the
signed coples are treated as making up the one documant.

18.15 Governing faw
This Deed is governed by the law in force in Queensland. Each party submits to the non-exclusive
jurisdictian of the courts of that place.

18.16 Senving documents
Without preventing any other method of service, any document in a court action may be served on a parly
by being delivered or left at that paity’s address for service of notice under clause 17.

18.17 information

Each Financier is entitled, and hereby agrees, that, upon written request of the other Mortgagee it will kesp
the other Einancier informed as to the amournit af the principal, Interest and other moneys for the fime being
owing under its Security and ali other facts and circumstance relating to its Security and to the Financier.

18, LIMIT OF LIABILITY — THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED

14,1 Custodian of the Fund and the Trust

To the extent that the Trust Gompany {PTAL) Limited entars into this Deed in its capacity as the custodian
of the Fund, clauses 19.2 o 19.41 shalt apply. To the extent that The Trust Company {(PTAL} Limited
enters into this Deed in its capacity as custodian af the Trust, clauses 18.12 10 18.21 shall apply.

19.2  Custodian — LM Australian Income Fund -~ Gurrency Protected ARSN 133 497 917

The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited enters info this Deed, and the other parties to this Deed acknowledge
that they are aware that Trust Company (PTAL} Limited enters into this Deed, only in its capacity as
custodian of the Fund pursuant to the Custody Agresment and in no other capacity and the other parties to
this Deed are aware of the limited scope of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited 's obfigations and powers
under the Custody Agreement.

193  Liebility Limited

A fiabifity arising under or in connection with this Deed is limited to and can be enforced against Trust
Company {PTAL} Limited only-to the extent fo which it can be satisfied out of the property of the Fund out
of which Trust Company (PTAL) Limited is actually indemnified for the liability. This limitations of Trust
Company (PTAL) Limited ‘s kability applies despite any other provision of this Dead and extends to alt
fiabilities and obligations of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited in any way connected with any representation,
warranty, conduct, omission, deed or transaction related to this Dead.
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19.4

19.5

19.6

187

19.8

199

18.10

19.11

1812

No Right to Agpoint or Prove

The parties to this Deed other than Trust Company (PTAL) Limited may not sue Trust Company (PTAL}
Limited personally or seek the appointment of a liquidator, administrator, receiver or similar person to
Trust Company (PTAL) Limited or prove in any fiquidation, administration or arrangement of, or affecting,
Trust Company (PTAL) Limited.

Limit of Liability Not to Apply

The provisions of this clause 19 do not apply to any obligation or fiability of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited
10 the sxtent that it is not satisfied because under the Fund's Constitution, the Custody Agreement, or by
operation of law there is a reduction in the extent of Trust Company {PTAL) Limited's indemnification out of
the assets of the Fund, as a result of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited's fraud, negligence or wilful default.

Scope of the Custody Agreement

Despite any other provision of this Deed, if any obligation otherwise imposed upon Trust Company (PTAL)
Limited under this Deed Is, in Trust Company (PTAL) Lirnited 's opinion, inconsistent with, or beyond the
scope of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ‘s obligations or powers under the Custody Agresment, that
cbligation, to the extent of that inconsistency or to the extent that it is beyond the scope of Trust Company
(PTAL) Limited ‘s obligations or powers under the Custody Agreement, must be performed by LM in is
capacity as the Responsible Entity of the Fund.

Inconsistency with the Custody Agreement

Any failure by Trust Company (PTAL) Limited to perform an obligation which it determines is elthe

inconsistent with or beyond its powers and obligations under tha Custody Agreement wifl not amountto a
breach of or a default under this Deed. Trust Company (PTAL) Limited 's determination as 1o whether an
obligation otherwise imposed upon It under this Desd is inconsistent with or beyond the scope of its
obligations and powers under the Custady Agreement is final and binding on gl Parties.

Future Limitations

Trust Company (PTAL) Umited is not obliged to do or refrain from doing anything under this Deed
{inciuding incur any kability) unless Trust Company (PTAL) Limited 's liability is limited in the manner
safisfactory to Trust Company (PTAL) Limited in its absolute dissretion. -

Agents

No attorney, agent, raceiver or receiver and manager appointed In acrordance with this Deed and each
other Security or otherwise has authority to act on behalf of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited in 2 way which
exposes Trust Company {PTAL) Limiad to any personai liability and no act or omission of any such person
witl be considered fraud, negiigence or wiiful default of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited for the purpose of
clause 22.5.

Failure by Trust Company (PTAL) Limited

A faiture by Trust Company (PTALY Limited to comply with, or a breach by Trust Company (PTAL) Limited
of any of its obligations under this Deed will not be considerad to be fraud, negligence or wilful default by
Trust Company (PTAL) Limited if the relevant failure or breach: ‘

{a} arcse as a result of a breach by a person other than Trust Company (PTAL) Limited where the
performance of the action {the non performance of which gave rise to such breach) is a
precondition to Trust Company (PTAL) Limited performing the said obBgation; or

)] was in accordance with & lawful court order or direction or otherwise required by law,

Override Provision

All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Deed are subject to this clause 19,

Custodian — LM Managed Perforrnance Fund

The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited enters into this Deed, and the other parties to this Deed acknowledge
that they are aware that Trust Company (PTAL) Limited enters into this Deed, only in its capacity as
custodian of the Trust pursuant to the Cusfody Agreement and in o other capacity and the cther parties to
this Deed ase aware of the jimited scope of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited 's cbligations and powers
under the Custody Agreement.
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18.13 Liability Limited

A fiability arising under or in connection with this Used is fimited to and can be enforced against Trust
Company (PTAL) Limited only to the extert fo which it can be satisfied out of the property of the Trust out
of which Trust Company (PTAL) Limited is actually indemnified for the Hiability. This Emitation of Trust
Company (PTAL) Limited 's liability applies despite any other provision of this Deed and extends to all
flabilities and obligations of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited in any way connected with any representation,
warranty, conduct, omission, dead or transaction related to this Deed.

19.14 No Right to Appoint or Prove

The parties fo this Deed other than Trust Company (PTAL) Limited may not sue Trust Company (PTAL)
Limifed personally or seek the appointment of a liguidator, administrator, receiver or similar person to
Trust Company {PTAL) Limited or prove in any fiquidatior, administration or arrangement af, or affecting,
Trust Company (PTAL) Limited.

19.15 Limit of Liability Not to Apply

The provisions of this clause 19 do not apply o any cbligation or liability of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited
to the extent that it is not satisfied becauss undsr the Trust's Constitution, the Custody Agreement, or by
opsration of law there Is e reduction in the extent of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited's indemnification out of
the asseis of the Trust, as a result of Trust Company (PTAL} Limited's fraud, negligence or wilful default

19.16 Scope of the Custody Agreement

Daspite any other provision of this Deed, if any obligation otherwise imposed upon Trust Company (FTAL)
Limited under this Desd is, in Trust Company (PTAL} Limited ‘s opinion, inconsistent with, or beyond the
scope of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited 's cbligations or powers under the Custody Agreement, that
obligation, to the extent of that inconsistency or to the extent that i is beyond the scope of Trust Company
(PTAL) Limited 's obligations or powers under the Custody Agresment, must be performed by LM in its
capacity as the Responsible Entity of the Trust.

19.17 [nconsistency with the Custody Agreement

Any failure by Trust Company (PTAL} Limited to perform an obligation which it determines is either
inconsistent with or beyond its powers and obligations under the Custody Agreement wilt not amount fo a
breach of or a default under this Dead, Trust Company (PTAL} Limited’s determination as to whether an
obligation otherwise imposed upon it under this Deed is inconsistent with or beyord the scope of ifs
obligations and powers under {he Custody Agreement is final and binding on all Parfies.

18.18 Future Limitations

Trust Company (PTAL) Limited is not obliged to do or refrain from doing anything under this Deed
{including incur any liability} unless Trust Company (PTAL} Limited 's fiability is limited in the manner
satisfactory to Trust Company (PTAL} Limited intits absolute disgretion.

19.19 Agents

Mo attorney, agent, receiver or receiver and manager appointed in accordance with this Deed and each
other Secwrity or otherwise has authority to act on behalf of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited in & way which
expeses Trust Company (PTAL) Limited to any personal liability and no act or omission of any such person
wilt be considered fraud, negliigence or witful default of Trust Company (PTAL) Limited for the purpose of
clause 19,15,

16,20 Failure by Trust Compary (PTAL) Limited

A faiture by Trust Company {PTAL) Limited to comply with, ot a breach by Trust Company (PTAL} Limited

of any of lts obligations under this Deed will not be considared te be fratid, negligence or wiliul default by

Trust Company (FTAL) Limited if the relevant failure ar breach:

(a)  arose as a result of a breach by a person other than Trust Company (FTAL) Limited where the
performance of the action (the non performance of which gave rse to such breach) is a
precondition to Trust Company (PTAL} Limited performing the said obligation; or .

[(s)) was in accordance with a lawful court order or direcfion or otherwiss required by law.

19.21 Override Provision
All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Deed ere subject fo this clause 19.
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20. LIMIT OF LIABILITY ~ LM

201

202

20.3

204

20.5

206

20.7

208

208

2010

Responsible Entity and Trustee

To the extent that LI enters into #his Deed in its capacity as the responsible entity of the Fund, clauses
20,2 to 20.6 and clauses 20.12 to 20.13 shall apply. To the extent that LM enters into this Deed in its
capacity as the trustee of the Trust, clauses 20.7 0 20.13 shall apply.

Responsible Enfity

LM entars into this Deed, and the other partias to this Deesd acknowledge thet they are aware that LM
enters into this Deed, in its capacity as the responsible entity of the Fund, pursuant fo the constifution of
the Fund (the Constitution) and the other parties to fhis Deed are aware of the limited scope of LM's
obligations and powers under such Fund.

Liability Limited .

A lizbility arising under or in connection with this Deed is limited to and can be enforced against LM only to
the extent to which it can be safisfied out of the praperty of the Fund cut of whicl LM is actuaily
indemnifisd for the particular fiability. This fimitation of LM's liability applies despite any other provision of

this Deed and extends to all iabilities and obligations of LM in any way connected with any representation,
warranty, conduct, omission, deed or transaction related to this Deed.

Mo Right to Appoint or Prove

The parties to this Deed other than LM may not sue LM personally or seek the appointment of a Higuidator,
administrator, receiver or similar person to LM or prove in any liguidation, administration or arrangement
of, ar affecting, LM.

Limit of Liabliity Not t¢ Apply

The provisions of this clause 20 do not apply to any obligation or #ability of LM to the extent that it is not
satisfied because under the Fund's Constifution or other constituent documents, or by operation of iaw,
there is a reduction in the extent of LM's indemnification out of the assets of the Fund, as a result of LM's
fraud, negligence or wilful default

Inconsistency with the Constitution

Any failure by LM fo perform an obligation which i determines is elther inconsistent with or beyond its
powers and obligations under the Constifution wilf not amount to a breach of or a default under this Deed.
LM's determination as to whether an obiigation otherwise iImpased upon it under this Deed is inconsistent
with or beyond the scope of its obligations and powers under the Constitution is final and binding on all
parties. :

Trustee

LM also enters into this Deed, and the other parties to this Deed acknowledge that they are aware that LM
enters info this Deed, in its capacity as the frustee of the Frust, pursuant fo the constitufion of the Trust
{the Trust Deed) and the cther parties fo this Deed are aware of the limited scope of LM's ohligations and
powers under such Trust

Liability Limited

A liability arising under or in connection with this Deed is limited fo and can be enforced against L only to
the extent to which it can be satisfied out of the propery of the Trust out of which LM is actually
indemnified for the particular liability. This limitation of LM's fiability applies despite any other provision of
this Deed and extends 1o all lizbllities and ohligations of LM In any way connected with any representation,
warranty, canduct, omission, deed or transaction refated fo this Deed.

No Right to Appoint or Prove

The parties to this Deed other than LM may not sue LM persenally or seek the appointment of a liquidator,
administrator, recaiver or similar person to LM or prove in any liquidation, administration or arangement
of, or affecting, LM.

Limit of Liability Not to Apply

The provisicns of this clause 2C do not apply fo any oblgation or liability of LW to the extent that it is not
satisfied because under the Trusts Trust Deed or other constituant documents, or by operation of law,
there is a reduction i the extent of LM's indemnification out of the assets of the Trust, as a result of LM's
fraud, negtigence ar wilful default.

{00024429.}
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20.11 Inconsistency with the Trust Deed

Any faifure by LM to perform an obfigation which it determines is either inconsistent with or beyond its
powers and obligations under the Trust Deed will not amount to a breach of or a default under this Deed.
Lid's determination as to whether an obligation otherwise imposed upon it under this Deed is inconsistent
with or beyond the scope of its obligations and powers under the Trust Deed is final and binding on all
parties.

20.12 Future Limitations
M is not obiiged to do or refraln from doing anything under this Deed {including incus any liability) unless

LM's tability is imited In the manner satisfactory to LM in its absoiute discretion.

20.13 Override Provision
Al of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Dead are subject fo this clause 20.

21. LW'S AUTHORITY TO ACT FOR FIRST MORTGAGEE

211 The Parties acknowledge that LM shall on behalf of the First Mortgagee exercise all of the rights, powers,
consents, controls and approvals pursuant to or under this Deed and each other Security and all acfions
taken by LM shall be deemed 1o have bsen authorised by the First Morigagee without any Seclirity
Provider or any other person dealing with LM being concemned to enquire as fo the authority of LM to act
on behalf of the First Morfgagee in respect of this Deed and each other Security or any matter or thing
arising In relation thereto.

21.2 Forthe purposes of this Deed and each other Security:

(@  all payments 0 be the Second Morigagee or a Security Provider under this Peed and each other
Security shall be made to LM on behalf of and for the aceount of the First Martgages;

{} afl demands upon the Second Mertgages or a Security Provider shail be mada by LM;

(o) =l documents, notices, consents or approvals o be given o or by the Securify Provider under this
Beed and each other Security shall be given to or by LM;

(d}  al rights conferred upon the First Morgages under this Deed and each other Security shalt be
exercisable by LM;

{&)  all communications in relation to this Deed and each other Security or any transaction confemplated

by this Deed and eash other Security shall be directed by the Second Morlgagee or any Security

Provider to LM on behalf of the First Martgages;

a receipt issued by LM shall as against any Security Provider constitute a good and valid discharge on
behalf of the First Mortgagee to any person dealing with the First Mortgagee.

EXECUTED AS A DEED

EXECUTED by THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) )
LIMITED ACN 008 412 913 as First Morlgagee, by lts )
Attormey who state that is has had no ‘notg‘ce of revocation )
of the Power of Attorney dated __ 52-1 i A3y }

¥

VD Vel o
registered in Queensiand as dealing | / s L -

THH i : ey R *"
number 4 '}A; o

tortrpees” \@

WICK1 SKDBRAS

P,

.

",
e

{00024428.}
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EXECUTED by THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL)
LIMITED ACN 008 412 813 as Second Mortgagee, by its

3
Attomey who state that is has had no notice of revocation ) ) s ]
of the Fower of Attormey dated 4 7. 112 01 /) /lzé A~ N
P ‘\ Lf,f e

registered in Clueensland as dealing number
L RS teny :

R T A s—
VICK: SKODRAS

EXECUTED by LM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENTLTD )
ACN 077 208 461in accordance with section 127 of the )
Corporauons Act 2001 (Cthy: J
)
)

Head of Property snd Infrastructure Cusiody Services

J«r’wuf

£ 2 ? l.u’
Signature of Direcior/Secretary

Fliitng Ak Salets

Full name of Director/Secretary

EXEGUTED by PEREGIAN BEACH PTY LTD ACN 127 )
412 864 accordance with section 127 of the Corporations )
Act 2001 (Cth): )
: )

}

Signature of Director/Sscretary

Full iame of DirectorfSecretary 0.
Fult name of Diractor

SIGNED SEALED AND DELIVERED by  DAVID )
RICHARD HAWES in the presence of )

)
Slgnatur@. of thess " Adrienne Anders’on

A Justice of the Peace in and for
. theState of New South Wales

Soherto‘rl.iustlce af ihe Peace No: 148579
EXECUTED by GLENSIDE GROUP (QLD) PTY LTD )
ACN 144 620 093 in accordance with section 127 of the }
Corpaorations Act 2001 (Cth): 3

P

y 774

T T S YL X LT LIRSRTI LT T ] T A T
Dirgctor — Signature (@‘L‘{, DirectorlSecreta{y Signature
DS B
Print full neame Print full name

{00024429 )
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SCHEDULE 1

First Morigagee Securities

{8) Loan Agreemsent beiwesn The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 913 as Lender and LM
Invesiment Management Limited ACN 077 208 481 as responsible entity for the LM Ausfrafian Income
Fund ~ Currency Protected ARSN 133 487 917, Peregian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864 as Borrower
and David Richard Hawes and Glenside Group Pty Ltd ACN 144 820 003 as Guarantor dated on or
about the date of this Guarantes under which the Lender has conditionally agreed to provide a loan
facility to the Borrower.

(b} Mortgage over the property situated at Lot 74 Endeavour Dive, Morthiakes Qld more fully described as
Lot 74 on 8P 236546, County of Stanley, Parish of Redcliffe Title Reference 50848722

{¢) Deed of Guarantee and indemnnity giver by Da\rld Richard Hawes and Glenside Group {Qfd) Pty Ltd
ACN 144 620 083 in favour of the Lender.

(d} General Security Deed by Peregian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 884 in favour of the Lender over all the
property, assels and undertakings of Peregian Beach Py Ltd ACN 127 412 864.

{e} General Security Deed by Glenside Group (Qid} Ply Ltd ACN 144 620 093 in favaur of the Lender over
all the property, assets and undertakings of Glenside Group (Qid} Piy Lid ACN 144 820 083

{f) Deed of Priority and Subardination intended to be executed on the same date as this Agreement by The
Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN Q08 412 913 as custodian for the LM Australian Income Fund —~
Currency Protected ARSN 133 497 917, The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited as custodian for the LM
Managed Performance Fund, Peregian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864, David Richard Hawes and
Glenside Group (Qid) Pty Lid.

(g) Any other documents or security that is provided in suppart of or refating to the Loan Agresment or other
security.

(00024429.)
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(8)

{b)

{c)

(d

(e

0}

{9)

(h}

®

{00024429.}

SCHEDULE 2
PART 1

Second Mortgagee Securities

Loan Agreement between The Trust Gompany (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 813 as Lender
and LM investment Management Limited ACN 077 208 461 as responsibie entity for the EM
Managed Performance Fund, Peregian Beach Ply Lid ACN 127 412 864 as Borrower and
Davig Richard Hawes and Glenside Group Piy Lid ACN 144 620 093, Gresn Square Proparty
Development Corporation Pty Lid ACN 104 248 053 and Lot 111 Pty Lid ACN 1 06 102 005 as
Guaranter daied 28" June, 2010 undsr whict the Lender has provided a loan facility to the
Borrower.

Motigage over the properly situated at Lot 74 Endeavour Dive, Northlakes Qid more fully
described as Lot 74 on SP 2365848, County of Stanley, Parish of Redclifie Tille Reference
50848722 )

Dead of Guarantes and Indemnity given by David Richard Hawes and Glenside Group (Qld)
Pty Lid ACN 144 620 093, Green Square Property Development Gorporaion Pty Ltd ACN 104
248 053 and Lot 111 Pty Ltd ACN 1086 102 005 in favour of the Lander.

Fixed and Floating Charge over Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412 864 in favour of the
Landar over all fne property, assets and undertakings of Persgian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412
864.

Fixed and Floafing Charge over Glenside Group (Qid) Pty Lid ACN 144 620 093 in favour of the
Lender over all the property, assels and undertakings of Glenside Group (QId) Pty ifd ACN
144 G20 093

Fixed and Floating Charge over Green Square Properly Development Corporation Pty Ltd ACN
104 248 053 in favour of the Lender over all the property, assets and undertakings of Graen
Square Praperty Development Gorporation Pty Ltd ACN 104 248 063

Fixed and Floating Chérge ovar Lot 111 Pty Ltd ACN 106 102 G05 in favour of the Lender over
4l the property, assats and undertakings of Lot 111 Pty Ltd ACN 106 102 005.

Dead of Priority and Subordination intended to be executed on the same date as ths
Agreement by The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited ACN 008 412 913 as custodian for the LM
Austrafian income Fund ~ Currency Protected ARSN 133 497 817, The Trust Company (PTAL)
Limited as custedian for the LM Managed Performance Fund, Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN
127 412 864, David Richard Hawes and Glenside Group (QId) Pty Lid.

Any other documents or security that is provided in support of or refating to the Loan Agreement
or other security.
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?1 4 574 198 VO RE STERED Recorded Date 18!0'(1201 2 08 39 F

QUEENSLAND LAND REGESTRY RELEASE OF MORTGAGE FORM 3 Version 4
TS AARE e EWabal Rt 00D Page 1 of 1

Iﬂl || it _1

D X if partiat release of the mortgage.

1 32 5@ Dty tmprint s required i thisls a full retaase.
18/@7/2@12 G6:39
GC 100
information about privacy tn NREW sae the deparments watsne.
1. DBealing number of mortgage being released Lodget (Name, address, E-maxi & phane numbar) Lodger
LM lngestment 2L Code
Mortgage No. 714235917 Leaeh 1, 3% Gaui)

Suriess Porackse. vt 41 8{
P S LSOO C{Cq :
& cﬁo-@kﬁ) brnowstralis - Goms

2. Lot on Plan Description County Parish Title Refarence
Lat 74 on SF 236546 STANLEY REDCLIFFE 50848722
3. Morigagor

# Cnly complete if notraleasing the debt for all martgagers

4, Mortgagese
Stackiand North Lakes Pty Ltd ABN 99 0668 244 762

5. Discharge/Execution by Mortgagee
The Mortgagee releases the morigage as a charge on the land described In item 2,

Witnesging officer must be aware of his/her obhgat;ons under section 162 of the Land Title Act 1834

W _ & Stockland Nerth Lakes Ply Lid ABN 99 068 244
. & 7 782 By Ms duly consiuted Alfomey

Rtk Alun Qirgdlerd, Undor Power of Alfomey

Marla Skouros No. ~z1852x§90 , who dedares helshe has
‘ teceived tice of ravocation.
preas "'"ﬁvm‘nmisstonerfm‘ BECfEfaﬁbn's é /& jved nio nolicy of revocation,
_Registored No. 6148 - ﬁ O 1 "
WEtnessmg Off‘ cer (signature, fuil name & qua!nﬁcahon) Exscution Date M gagee S Signature

{Wilnessing officer must be fn actordance with Schisduls 1
of Land Title Act 1994 ¢g Legal Pmctifoner, JP, G Bec)

I_mtea_1.nac Eil 4
@& The State of Queensland (Dapt of Nalural Resources and Mines) 2013
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QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY MORTGAGE FORM 2 Version 4

Land Title Act 1994, Land Act 1994 and Water Act 2000 Duty imprint Page 1 of 4
18/@7/20 12 B8 ;3
C 309
1. Interest being mortgaged (f share show fraction) Lodger {Name, address, E-mail & phone number)  Lodger
FEE SIMPLE \nuésimerd gl.  Code

ggene%!g 8% Cau;;l @Xﬁ‘d “ar OC L{ &
€: c,tourah Imausivaha. (om

2. Lot on Plan Description County Parish Title Reference
74 on SP 236546 Stanley Redciiffe 50848722
3. Mortgagor
Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412 864
4. Mortgagee Given names Surname/Company name and Number ' (include tenancy if mere than ane)
The Trust Company (FTAL} Limited
ACN 008 412 913

5. Description of debt or fiability secured

The Money Secured as defined by document number 704075487
8. Govenant!Exacutlon The Moﬂgagor covenants with the Mortgagee in terms of. - “the-atiached-schedule;
hed-schod g erc-document-ne - *standard terms document no. 704075487 and charges the

estate or mterest descnbed in |tem 1 with the repayment!payment to the Mortgagee of all sums of money referred fo in
ftem 5. = defete if not applicable

NOTE: Witnessing officer must be aware of their obligations under section 162 of the Land Title Act 1994,

Separate executions are required for each mortgagor and mortgagee. Signatories are to provide to the
witness, evidence that they are the person entitled to sign the instrument (including proof of identity).

EXECUTED by Peregian Beach Piy Ltd
ACN 127 412 864 in sccordance with
section 127 of Comorations Act 2001

(Cth):

SoleDurectorSngn ature

.................................................... Adelenne Anderson B 72 o < oY =< G
Suite 501, Level 5 Name of Sole Director ‘

........................................ -Cantral-Avenue, Manly) NSW. 2095 4 ! JeeresieteraraiteeravEaEberEereee e aaan st e et hes bt e rRnartasts
Witnessing Officer (stgna?%tfgg BRRS fAvaificaiank 7S Execution Date *Mortgagor's Signature

THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL UMTED

ACN uas41zs1ab3 ¥ Bl dwﬂg

Soinn Newlsy under’ P«p*‘- whehy g Infree

TE"S‘B’SWOL‘,

. AARON.TRAN

LEGAI PRA € “TITIONER by 2 1o rty and Infrastructure Custody Services
W'tnesslng Oft" cer (sagnature full name & qualn" catlon) Execution Date *Mortgagea's of Solicitor's Signat'ur'a
- [Witnessing afficer must be in accordance with Schedule 1 *Note: A Solicitor is required 1o print full name if signing on behalf
of the Land Title Act 1994 eg Legai Praciitioner, P, C Decd) of the Marigagee and no wilness is required in this instance
I{00024432.}
515

© The State of Queensland (Dept of Natural Resources and Mines) 2013



QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY ENLARGED PANEL Form 20 Version 2
Land Tile Act 1994, Land Act 1994 and Water Act 2000 Pags 2 of 4

[ | 1

Title Reference [50848722 ]

This is the Schedule referred to initems 5 and 6 of Morigage dated 2012,
1. Definitions

1.1 The Morigagor acknowledges that in this Mortgage, a reference to “Loan Amount”, “Fund”, “Custody Agreement’
and “Transaction Documents” have the meaning given to them in the Loan Agreement between The Trust
Company (PTAL} Limited ACN 008 412 913 as Lender and LM Investment Management Limited ACN 077 208
461 as Responsible Entity for the LM Australian Income Fund — Cumency Protected ARSN 133 497 817 and
Peregian Beach Pty Lid ACN 127 412 864 as Borrower and Glenside Group {Qid) Pty Ltd ACN 144 620 693 and
David Richard Hawes as Guarantors, dated on or about the date of this mortgage under which the Lender has
conditionally agreed to provide a loan facility for an amount of $1,710,006.00 {One million seven hundred and ten
thousand and six dollars) to the Borrower.

2. General Covenants

2.1 The provisions of the Document are incorporated in and form part of this Mortgage as if fully set out in this
Merigage.

-2.2 The Mortgagor must comply with every provision of this Mortgage {including the provisions of the Document).

243  Before executing this Morigage, the Mortgagor received a copy of this Mortgage and the Document and read and
understood them.

3. Consumer Credit Legislation

341 The Mortgagor declares that the Money Secured has been provided by the Mortgagee wholly or predominantly
for business or investment purposes and the Mortgagor warrants that the Consumer Cradit Code has no
application to the Money Secured or this Morigage.

4, Lirmit of Liability — The Mortgagee

4.1 The Mortgagee enters into the Transaction Documents, and the other parties to this Morigage acknowledge that they
are aware that the Mortgagee enters into the Transaction Documents, only in its capacity as custodian of the Fund
pursuant to the Custedy Agreement and In no other capacity and the other parties to fivis Mortgage are aware of the
fimited scope of the Morigagee's obligations and powers under the Custody Agreement.

42 A liability arising under or in connection with the Transaction Documents is limited to and can be enforced against the
Morigagee only to the extent to which it can be satisfied out of the property of the Fund out of which the Morigagee is
actually indemnified for the fiabllity. This limitation of the Mortgagee's liability applies despite any other provision of
the Transaction Documents and extends to all liabilities and obligations of the Mortgagee in any way connected with
any representation, warranty, conduct, omission, deed or transaction related o this Mortgage and each cther
Transaction Document. .

4.3 The parties to this Morigage other than the Mortgagee may not sue the Mortgagee personally or seek the
appointment of a liquidator, administrator, Receiver or gimilar person to the Mortgagee or prove in any liquidation,
administration or arrangernent of, or affecting, the Morigagee.

4.4 The provisions of this clause 4 do not apply 1o any obligation or liability of the Mortgagee to the extent that i is not
satisfied because under the Fund's Constitution, the Custody Agreement, or by operation of law there is a reduction in
the extent of the Mortgagee's indemnification out of the assets of the Fund, as a result of the Mortgagee's fraud,
negligence or wilful default,

45 Despite any other provision of this Mortgage, if any obligation otherwise imposed upon the Morigagee under this
Morigage Is, in the Morigagee's opinion, inconsistent with, or beyond the scope of the Mortgagee's obligations or
powers under the Custody Agresment, that obligation, to the extent of that inconsistency or to the extent that it is

heyond the scope of the Mortgagee's obligations or powers under the Custody Agreement, must be performed by LM
in its capacity as the Responsible Entity of the Fund.

1(00024432,} . Lﬁ.l
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46

4.7

48

4.9

410

5.

52

53

5.4

55

58
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Title Reference {50848722 |

Any failure by the Morigagee to perform an obligation which it determines is either inconsistent with or beyond its
powers and obligations under the Custody Agreement will not amount to a breach of or a default under this Morigage.
The Morigages's determination as to whether an obligation otherwise imposed upon it under this Morigage is
inconsistent with or beyond the scope of its obligations and powers under the Gustody Agreement is final and binding
on all Parties.

The Mortgagee is not obliged fo do or refrain from doing anything under this Mortgage (including incur any liabliity)
untess the Mortgagee's liability is limited in the manner satisfactory to the Mortgagee in its absolute discretion.

No attomey, agent, Receiver or receiver and manager appointed in accordance with the Transaction Documents or
otherwise has authority fo act on behalf of the Mortgagee in a way which exposes the Mortgagee to any personal
liability and no act or omission of any such person will be considered fraud, negligence or wilful default of the
Moartgagee for the purpose of clause 4.4. :

A failure by the Mortgagee to comply with, or 2 breach by the Mortgagee of any of its obligations under this Mortgage
will not be considered to be fraud, negligence or wifful default by the Mortgagee if the relevant failure or breach:

(a) arose as a result of a breach by a person other than the Mortgagee where the performance of the action (the
_non-performance of which gave rise to such breach} is a precondition to the Mortgagee performing the said
obligation; or

o) was in accordance with a lawful court order or direction or otherwise required by law.
All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Mortgage are subject o this clause 4.
Limit of Liability — LM Investment Management Limited ACN 077 208 461 ("LM"}

The pariies to this Morigage acknowiedge that they are aware that LM's liability under this Mortgage and the
Transaction Documents is limited to its capacity as the Responsible Entity of the Fund, pursuant to the Conetitution of
the Fund (‘the Constilution”) and the other parties to this Morigage are aware of the imited scope of LM's obligations
and powers under such Fund. :

A lability arising under or in connection with the Transaction Doguments is limited fo and can be enforced against LM
only to the extent to which it can be satisfied out of the property of the Fund out of which LM is actually indemnified for
the particular liability. This limitation of LM's liability applies despite any other provision of this Mortgage and extends
to all liabilities and obligations of LM in any way connected with any representation, warranty, conduct, omissian,
deed ortransaction related to this Morigage.

The parties to this Mortgage may not sue LM personally or seek the appointment of & liuidator, adminisirator,
Receiver or similar person to LM or prove in any liquidation, administration or amangement of, or affacting, LM.

The provisions of this clause 5 do not apply to any obligation or liability of LM to the extent that it is not satisfied
because under the Fund's Constitution or cther constituent documents, or by operation of law, there is a reduction in
the extent of LM's indemnification out of the assets of the Fund, as a result of LM's fraud, negligence or wilful default.

Any failure by LM to perform an obligation which & determines is either incansistent with or beyond its powers and
obligations under the Constitution will not amount to a breach of or a default under this Mortgage. LM's determination

as to whether an obligation otherwise imposed upon i under this Mortgage is inconsistent with or beyond the scope
of its obligations and powers under the Consiitution is final and binding on all parties. ‘

L s not obliged to do or refrain from doing anything under this Mortgage (including incur any liability) unless LM's
liability is limited in the manner satisfactory to LM in its absolute discretion.
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Title Reference [§0848722 ]
57 No aftomey, agent, Recsiver or receiver and manager appointed in accordance with this Morigage and each other
Transaction Document (if any) or otherwise has authority to act on behalf of LM in & way which exposes LM fo any

personal liability and no act or omission of any such person will be considered fraud, negligence or wilful defautt of LM
for the pumpase of clause 5.4.

58 A failure by LM to comply with, or a breach by LM of any of its obligations under this Mortgage and each cther
Transaction Document (if any} will not be considered to be fraud, negligence or wilful default by LM if the relevant
failure or breach:

(a) arose as a resuft of a breach by a person other than LM where the performance of the action (the
non-performance of which gave rise to such breach) is a precondition to LM performing the said obligation; or

b) was in accordance with a lawful court order or direction or ctherwise required by law.

59 All of the terms, clauses and conditions of this Marfgage are subject to this clause 5.

fovozs43z) | S.J.El
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QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY MORTGAGE PRIORITY FORM 30 Version 3
1 and Title Act 1904, Land Act 1984 and Water Act 2900 Page 1 of 1
| 7 1 4 - Lodger (Name, addréss, E-mail & ghone number) Lodger -‘
3 6029 1 9 LM thvestment Management Pty Lid Code
PO Box 485 GC485
SURFERS PARADISE QLD 4217
62728 {253137 18 py: 5584 4500
GC 341 clough@imaustralia.com
Formaore informalion 00Ut privacy s v srs wn -«
wabsie. ) . .
Grantor'a Ausiralian Credit Licenca (if any)
Grantee's Australian Credit Licence (if any)
1. Priority particulars 2. Consequent Order of Priority
Morigage No. being postponed 714236887 .......e..ccn. Dealing Nog. 714574189 ccvvveveirar v -
Mortgage No. recelving priority 714574199 ....ceeuvv..- TAA23BBY7 wrereevomrceecrumressrssssmass
3. Lot on Plan Description County Parish Title Reforence
LOT 74 ON SP236546 . STANLEY REDCLIFFE 50848722
4. Grantor (Morigages of the mortgage bsing postponed)
THE TRUST COMPANY {PTAL) LIMTIED ACN 608 412 913
§ Grantee (Manéagea of the mortgage recelving peority)
THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMTIED ACN 008 412913,
6. RegquestExecution
The Grantor grants 16 the Grantee the pricrity of morigages as indicated in item 2.
Witnessing officer mist be awara of hisiher obligations undar section 162 of the Land Title Act 1864
The Trust Company (PTAL) Ltd ACN 008 412 913
by its Attomey | Trent Franklin who
states that it has had no notics of revecation of the
Fower of Attorrioy datéd 12/07/2010 registered in
o W R e glgnaturs Queenstand as dealing 0. 713351029
_ o Trent Frankfin
sereerarereiseren AR OMNLER AN i il rame WManager Property and Infrastructure Custody Services
LEGAL PRACTITIONER quaiification 39 [ 276 7-7”‘2""“*
Wiinessing Officer Execution Rate Grantor's Signature
{Witnesslg officer must be-in accordance with Schedule 1 ‘ B N
of Land Title Act 1994 eg Legal Pracfilioner, JP, C Dag) The Trust Company (PTAL) Lid ACN 008 412 913
by its Attorngy JohmHawly—-Trent Franklin who
states that it has had no notice of revocation of the
Power of Attorney dated 12/07/2010 registered in
Queensland as dealing no. 713351029
Trent Franklin
Manager Property and Infrastructure Custody Sarvices
L PRAC 11 110 E | 7
LECAI PRA? N R wequalification Sy 7 r2 e e
Witnassing Oﬁlcer Execution Date Grantes's Signafure

Witnessifig officer must be i accordance with Schedule 1
of Land Titls Act 1894 &g Legal Practitoner, JP, C Dec)

& The Stalte of Queensiand {Dept of Natural Resources and Minas) 2013
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SMV-30

744602919 VO REGISTERED Recorded Date 02/08/2012 68:50 ¢
T

3
QUEENSLAND LAND REGISTRY MORTGAGE PRIORITY FORM 30 Versiors 3
{ and Title Act 1994, Land Act 1924 and Water Act 2000 Page 1 of 1

” m ” " ” "m ” " 714602919 Hpimnmmmn !

SURFERS PARADISE QLD 4217

$137.10  pp: 5584
02728 H: 5584 4500
s 2@12 f8:%0 C!uugh@‘mausﬂaﬁacﬂm

Formnre Informatson SOOUL PHVALY 05 totme o0er —<n &

wabsie. ]

Gianter's Australian Credit Licence (if any)
Giantee's Australian Credit Licence (if any)

1. Priority particulars 2. Consequent Order of Priority _
Mortgage No. being postponed 714236897 ......... Dedling Mog, 714574180 es
Mortgage No. recelving priority 714574199 ..o T1423BB07 ceovevnerrvomssiimsnenssispiensiensas

3. Lot on Plan Description Gounty Pajris,ﬁ Title Reforence
LOT 74 ON SP236546 STANLEY REDCLIFFE BOBAB722

4. Grantor (Morigagee of the morgage being postponed)
THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMTIED ACN 008 412 913

5. Grantee _(Mnrtéagee of the mangagé recelving prcrity)
THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL} LIMTIED ACN 008 412 813,

6. Reguest/Execution
The Grantor grants to the Grantee the priorily of mortgages as indicated in ftem 2.

Witnessing officer mist be aware of hisier obligations under section 162 of five Land Title Act 1684

The Trust Company (FTAL) Ltd ACN 008 412 913
by its Altorney Jelm-Newly~/ Trent Franklin who
statas that it has had no notice of ravoeation of the
Power of Aftorney dated 12/07/2010 ragistered in
Queensgtand as dealing no. 713351029

Trant Franklin
Manager Froperty and Infrastructuris Custody Services
Do 712 il 7:2:—“— : —.
WItnessiﬂg Ofﬁoer Execution Date Gramtor's Slgnatum
(Withesslng officar must be:in accardance with- Schedule 1

of Land Title At 1894 eg Legal Practitioner, JP, G Dec) The Trust Company (PTALY 1id ACN 008 412 913

] by its Aftomey Jehn-MNewby—Trent Frariklin who
states that it ias had no rotice of revocation of the
Powar of Atomey dated 12/07/2010 registered in
Queenstand as dealing no. 713351029

s eeresetbecernss gt et ermsenseseens s stmstrssrensersmesn o SIS Trent Franklin i
ROTRAN ..................... P— Manager Froperty and Infrastruclure Custody Servioes |
LEGAI ..... P‘A NL ....... equaliication I (2 O et i
Witnessing Ofﬂcer Exectition Date Grantee's Signature

(Witnessing offiter wuat i8 n accordance with Schedule 1
of Land Title Act 1524 sg Legal Pracliioney, JP, C Decy i

510

@ Tha State of Quesnsiand (Dept of Natural Resources and Mines) 2013



SMV-31

Date: December 12, 2011

LM Investment Management Lid

Bomrower 1D 134747
Bavid Hawes Statement beging 01/01/2004
avid T 121272011
Peragian Beach Pty Lid Statement ends 1z -
POBOX 539 Interest rate 25.00%
BALGOWLAH NSW 2093 Max Approved Amount $6,000,000.00
Loan balance $947.205,28D8
Commencement date 010772010
Explry Date 011172013
Loan Summary Account number 100289644
Part of Lot 74 Endeavour Blvd, North Lakes, Qild MPF2-434
Brought forward balance 000
Interest on Loan 126,664.53
Loan Draw 820,630.75
Glosing balance as at 12!12]2011 $947,285.2808

www. Maustralia.com

AUSTRALIA HEAD OREICE Level4 9 Baach Rd Sudfers Paradise Qld 4217 Ausiralia T +61 7 5564 4500 F +51 7 §502 2605 Freacall 1800 062 918 E mei@lMaustraile.com

ABN 88 077 208 461 Responisibia Eniily end Aualsalian Finaniclal Services Usensee No, 220251
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Date: December 12, 2011

LI Investmneni Management Lid

01/01/2004

Statement hogins
Statement ends 121212011
Loan Transactions Account number 100289644
Date Transaction description Debits Credits Balance
01/07/201G  Brought forward balanca 0.00DB
01/07/2010  Loan Draw 75,100.60 75,100.00DB
Shand Taylor Trust AIC $47,600.00
Peregtan Baach Piy Ltd $27,500.00
1872010 Interest on Loan 874.45 75,974.4508
05/08/2010 Loan Draw 29,370.82 405,345.27DB
Pervaglan Beach Ply Lid $29,370.82
18/08/201C  Intereston Loan 1,874.68 107,219.95D8B
30/08/2010 Loan Draw 7.955.00 115,174.95DB
Paraglan Beach Ply Ltd $7,920,00
Suncorp Fee $85.00
18/08/2010 Interesten Loan 2.380.11 117,665.0608
23/05/2010 Loan Draw 4.495.81 122,080.87DB
DLA Phillips Fox $4,495.81
23/09/2010  Loan Draw 31,419.96 153,470.83D8
Paraglan Beach Piy Ltd $31,384.26
Suncorp Fee $35.00
18102010  Interest on Loan 3,030.82 156,501.3508
28/19/2010  Loan Draw 32,392.50 188,893.85DB
Peregian Baach Ply Ltd $32,352.50
Suncorp Berk Fee $30.00
18/11/2010  Interest on Loan 3,788.90 192,682.75DB
191172010 Loan Draw 28,054.50 220,737.25D8
Paraglan Beach Py Lid $28,054.50
168/12/2010  Inferest on Loan 4,516.48 225,253.1308
211212010 Loan Draw 30,278.50 255,532.2308
Peregian Beach Py Lid %30,278.50
18/01/2091  Interestant Loan 5,363.47 260,805.70D8
20/01/2011  Loan Draw 4,897.00 265,802.700B
08/02/2011 Loan Draw 600.00 266,492.70DB
DLA Phliips Fox $500.00
15/02/2011 Loan Draw 14,465.50 280,958.20D6
18/02/2011 Interest on Loan 5,672.85 286,630.55DB
18/03/2011  Intereston Leoan 5497.03 292,127.88DB
217032011 Loan Draw 53,871.50 345,999.38D8
Pereglan Beach Ply Lid %53,671.50
15/0472011 Loan Draw 24 628.38 370,827.76108
Pereglan Beach Fly Lid $24,626.38 R
18/04/2011 Intereston Loan 7.286.47 377.914.2308B

wiww. Liaustralia.com

AUSTRAUA HEAD OFFICE Level 4 9 Beach Rd Surfars Paratlise Qld 4217 Australla T+81 7 5584 4500 F +61 7 5392 2505 Fraacall 1900 062 £10 E mall@LMauslralia.com

ABN 6B 077 208 464 Responelblo Enfily and Austrelian Financlal Servicas Licansasflp, 220281

522



Date: Dacember 12, 2091

LI Investment Management Ltd

Statement hegins 01/01/2004
Statement ends 121212011

Lozn Transactions Acecount numbar
Daie Transaction description Debits Credits Balance
18/08/20%1  Intereston Loan 7,765.36 385,679.56DB
25/05/2011  iLoan Draw 8,087.50 391,767.09DB
18/6/2011  inferest ori Loan 8,280.16 400,058.2508
22/06/2011  Loan Draw 65,108.00 485,164.250B
07/07/2011 Loan Draw 2,016.30 487,180.550B
140772011 Loan Draw 97,472.25 564,352.80D8

Pereglan Beach Pty Lid $ar, 17225
18/07/2011  Intersst on Loan 574,014.00DB
29/0712011  Loan Draw 671,180.25D8
18/08/2011  Interest on Loan - 684,705.34DB
18/08/2011 Loan Draw 22,730.00 M- 707,435.3408
18/09/2011  Interest on Loan 16,020.89 ) 722,456,23D8
18/10/2011 Interest on Loan 14,844.99 737,301.2208
20/10/2011  Loan Draw B1,762.74 8198,063.96D8
Pereglan Beagh Py Lid 381,762.74

t&8r11/2011 . 17,279.08 836,243.04D8
24{1112011 110,852.24 947,285.28DB
$947,295.2808

A\ 2o

wwrw.LMaustratia.com

AUSTRALIA HEAD OFFICE Level 4 B Beach Rd Surlars Paradise Qld 4217 Australla T 461 7 5584 4600 F +81 7 5592 2505 Freccall 1800 062 910 B mali@LMaustraba.com

ABN 88 077 208 481 Reeponcit

Entity and Australl

Financial Bervices Licanaae MNo, 220234
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'Loan Statement

Date?8/03/2013

LM Investment Management Lid

Page 2175

Account Number MPF0000463

Date Trans #

Transaction Description

Debits Credits Balanca

170712011

1/8712011  00C040

7072011 000323

14/67/2011 000322
168/07/12011 000321
200712011 000320
16/08/2011 900318
18/08/2011 000318
18/09/2011 000347
18102011 000316
20110/2011 000324
18r11i2041 000987
241142011 001008

16/1212011 001206
18/12/2011 001396
220122011 001226

22122011 801227

2201272011 001228

22/12/2011 001229

2211212011 004230

221272011 901231

22122011 001232

10/01/2012 001261

10/01/2012 001282

Brought Forward Balance

Opening balance

Opening balance transferrad from Composer
system as at 1.7.2011

Loan draw
Monaghan legal Inv 98 & 440 $1103.85

Reimbursement fo LMFMIF for payment mads
;c:] ;\ﬂonaghan legal on 30.8.2011 for Inv 272 -

Loan draw

Peregian Beach Pty Lid - June draw down
Loan interest

Loan interest due 18.7.2011

Loan draw

Pereglan Beach Pty Ltd - July draw down
Loan interest

Loan interest due 18.8.11

Loan draw

Peregian Beach Pty Ltd - July draw down
Loan inferest

Loan interest due 18,9.2011

Loan interast

Loan Interest due 18.10.1

Loan drav

Peregian Beach Pty Ltd - September draw
Applied Interest

Loan draw

Tfer to Peregian Baach Pty Lid for October
2011 drawdown

Loan Draw

Applied Interast

Payment to. Stockland

Payment to Stogldand Development Pty Ltd,
Part of settlemient procaeds of §8 0 177.07

Paym. to Ofiice of State Rev.
Payment to Qffice of State Revenue. Part of
Settlement Proceeds of $126,669.00

Payment to 8hand Taylor
Paymant to Shand Taylor of $5,775.00 - Part of
Setflement Proceeds

Payment to Reaburn Sollcitors
Paymaentf to Reaburn Solicitors Trust Account
of §3,784.00 - Part of Settlement Procesds

Payment to BERM
Payment to DERM of $7267.90 - Part of
Settlement Proceads

Payment {o DERM
Payment to DERM of $132.50 - Part of
Settlement Proceeds

Payment to ASIC
Payment fo ASIC of $144.00 - Part of
Seftlement Proceeds

Payment fo Stockland Develop.

Loan Draw ~ payment o Stockland
Development Pty Ltd for LOT 74 Mortgage of
$10,315.09

Loart Draw
Loy 74 Mortgage

485,764.25 465,164.25

2,018,30 487,160.55

97,172.25 564,352.80

9,661.20 574,014.00
87,172.25 671,186.25

13,519.09 684,705.34
- 22,730.00 707,435.34
15,020.89 T22,456.23
14,344.9% 737,301.22
81,762.74 $19,063.96

§36,343.04
947,205.28

17,278.08
110,852.24

88,376.73
19,130.07
803177.07

1,034,672.06
1,054,802.13
1,857,979.20

126,669.00 1,084,648.20
5,775.00 1,600,423.20
3,784.060 1,994,207.20
7,267.90 2,001,475.16
132.59 2,001,607.60
144.00 2,001,751.60

10,375.09 2,012,066.69

10,315.69 2,022,381.78




Loan Statement

Dafe28/03/2013

[ LM Investrment Management Lid

Page 31 5

Account Number

WMPF0000463

Date

Trans #

Transaction Description

Debits Credits

Balances

10/01/2012
13101/2012
18/01/2012
3ig1r2612

370212042
9/62/12612

1770212012
18/02/2012

29{02/2912

29/02/2012

10372012

16/03/2012

18/03{2012
270412012

2{042012

16/04/2012

18/04/2012
20/04{2012

26f04/2012

801321
001283
001561
001586

001610
001621

001687
001765

001811

001312

001820

001369

001945
002045

002063

002111

062213
002228

002252

REV Payment {o Stockland Dev
Reversal of Loan Draw ~ Loan Draw Activity
Schedule Entered in Twice

Loan Draw

January 2012 Drawdown

Applied Interest

Loan Draw

Payment {o Stockiand Development Pty Ltd for
1st Morfgage Interest for Lot 74

Loan Raduction
GST Refund

Loan Drayy
Payment to Stockland Development Pty Lid for
Second Instalment of Purchase Contract

Loan Braw

Payment to Monaghan Lawyers for Inv 717
Applied Interest

Loan Draw

Payment to Peregian Beach Pty Ltd for Sales
Office Electricity Account

L.oan Draw

Payment to Stockland Developments Pty Ltd
for Lot 74 Contract [nstatinent in the sum of
$500,000.00 + $35.00 RTGS Fee

Loan Draw

Payment to Stockland Development Piy Lid for
Interest due 1st March 2012 {Lot 74 Mortgage)
for $27,365.82 + RTGS Fee $35.00

{.0an Draw

Payment fo Paregian Beach Ptty Ltd for Jan 12
Management Fee and Payment to
Realestate.com

Applied Intarast

Fae Draw

Payment to Stockland Developments Piy Ltd
for interest due 2 April, 2012 for Lot 74
Mortgage in the sum of $21,785.01 + $35.00
RTGS Fee

Loan Draw

Payment to Peregian Beach Pty Ltd for
balance of Feb Drawdown - Draw 20 n the sum
of $13,458.65 + RTGS Fee $35.00

Loan Draw
Payment to Peregian Beach Pty Ltd for part
payment of March Draw {Draw 21)

Applied Interest

Loan Draw

Payment to Peregian Boach Pty Ltd for Draw
22 & Balance of Draw 21 in the sum of
$86,376.70

Payment to Monaghan Lawyers for Inv Ne. 768
in the sum of $3,736.70

Payment to Thomsan Lawyers for Inv 451615
in the sum of $19,628.53

Loan Draw
Payment to Stockland Development Pty Ltd for
Interest Payment dus 1 May, 2012 on Lot

-10,315.00
39,486.46
490,156.15
31,976.75

-300,000.00
300,000.00

869.00
46,520.67

612.47

500,035.00

27,400,82

16,563.17

48,502.77
21,820.01

13,493.65

6,308.62

58,847.27
110,122.39

21,082.27

2,012,066.69
2,051,553.15
2,091,709,30
2,123,686.05

1,823,686.05
2,123,686.05

2,124,555.05
2,171,084.72

2171,697.13

2,671,732.19

2,699,133.01

2,715,696.13

2,765,198.95
2,787,018.95

2,800,612.61

2,806,821.23

2,865,768.50
2,975,890.89

2,998,973.18
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Loan Statement

LM Invesiment Management Lid

Date28/03/2013 Page 4715
Account Numher WMPF0000463
Date Trans # Transaction Description Dahits Crediis Balance
74 Mortgags.
18/05/2012 002411 Applied Interest 61,147.74 3,058,120.90
21/0512012 002450 Loan Draw 78,529.15 3,1356,650.05
Peregian Beach May 2612 Drawdwon
28105/2012 002474 Loan Dyaw 5,775.00 3,142,425.05
Stockland North Lakes - Reimbursement of
Legal Fees Inv 1026283
30/05/2012 092496 Lean Draw 21,820.01 3,164,245.08
Stockland Developments Interest due 1 June
2012 - "Leot 74 Mortgage™
31/05/2012 002494 Loan Draw 5,720.00 3,169,065.06
CBRE- valuation fee invoice RO73419645
18/06/2012 002634 Applied nterest 66,603.57 3,236,658.63
23/06/2012 002887 Loan Draw 188,100.66 3,424,753.29
Draw to pay AlF loan establishment fee
28062012 002688 Iann Draw . 19.676.78 3,444,436.07
Finelinterest-paymoentte-Sloekiand
410712012 002706 Loan Draw 137.90 3,444,573.97
Agent's fegs for settlemont of Loan « T.F,
ardrobe Solicitors
120712012 002723 Loan Draw 130.00 3,444,703.97
Reimburse AlFfor PPSR Registration fee
1200712012 002724 Loan Draw 265.00 3,444,868,97
Registration fees on Stockland Release & LM
AlF Mortgage
18/07/12012 002887 Applied Interast 69,166.40 3,514,135.37
24/07/2012 0027814 Draw 132,50 3,514,267.87
Registration fees on Mortgage prlority
25/07/2012 002783 Loan Draw 37,399.482 3,561,667.75
Payment to Peregian Beach Pty Lid for part
payment of monthly drawdown
1/08/2012 002809 Loan Draw 4.50 3,551,872.35
] Addltional registration fes on Mortgage piiority
. due to fou increase by DERM
18/08/2012 003065 Applied Interest 75,026,77 3,626,600.12
23/08/20112 002939 Loan Draw 37,399.88 4,664,099.00
Payment to Peregian Beach Pty Lid for
payment of June 2012 Drawdown
409/2012 003132 Loan Draw 30,000.00 3,694,099.00
Part paymant of Claim 25
410912612 003135 Loan Praw 14,521.78 3,708,620.78
Payment of AIF July Interest
5/092012 003127 Loan Draw ©65,881.28 3,778,502.06
Paifment t Peregian Beach Py Lid for
Bﬁa ance of Claim 24 & Full payment of Claim
2
BlO92012 003129 Loan Draw 20,443.32 3,798,951.38
August Interest
18/69/2012 003352 Applied Interest 78,606.93 3.877,638.31
31072012 003422 Loan Draw §2,351.95 3,929,990.26
g_?yment to Peregian Beach Pty Lid for Claim
117/10/2012 003447 Loan Draw 20,601.80 3,950,682.06
. Transfer from WPF to AIF for payment of
Beptember Loan Interest
18/10/2012 003548 Applied Interest 8¢,095.13 4,030,777.19
31Ho02012 003605 Loan Draw 38,742 62 4,069,519.81

Payment to Peregian Beach for Monthly Claim
Mo, 28




-t

Loan Statement

@ LM Investment Menagement Lid

Date28/03{2013 Page 5/ 5
Account Number MPF0000463
Date Trans # Transactien Doscription Debils Credits Balance
18/11/2012 603785 Applied Interest 85,827.50 4,155,347.31
18M14/2042 003939 Interest adjustment -130,316.00 4,025,031.31
Non recognised interest on GL
18/11/2012 003863 Applicd Interest 130,316.00 4,155,341.31
: Recagnising tion posted lower rats interest
Novemher 2012
18122012 004037 Applied Interest §4,496,36 4,200,843.67
20M12/2012 004051 Varlous Craditurs 78,173.86 4,268,017.53
TFR from MPF to Periglan Beach for] & L.fee
up fron dev brokars fees & $18 towards
actober elaim, 10008 towards centro pmt
20M2{20112 004119 Payment {e Creditors 78,173.86 4,366,191.39
TER from MPFE to Pereglan Beach for
. Payments fo Craditors
20M2/2012 004128 Revarsal Payiment to Creditors -78,173.86 4,288,017.53
Roversal on double ug entry for Payment to
Creditors,
21012013 DO4050 Loan Draw 19,860.47 4,307,878.00
Paymant to AlF for Octoher Inferest
3042013 004107 AlF loan interest 20,512.62 4,328,300.62
Novembar 2012 Interest pald by MPF
18/01/2013 004246 Applied Inferest £9,307.72 4,387,698.34
2000172013 004295 Monthly Claim 45,000,60 4,402,698.24
TFR to Peregian Beach for Monthly Clalm.
Claim no. 36 - Parf Payment
80212013 004333 Loan Draw 10,000.0G 4,412,698.34
Part paynient ofalm 31
12/02/2013 004369 Loan Draw 20,000.00 4,432,698.34
TFR from MPF to Peragian Beach for fina)
payment of November 2012 clalm
18/0212613 004466 Applied Interest 59,852.56 4,492,550.30
12/03/2013 004566 Draw - 100,000.00 4,592,550.90
Pmt Dac mthly clalm and part payment Jan 13
) Claim
18/03/2013 0U4651 Applied Interest 54,404.46 4,647,355.36
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SMV-32

RTGS REQUEST -f'or immediate processing
Date: (_//29/02!2012

5574 1093
Suncorp Bank - Attn: Chris McKenzie

2 2

LM Investment Management Lid
Fax No.

LMIM atf LM Managad Performance Fund (AUD Working account)

BSH: 484-799 Acc No:’load. 382 579

Loan Na: MPFo000Li&3 Loan hanie:

Peregian Beach

D ‘Draw Construction
L1 Draw initiat Settiement

Draw - other
D Draw - interfund D Fee - other
MALA of §........ notexceded with this draw. CL Initial

|:[ Fee - Upfront Devalopment
D Fee - Upfront Commercial
l:l Fea - Loah review

 Payment Instructions

Authorisation - Portfolio (\&a.na}‘;er-
MPF Portfolio Manager Signature {either
AP, EVH, LD, DM):

LN 1S Authorisation

BSB Account No  |Payee Amotint Reason for transfer ]
032-006  [238-235 Stockland Development {$  500,000.00 {Peragian Beadh Pty Ltd - Lot 74
Py Ltd Centract instalifient due 297212
PO nt vek ! ot U Mortaag -
F
RIS bt S804
TOTAL: - $  -500;000.00-)/ | |
-~ , i ;F sy OO LA
athorisgtion - Commercial Lending N
ommercial Lending Signature 1: Cammercial Lendin Signature 2 (either DM, SC, AM,
4 ' PK or ST): ‘
Y

Custodian Authorisation

LMIM 1S Authorisation {only 1 signature
required):

Custodian 1st Authorisation:

JOOAN
24

1 (12
i\

L
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FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

To Chris McKenzie Page 1 of 1
Organisation Suncorp Bundall * L Envestmentﬁésrggﬁe;;iggé E{;ﬁl
Fax 07 55741093 . .
Responsible Entity & Australian
Froin Nik Siggers ) Financjal Servicas Uicensee 220281
Date 29 Febroary 2012 Levei 4, 9 Beach Road
SUBJECT PTAL aef LM Managed Performance Fund — Currency Surfers P;?gdiéfo*#‘ii;;
Protected . Surfers Pacadlise 4217
Cueengtand, Australia
Telephorie. 07 5584 4500
. Facsimile 07 5552 2505
p ) Q fail@LMaustralia.com
RTGS RE QUEST winw [ Maustizlia.com
FROM: BSB: 484 799
AQGOUNT NO: 034-382-5679 ‘
ACCOUNT NAME:  PTAL:acf LM Mahaged Performance Fuad
PAYABLE TO;
BSE Account No. Payee Amount Reference
032-006 | 238-235 Stogkland Development | 500,000.00 LOT 74
Pty Lid _ Mortgage
RTGS Fee 35.00
TOTAL | 560,035.00
LM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AUTHORISATION

A/B 1 Authorisation AlIB 2" Authorisation

Either A & B or 2 A’S i sign

THE TRUST COVMPANY (PTAL) AUTHORIEISATION

LEVEL | AUTHORISATION

Group A

Group A/ B

529




Bank Cheque Request

Date: 2211272011 .
<,;\

To: Suncorp Bank , TR

Fax:{07) 65701912 Contact: Nik Siggers

Phone: 07 5584 4500
L

From: LMIM atf LM MPF Working Account (AUD) /

BSBE: 434799 ACCOUNT 034 382579

To be. available for collection by 12 pm today

Person collecting:_TuevorWheatly {ASar ) tre DAYIRTYY (-L/

e

) LM iniernal use only

Bank cheques payable to:

Loar No: MPFE poo< 463 Loat name: ‘Peregian Beach Ply Ltd.
Corrd type: - D Draw Constrietion D Fes - Upfront Development
i Draw Inttial Settiemant ] Fee- Upfrant Commercial
D Diaw - ather : D Fee - Loan review
E:l Draw - interfuiid [ Fee- other ;
GLchecks:  MALA 0f$ BM.......... hotexceded with this-draw. CL Initial / %M
o U

LM Internal use only

Authoriétign - Portiolio Manager
MPF Portfolic Manager Signature (either AP,
EVH. LD, DM):

LRI Authotrigation

LMiIM Authorisation:

Payee Amotint Reason for transfer {corro Mofes)

Stackland DevelapmentPyltd § 80347707 :Se{tiement:_pfb_céeds

Ciffice of State Revenue $ 126,669.00 Settlement proceeds

Shand Taylor $ 5,775.00 |Settlement proceeds

Reabum Solicitors Trust Account | $ 3,;784.’005 Settlement proceeds

DERM $ 7.267.90 [Settlement proceeds

DERM $ 132,50 |Settlement proceeds

ASIC $ 144.00 |Settiement proceeds

TOTAL: $946,949.47
Commercial LendingSamaiuse 2 (either A™
PK, ST ar D). | / ; ;

' Wiz 4Y

‘Custodian Authierisation
Custodian Authorisatfor:
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FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION {1

LN

To Ms Jolanda Bartulin _ Page 1of 1 _ .
- — s ot _ _ LM lnvestment Management Ltd
Organisation THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED ABN§8.077 208 467
Fax 07 3257 1680, Resporsitle Enlly & Aistraian
e 22008
From Ainanda Gardner Financlal Services Licerisee 220281
Date 22 Decémber 2011 ?ﬁé&g gﬁgﬁé ig?g’
: N -~ o P.0O). Box 405
SUBJECT  PTAL acf LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND Siirs P 317
Bank Chieque Request Guieensland, Austraflx
Telephone (07 5584 4500
. Facsimile 07 5592 2505
‘ o i . miati@lMaustralid.com
BANK CHEQUE REQUEST o Lusialasom

To be collected from Suncorp 293 Queen Street, Brishane by Yasmin
Hedayaty of Thompsons Lawyers by 12.00pm foday

FROM: BSB: 484799 v |
ACCOUNT NO: 034382 579 - /

ACCOUNT NAME;  LMIM atf LM Managed Performance Fund

PAYABLE TO:
Payee . Amourt Reason for iransfer {corro Notes)
Stockland Development Pty | $803,177.07 | Settlement proceeds
Lid
Office of State Revenue $126,669.00 Settlement proceeds
Shand Taylor $ 5,775.00 Settlement proceeds
Reaburn Solicitors Trust $ 3,784.00 Settlement proceeds
Account ‘ , :
DERM $ 7,267.90 Settlement proceeds
DERM $ 132,50 Settlement proceeds
ASIC $ 144.00 Settlement proceeds T
TOTAL: $946,949.47
, M INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AUTHORISATION
A/B 1% Awthorisation AlB 2°* Authorisation

‘Either A & B or 2.A’s tosign
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FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
1

To Ms Jolanda Bartulin Page | of |

-~ : , : . LM investment Management Ltd
Organisation THE TRUST COMPANY (PTAL) LIMITED ABN 68 (77 208 467
Fax 07 3257 1680 Responsitle Entity & Australian
) Financial Servives Licensee 220264

Fram Amanda Gardner ‘
_— Level 4, § Beach Road
Datc_:‘ . 9 Pebiuary 2012 Surfers Paradise 4217
« : gy A A Y TR ‘ . T AT G Box 485
SUBJECT PTAL act LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND Surfers piradisgx42117
Bank Cheque Request ‘Queensland, Ausirafia
Telephone 07 55844500
Facsinle 07 5592 2505
] : mai@lMeustralia.com
BANK CHEQUE REQUEST iy LMaisstralizecom

To be collected from Suncorp Sueters Paradise by Trever Wheatiey
[ 2.00pm today R

FROM: BSB: aga7eg T
ACCOUNT NO: 034 382 579

ACCOUNT NAME:  LMIM atf LM Managed Performance Fund

PAYABLE TO:
Stockland Development Pty Ltd ~ $300,000.00 v
TOTAL: | $300,000.00 |

g Lt j 831 722

: Metway Lttl ABN 66 141,831 T
Sm?ég George Street, BRISEAMNE ;3] 4000_
Y sl i (5353 H

DATE e T

0294444 3
) % HEO -

for Suncorp-ietway Lid

/ v /P{ ’ B
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors' Report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd, the Manager of LM Managed Performance Fund (she "Scheme"),
present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of LM Managed Performance Fund and
its controlled entities ('the Consolidated Group"), for the financial year ended 30 June 2012, The director's report is not
part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Managed Performance Fund, during the year or since the end of
the year and up to the date of this report:

Name . Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake ' Appointed 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003 . Resigned on 12 June 2012

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Mr Johu O'Sullivan Appointed 27 November 2007. Resigned on 19 September 2012
Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008. Resigned on 13 July 2012

Mr Grant Fischer Appointed 14 March 2012 . Resigned on 12 August 2012

Ms Katherine Phillips Appointed on 13 July 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Consolidated Group during the financial period were investment in a combination of
interest bearing cash investments, property investment and debt structured loans for the purchase and/or development of
Australian real property.

There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the year.
SCHEME INFORMATION

LM Managed Performance Fund is an Australian unregistered scheme constituted in December 2001. LM Investment
Management Ltd, the Manager of the Scheme, is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The registered office of the Manager and the Scheme is located at Level 4, RSL Centre, 9 Beach Road, Surfers
Paradise, Queensland 4217

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS
Results

During the year, the Scheme continued to invest directly in:
* Commercial loans secured by either registered first or second mortgages for the purchase and/or development of
Australian real property, companies, investment properties and cash.

Net profit attributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 2012 was $21,361,292 (2011: $19,566,742 ).

The Fund maintained full capital value and has continued to deliver its targeted benchmark returns to investors through
a commensurate increase in unit value, reflecting achievement of target performance of 3% - 5% pa above cash rates.

Distributions
Distributions to unitholders during the year totalled $ 23,167,343 (2011: $19,760,442).

Investments in the fund are termed placements. These can be placed up to a maximum of 5 years. The 3 to 5 year
investment terms continue to be an increasing component of the funds overall holding.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors' Report

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (Continued)
Fund Redemplions

During the period, the Manager continued to progress with the various development aspects specific 1o the underlying
assets and balance the cash needs of that asset development with the ongoing payment of investor redemptions.

Significant progress has been made across both areas. A number of the assets are now at the point of presales and
commencement of construction, and will return fiquidity to the Fund through sales from 2013 onwards.

The MPF has continued to pay investor redemptions. From a high of just under 40%, fund redemptions now measure at
less than 6% of Funds Under Management.

Looking forward, the Fund is now moving into a-more liquid position as cash variables int the form of loan repayments
are realised. New investor inflows will always remain a variable; however the fund portfolio management model
forecasts actual loan repayments and capital from the sale of assets increasing significantly from the end of the 1st
quarter of 2013. As such, the Directors forecast the MPF liquidity to be operating within normality by the middle of
2013. The Directors are aware that many investors have an immediate need for cash, and we are actively pursuing
initiatives on several fronts which, should they come to fruition, will see the Fund make a considerable catch up on
redemptions early in 2013. The prime objective of the fund continues to be to maintain investor capital and achieve the
targeted outperformance. The Fund has achieved that objective and to date the Fund has declared investor returns at or
above target of 3.00%pa - 5.00%pa over cash rates whilst maintaining full capital value.

The Directors are pleased fo report that development progress has been made on the fund’s underlying property assets
during the year, Cash flow for the fund has been prioritised towards required work on the assets as well as the
performance of the fund. A number of development assets are now ready to commence staged construction and
presales, with those asset sales expected to generate increased cash flow into the fund from 2013 onwards. The
Manager keeps an updated profile of assets which can be obtained by contacting your financial advisor or the Manager.

Maddison Estate
As you are aware Maddison Estate is a major asset within the fund. The Directors are pleased to provide a brief update
of that asset.

The Managed Performance Fund has made significant progress and enhancements to its anchoring asset, Maddison
Estate. To date the MPF has funded and facilitated the successful acquisition and consolidation of 30 sites into the one
englobo site required for the large 118 hectare residential development approved 1o 1,458 number of residential
dwellings, incorporating as well some integrated commercial and retail space. The total mumber of residents expected to
live at Maddison is approximately 3,500 when complete to current apptovals.

Development Approvals have been obtained and works commenced with necessary land clearing for Stage 1 completed.
Maddison is entering pre-sale stage with civil works now underway on site. This estate has atiracted high profile
business partners, TV personality Jamie Durie and Olympians Natalie Cook and Sam Riley who recently opened the
onsite Sales Centre.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors' Report

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (Continued)
Maddison Estate (Continued)

Queensland State and Local Governments stamped the Maddison Estate a project of “State Significance” which is
expected to create over 3,500 jobs for the region. We expect the inclusion of the world’s first Kelly Slater Wave Park
will see the gross value of Maddison increase to $1.5 billion as our plan is to increase development density then with
further apartment style residences. Maddison has been successful in securing agreements with Australia’s most
respected and well known building companies Ausbuild, Clarendon Homes, Metricon and Plantation Homes. The
staged development will see this asset commence capital repayments to the MPF in 2013.

Maddison Estate and four other major assets of the fund have attracted substantial offshore construction funding interest
with current due diligence in process with two majot institutions in USA and Asia. On successful completion of the due
diligence, the projects will be fully funded to completion and attract substantial investment into the ffve prime growth
regions of Australia in which these assets are located. A conditional letter of interest has been received from one of the
offshore financiers confirming due diligence is progressing.

Performance
The performance of the Group, as represented by the results of its operation, was as follows:

Consolidated
2012 2011
$ k]
Net operating incotme/(loss) before distributions 21,361,292 19,566,742
Finance costs: Distribution to unitholders (23,167,343} (19,760,442)
Increase/{decrease) in net assets attributable to unitholders 1,806,051 193,700

UNITHOLDER FUNDS

There were 356,367,645 units on issue at 30 June 2012 (2011: 249,968,345}, During the year 149,959,816 units issued
by the Scheme (2011: 132,091,715) and 43,560,516 of units were withdrawn (2011: 35,973,235 ).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2012 LM Managed Performance Fund Consolidated Group held assets to a total value of § 376,745,650
(2011: $279,837,532). The basis for valuation of the assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

FEES PAID TO AND INTERESTS HELD BY THE MANAGER AND ASSOCIATES

The following fees were paid to the Manager and/or its assoctates during the financial year:

2012 2011
3 3
Management fees to LM Administration Pty Limited by LM Managed 11,368,182 1,397,727

Performance Fund.

This represents 3.1% of average net assets of the Fund. This pre-planned increase in management fee is reflective in the
growth of assets in the Fund and allows the Manager to employ additional resources required to properly manage those
assets to the benefit of investors.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Manager, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group that oceurred during
the financial year under review.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors' Report

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the consolidated group, the results of those aperations, ot the state of affaits of the
consolidated group in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those operations
has not been included in this report because the Manager belicves it would likely resultin unreasonable prejudice 0 the
Schemec.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The aperations of the Censolidated group are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regnlation vnder
a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory. There have been no known significant breaches of any other
environmental requirements applicabie to the Consolidated Group.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for ot of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided o either of
the offigers of LM Investment Management Ltd. Provided the officers of LM Investment Management Lid act in
accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme
agaiinst Josses incusved while acting on behalf of the Consolidated Group.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set
out on page 5.

Signed in apdardance wigh a regolution of the Directors of LM Managed Performance Fund,

.r"“ i K
Peter Drake
Director

i

Gold Coast
Date: 7th day of December 2012
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
ABN 95 595 833 174
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER
SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF LM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED AS RESPONSIBLE ENTITY FOR
LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2012, there have heen:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act
2001 in relation to the audit; and

(i} no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in refation to the audit.

WILLIAMS PARTNERS
INDEPENDENT AUDIT SPECIALISTS

%zﬁm

REG L WILLIAMS BCom CPA RCA
PARTNER
Registered Company Auditor No. 165400

Dated this 7" day of December 2012

4 Helensvale Road
Hefensvale Qld 4212

Australia
HEAD OFFICE: o . o : - JE Hreston intemational
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Income

Interest revenue - mortgage loans

Interest revenue - cash agsets

Realised foreign exchange gain on investor funds

Unrealised foreign exchange gain on investor funds

Unrealised foreign exchange gain on foreign exchange contracts
Profit on sale of noun-current assets

QOther income

Total revenne and other incoime

Expenses

Management fees

Finance costs

Advisor Commissions

Impairment losses on mortgage loans

Unrealised foreign exchange losses on investor fund

Realised [oss on foreign exchange contracts

Unrealised foreign exchange losses on foreign exchange contracts
Legal fees

Other expenses

Total expenses and distributions to unitholders

Net profit/(loss) before distribution to unitholders

Distributions paid/payable to unitholders

Net profit/(loss) after distribution to unitholders

Other comprehensive income

Changes in net assets atiributable to unitholders

Income tax benefit/(expense)

Changes in nef assets attributable to anitholders

after income lax expense

Note

Consolidated
3¢ June 2012 30 June 2011
3 $
60,661,058 47,740,840
462,052 265,907
7,881,609 3,195,301
- 19,521,407
453,560 -
- 3,145,634
42,991 38,726
69,501,270 78,907,815
11,368,182 1,397,727
38,896 2,894,874
10,053,567 6,185,909
5,376,847 16,047,075
9,656,502 -
11,166,983 26,451,001
- 5,930,403
106,305 32,473
372,696 401,611
48,139,978 59,341,073
21,361,292 19,566,742
(23,167,343) (19,760,442)
(1,806,051) (193,700)
(1,806,051) (193,700)
- 503,680
(1,806,051) 309,980

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statemends.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Prepayments

Fair value of forward exchange contracts
Loans and receivables

Investment Properties

Deferred tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Payables

Related parties [oans

Distribution payables

Fair value of forward exchange contracts
Deferred tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Note

14
i3

16

10

11
11

16
10

Consolidated
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
3 3
17,287,984 19,492,224
26,322,229 26,085,844
27,726,132 7,989,959
299,570,308 220,742,619
5,838,997 5,526,886
376,745,650 279,837,532
(2,741,554) (9,605,581)
(9,917,992) {10,093,089)
(6,712,961} (6,132,237)
(4,216,790} (4,670,351)
(23,589,297) {(30,501,258)
353,156,353 249,336,274
7 541
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

TOTAL

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued on reinvestment of distributions

Transfers to and from the statement of comprehensive income
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) on investor funds

CLOSING BALANCE

Conseolidated
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
$ $

249,336,274 175,331,011

130,192,011 120,362,518
{43,326,296) (35,973,235)

16,856,801 11,729,197

(1,806,051) 309,980
1,903,614 (22,423,197)

353,156,353 249.336,274

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

8 542




LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2012

Cash flows frem operating activities
Other income received

Management fees paid / prepaid®
Other operating expenses

Finance cost paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for secured mortgage loans
Receipts from settled mortgage loans
Receipts from disposal of properties
Additions of properties

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

Borrowings received

Cash (paid)/received on realisation of foreign exchange contracts
Receipts from the issue of units

Distribution paid

Payment for redemption of units

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

* See Note 12 for further information

Note

14(b}

14(a)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
$ $
11,836,331 1,263,135
(26,953,511) (3,270,787)
(29,108,577) (39,194,791)
(38,896) (2,894,875)
(44,264,653) (44,097,318)
(47,257,533) (10,221,290)
10,763,496 15,909,740
(312,111} (759,498)
(36,806,148) 4,928,952
(175,097) (40,920,637)
- 40,287
1,321,069 4,286,947
130,192,011 120,362,518
(5,729,818) (4,772,731)
(46,741,604) (32,255,435)
78,866,561 46,740,949
(2,204,240) 7,572,583
19,492,224 11,919,641
17,287,984 19,492,224
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND I'TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM Managed Performance Fund ("the Scheme") for the year ended 30 June 2012 was authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Manager on 29 November 2012.

LM Managed Performance Fund is an Australian unregistered scheme constituted in December 2001, The Scheme will terminate
on 4 December 2081 unless ferminated eatlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme Censtitution (as amended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Manager of the Scheme, is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered
office of the Manager is located at Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Scheme are deseribed in the Directors’ repott.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to alf periods presented, unless otherwise stated in the following text.

Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the Scheme Constitution, and
the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicable Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial assets and financiat Habilities held
at fair value through profit or loss, that have been measured at fair value.

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does not distinguished
between current and non-current, in accordance with AASB 101 - Presentation of Financial Statement. All balances are expected
to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except for loans and receivables and net assets atiributable to unitholders. The
amount expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months in relation to these balances cannot be reliably determined.

The financial report is presented in Australian Dollars (%.
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards
Board.

Basis of consolidation

This consolidated Financial report comprises the financial report of LM Managed Performance Fund and its subsidiaries as at 30
June 2012 ("the Group™).

Subsidiarics are ail those entities over which the Scheme has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existeace and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether a parent controls another entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policies. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is obtained and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method of accounting
involves allocating the cost of the business combination to the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and income and expenses and profit and Tosses
resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full. Adjustments are made fo bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
New accounting standards and interpretations

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not et effective have not
been adopted by the Scheme for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2012. The impact of these siandards and interpretations
has been assessed and to the extent applicable to the Scheme are discussed below. Standards and Intetpretations that are not
expected to have a material impact on the Scheme have not been included.

AASB Finaneial Instruments and related amendment AASB 2009-1F

AASB 9 applies io annual reporting periods beginming on or after | January 2013 and will therefore apply to the Scheme from 1
July 2013, The Scheme does not intend to early adopt AASB 9 as parmitted by the standard, and the actual impact on initial
application wilt depend on certain elections as disclosed below. e

AASB 9 requires all financial instruments to be measured at fair value unless the criteria for amortised cost are met. The
application of the standard is not expected to change the measurement basis of any of the Scheme’s current financial instruments,
however, AASB 9 allows the Scheme 1o elect fo present gains and losses on equity securities through other comprehensive income,
which may impact the presentation of these gains and losses. The impact of the standard may also change if the nature of the
Scheme's activities or investments changes prior to initial apptication.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
(i) Significant accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have had an impact on the ancunts recogtised in the financial statements. No judgements have been
determined to be individually significant.

(i} Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounls of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of future events.
The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain
assets and liahilities within the next annual reporting period are:

a. Allowance for Impairment loss on loans and receivables

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation of the value
of future cash flows through a "on completion™ valuation or the property based on an "as is" valuation.

A provision of impairment was raised totalling $23.4 million against 6 loans which is based on current market
assessmenis of recoverability of these loans. There has been no impact on unit price as this provision has been
allowed for against the peneral earnings of the fund. The exit strategy on these loans will result in no impact on
unit price as they are fufly provisioned.

b. Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial Position
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the
use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

Predominantly, these models are discounted cash flow analysis derived from extensive project feasibilities
regularly updated to ensure curvent value of the instrument or foan/receivable is monitored.

The judgements include considerations of liguidity and model inputs such as credit risk (both own and
couwnterparty's), correlation and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instraments. The models are calibrated regularly and tested for validity using prices from any
observable cutrent market transactions in the same instrament (without modification or repackaging) or based on
any available observable market data.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND I'TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis. For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Distribution income
Distribution income is recognised when the unitholders' right to receive the payment is established.

Intercst income

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest rate ethod, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Default management fees

Income from default management fees is recognised in line with the executed agreement with the borrower when an event of default
OCCULS.

Changes in the fair value of investments

Gains or losses on investments held for rading are caleulated as the difference between the fair value at sale, or at year end, and the
fair value at the previous valuation point. This includes both realised and unrealised gains and losses.

Fees, commissiens and other expenses

Except where included in the effective interest ealculation (for financial instrements carried at amortised cost), fees and
commissions are recognised on an aceruals basis. Audit and compliance fees are included with 'other expenses' and are recorded on
an accruals basis.

Finance costs

Interest on borrowings is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period {o which it relates. Issue costs
associated with borrowings are capitatised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they relate using the effective
interest method. ‘

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognifion and Measurement are classified as either
finaneial assets and financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sate investments or other financial Habilities as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, pius, in the case of jnvestments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable fransactions
costs. The Scheme determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date ie. the date that the Scheme commits fo
purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are putchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require delivery of
the assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities through profit and loss

Financial assets held for trading included forward exchange contracts. These assets are acquired principally for the purpose of
mitigating the risk of movements in the value of non-Australian Doller investor funds and facilitating forecasting of future cash
flows. During the period, all derivatives are classified as held for trading. Derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Scheme do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by AASB 139. Conseguently, hedge accounting is not applied by the
Scheme in the 2012 financial year.

1o 546



n)

LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed ot determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and recgivables are initially measured at fair value including transaction costs directly attributable to the financial
asset. After initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Gains and
losses are recogaised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at 2ach reporting period. An allowance is made for credit losses when there is
objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able to coflect the loans and receivables. Impairment losses are written off when
identified. Losses expected as a result of future events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in
refation to a loan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has previously been
recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the Credit Commitiee. A provision
is made of loans in arrears where the collectability of the debts is considered doubiful by estimation of expecied losses in relation to
loan portfolios where specific identification is impracticable.

The components of impaired assets are as follows:
"] oans in atreats” are loans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be able to collect all amounts of
principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

" Assets acquired through the enforcement of security” are assets acquired in full or partial settlement of a loan ot similar facility
through the enforcement of security arrangements. This comptises of prime property security plus any collateral security associated
with the loan.

Where possible, the Scheme first seels to restructure loans to have loans fully performing, however the Scheme will take
possession of the collateral as necessary. The renegotiation may involve extending paymsnt terms and arrangement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have heen renegotiated any impatnment is measured the same way as performing loans. The
renegotiated loans continue to be assessed individually and collectively for impairment.

"Restructured loans" arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in meeting the original terms
and new terms arc not comperable to the revised terms. These loans are removed from 'restructured loans' after aperiod of 12
months of performance against the loans revised terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in "loans in arrears’
when impairment provisions are required.

When the Manager determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the interest is suspended and not brought into
income. Should the Manager's analysis of the collectability subsequently change the interest will be brought into incose at the
time it is determined to be collectibie.

Advisor Fees

Advisor fees may be paid to the unitholders' investment advisors and are calculated as a percentage of funds invested in the
Scheme. These fees are paid weekly in arrears and are brought to account on an acerual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor
fees when the related units are redeemed.

Payables

Payables are caried at amortised cost and represent jiabilities for goods and services provided to the Scheme prior to the end of the
financial vear that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged to make futurc payments in respect of the purchases of

these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the statement of financial position
as unitholders are presentiy entitled to the distributable incorne as at 30 June 2012 under the Scheme's Constitution.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Tnerease/decrease in net assets atiributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist of unrealised changes in
the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable, expenses acerued for which are not yet deductible, net capital
losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for
tax deferred income previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income net yet assessable will be
included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes assessable for tax. Excess and
undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders.

DBistributions

Tn accordance with the Scheme's Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its disiributable income to unitholders. Distributions
are payable monthly, Such distributions are determined by referenca to the net taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable
income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of investments. Unrealised gains and losses on investments that are
recognised as income are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised.
Capital losses are not distributed to unitholders bu are retained to be offset against any realised capital gain.

Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of varfous services provided to the Manager by third parties such as audit fees, custodial services
and investment manageiment fees have been passed onto the Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RTIC)
at a rate of 75% of GST.

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Austratian Taxation Office (ATO). Accounts payable are inclusive of

GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included ja receivable in the statement of financial position. Cash
flows relating to GST are included in the Statement of Cask Flows on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payabls to the ATO is classified as
an operating cash flow.

Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme. Redemptions from the Scheme ate
recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed oceurs, Unit redemption prices are determined by reference to the net assets of
the Scheme divided by the number of units on issue.

Applications received in foreign currency denomijnations are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange
rates ruling at the date of the fransaction. Foreign currency detominated unitholder finds are transtated into the Scheme's
fimctional currency at balance date, using the spot rate prevailing at that date. Gains and losses arising from foreign exchange
translation are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Under curtent legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of the Scheme is fidly
distribiuted sither by way of cash or reinvestment (i.e. unitholders are presently entitled to the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of unrealised capital gains.
Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is
not subjest to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset
against any realised capital gains. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)
Interesi-bearing toans and borrowings

All loans and horrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs
associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any
discount or premium on settlement.

Capital management

The Manager manages the Scheme's net assets attributable to unitholders as capital, not withstanding net assets atiributable to
unitholders is classified as a Liability. The amount of net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis
as the Scheme is subject to daily applications and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

The Manager mouitors the level or daily applications and redemptions relative to the liquid assets in the Scheme.
The Scheme is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.
Derivative financial instruments

The Scheme uses detivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge ifs risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. Derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when
fair value is negative.

Any gains and losses are arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as cash flow hedges, are
taken direcfly to net profit or loss for the year.

The Exir value of forward currency confracts is caleulated by reference to valuations provided by the financiai institutions with
which the forward exchange contracts are held.

Foreign currency translations

The Schems's transactions in foreign currencies comprise applications and withdrawals of foreign currency unitholder fumds and
payment of distributions. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the
exclhange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liability denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and exchange rate gains and losses recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liabilities settled, between knowledgeable, willing perties in
an arm's length transaction.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted price or binding
dealer price quotations {bid price for long positions and ask price for short positiens), without any deductions for transaction costs.

For ali other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques. Valuation techaiques include: using recent armn’s length market transactions; reference to the current matket value of
another instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making as much use of
available and supportable market data as possible.

Refer to Note 17 to the financial statements for the methods and assumptions applied in determining fair value of each class of
financial instrument.
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.M MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

2012 2011
$ 3

a) Distribution to unitholders
Distributions paid/reinvested 16,454,382 13,628,205
Distributions payable 6,712,961 6,132,237

23,167,343 19,760,442
b} Distributions paid and payable
Class A 13,348,747 14,202,195
Class B 9,818,596 5,558,247

23,167,343 19,760,442

"A" Class Units. The umit price for "A" Class Units is determined each day and is calculated by dividing the value of Net Assets of
the Fund by total number of units on issue that day, but not taking account of any acerued interest distributions, only unpaid

distributions.

"B Class Units. The Unit Price for "B" Class Units is determined each day and is caleulzted by dividing the value of Net Assets
of the Fund by total number of units on issue that dey and taking account of relevant accrued but unpaid interest distributions.

EXPENSES
2012 2011
b3 §
a) Finance costs
Inferest on related party toans - 1,613,877
Other Interest expense 38,896 807
Interest expense - 1,280,190
38,896 2,894,874
b) Other expenses
Auditot's remunerations 96,000 135,0G0
Other expenses 276,696 266,611
372,696 401,611
AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
2012 2011
5 8
Audit and review of the financial reports * 96,000 135,000
Other regulatory audit services - -
96,000 135,000

These cxpenses have been included within 'Other Expenses' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
* The 201 [ audit fee includes auditing the 1 July 2010 opening balances.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Movements in the net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:

Net asscis attributable to unitholders

Class A

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeermed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing balance

Class B

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distribations

Closing balance

Movement in changes net assets attributable to unitholders

Total assets atiributable to unitholders

2012 2011
$ $
148,176,488 124,079,809
94.401,204 57,796,246
(21,552,072)  (27,683,775)
7,995,929 7,133,277
229,021,549 161,325,557
100,435,541 52,130,959
35,790,807 64,341,038
(21,774,224)  (9,984,877)
8,860,872 4,600,088
123,512,996 111,087,208
821,808  (23,076,491)
353,156,353 249,336,274

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per unit at unitholders'
mestings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of

liquidation.

INVESTMENTS

Investment in subsidiaries

The Scheme owned 100% of the issued share capital of:

Australian International Investment Services Py Ltd

LM MPF Development No 1 Pty Ltd

Country of Incorporation

2012 2011
$ $
2012 2011
100% 100%
100% 100%
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 306 JUNE 2012

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
3 ¥
Secured mortgage loans - Ist priority 30,066,913 39,508,189
Secured mortgage loans ~ 2nd priority - related party 220,337,819 140,808,503
Secured mortgage loans - 2nd priority 55,630,371 43,199,029
Secured Loans - Related Party Charges 16,911,196 15,226,498
Provision for impairment (23,375,992)  (18,000,000)
Net loans and advances 205,570,308 220,742,619
a) Aggregate amounts receivable from related parfies
2012 2011
3 3
Directors and director-related entities - secured 234,253,745 153,138,704

Related managed investment schemes - secured - -

Related managed investment schemes - unsecured - -

Related property trust - secured 2,995,270 2,896,098
237,249,015 156,035,402

The Director related entities are Special Purpose Vehicles through which ali of the development profit flows through to the LM
Managed Performance Fund and its investors. Each development asset has a SPV established for it to hold contractuat participating
interests in the underlying asset.

This structure ensures full benefit to the Fund and its investors and also provides important tax insulation. Through the "loan
structure” roferred to immediately above, the Fund makes a loan to the SPV on arms length terms with the ability to petiodically
assess the interest rate enabling the Fund to extract all the financial benefit that the SPV receives front the SPV's contractual
participating interest in the underlying asset. The SPV is the borrower under that loan, and it grants a security interest to the Fund
over the SPV's assels to secure its repayment obligations to the Fund. The security interest is also on arms length terms. Together
the loan and security interest give the Fund the same level of control which any lender would have in similar circumstances with an
. unrelated botrower.

The fund is unzble to own the property assets directly as this would result in onerous tax implications for offshore (non-Australian
resident) investors. Special Purpese Vehicles (SPV) are setup to minimise risk, minimise tax implications for the Fund and
investors and are a common structure for projects of this nature.

As with all registered companies there must be a Director of that entity that holds the ultitnate liability and as such Peter Drake
holds the liability through his Directorship of the Speciai Purpose Vehicles. Neither Peter Drake not LM (in ifs corporate capacity)
are entitled to any finaneial benefit by viriue of that shareholding or directorship. This is a feature of the “loan structure” and the
Internal Rate of Retumn for the projects indicates that all the project profit will be received by the fund on behaif of its investors.
The SPV structure is set solely to atlow LM to control the decisions of the project, so as to enable the fund to achieve the full return
of profits of the project. This is done via an assessed earnings rate, derived through extensive feasibility and discounted recovery
analysis which is regularly updated and audited externally each year.

b) Maturity analysis - Secured Mortgage Loans

2012 2011
$ $
TImpaired (net of provision) - 14,858,226
Renegotiated/Restructured loans 30,006,913 51,423,842
Less than 3 months 56,325,624 856,683
3-6 months - 15,226,499
6-12 months 213,177,770 138,377,369

299,570,307 220,742,619

The above maturity analysis reflects the contractual matarity of all secured loans.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)

b) Maturity analysis - Secured Mortgage Loans {Continued)

Past due or mortgagee in possession loans are classified as either impatred or recoverable based o assessment of current matket
position as at date of the report. Past due status and actual recoverability of these amounts are not always mutually correlated.
Recoverability is dependant on several factors and the Manager always seeks to maximise the return of these amounts through gross
realisation workout strategies, enforcement of security and loan restructuring. The Manager has significant resources in-house
dedicated to managing these assets to the best possible recovery position.

A provision of inmpairment was raised totalling $23.4 million against 6 loans which is based on current market assessments of
recoverability of these loans. There has been no impact on unit price as this provision has been allowed for against the general
earnings of the fund. The exit strategy on these loans will result in no impact on unit price as they are fuily provisioned.

¢) Concentration of risk

There are one (2011: two) counterparty with which the Scheme's credit exposure exceeds 10% of the net assets attributable to
unitholders as at 30 June 2012. The totai value of this loan, before taking into account collateral or other credit enhancements, is
$201,187,254 (2011: $158,301,729).

For concentration of risk relating to mortgage Lype and geographical location refer to Note 16b.
&) Provisions for impairment

The impairment loss expense relating to loans and receivables comprises:

2012 2011
i ]

Specific provision
Opening balance 18,000,000 1,952,000
Impairment fosses provided for during the year 5,376,847 16,048,000
Impairment losses realised during the year - -
Ciosing balance 23,376,847 18,000,000
Total Provision for impairment 23,376,847 18,000,000
Changes to operating prafit/(loss) before tax for impairment losses on
foans and receivables comprises:
Specific provision 5,375,992 16,048,000
Impairment losses recognised directly in Statement of Comprehensive ) )
Income

5,375,992 16,048,000

A provision of impairment was raised totalling $23.4 million against 6 loans which is based on current market assessments of
recoverability of these loans, There has been no impact on unif price as this provision has been allowed for against the general
earnings of the fand.  The exit sizategy on these loans will result in no impact on unit price as they are fully provisioned.

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2012 2011
$ b3
Balance at beginning of the year 5,526,880 19,045,680
Capitalised expenditure 312,11% 386,206
Fair value adjustments - -
Disposals - (13,505,000}
Balance as end of the year 5,838,997 5,526,886
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

10. TAX
2012 2011
$ $

a} (1) The components of income tax expense are:
Current tax expenses - 730,475
Deferred tax - (1,234,155}
Income tax (benefityexpense report in the Siatement of Comprehensive

- (503,680)
Income
(ii) Reconciliation between aggregate tax expense recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and tax expense calculated per the
statutory income tax rate:
Accounting profit before income tax 21,361,292 19,566,742

Tneotne tax expense caleulated at controlied entities statutory income tax

rate of 30% (2011: 30%). 6408388 5,870,023

Income in the hands of the beneficiaries (6,408,388} (6,373,703)
- (503,680)

b) Deferred tax assefs comprise:

Tax losses - -

¢) Deferred tax liability comprise:

Fair vaiue gain - .

&) Reconcitiation

Gross movements

The overall movement in the deferred tax account is as follows:

Opening balance - (1,234,155)
(Charge)eredit to the Statement of Comprehensive Income - 1,234,155

Closing balance - -
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITEES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

PAYABLES
2012 2011
$ 8
1) Foreign currency awaiting investment 1,623,643 2,957.261
Commissions payable 508,002 713,087
Redemptions payable 313,170 3,728,478
Withholding tax payable 1 653,048
Income tax payable - 042,761
Other payables 296,738 610,946
2,741,554 9,605,581
2012 2011
$ b3
b} Related parties loans * 9,917,992 10,093,08%

The related party balance represents two loans where the LM First Mortgage Income Fund holds the senior debt position ahead of
the MPP’s security. The Manager is currently in due diligence discussions with offshore financiers to payout the First Mortgage
Tncome Fund as part of their overall construction funding assessment for the MPF projects.

RELATED PARTIES
Manager
The Manager of LM Managed Performance Fund is LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration

and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Manager by LM Administration Pty Limited, as
associate of the Manager. LM Administeation Pty Limited is paid a management fee directly from the Scheme,

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited.
Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director LM Investment Management Limited during the financial year are
disclosed in Note E5(a)(i).

Director” remuneration
No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Manager. All remuneration was paid by LM Administration Pty

Ltd appointed by LM Investment Management Limited as per its service agreement with that entity to directors of the Manager in
connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme.

Directors' holding of units

There are no related party investments in the LM Managed Performance Fund,

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by LM Invesiment Management
Limited o its associates in the ordinary course of business at application and redemption prices caleulated in accordance with the

constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 2012 the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment
Management Limited or ifs associate (2011: nil),
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AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

12. RELATED PARTIES (Centinued}

Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM ivestment Management Limited, or their director-related-entities, may invest or withdraw
from the Scheme. These investments o withdrawals are on the same terms and conditions as these entered into by other Scheme
investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material coatract with the Scheme since the
end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interest subsisting at year-end. All
transactions were approved on an arm's length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

The Director related entities are Special Purpose Vehicles through which all of the development profit flows through to the LM
Managed Performance Fund and its investors. Each development asset has a SPV established for it to hold contractual participating
interests in the underlying asset.

This structure ensures full benefit to the Fund and its investors and also provides important tax insutation. Through the "loan
structure” referred to immediately above, the Fund makes a loan to the SPV on arms length terms with the ability to periodicaily
assess the interest rate enabling the Fund to extract all the financial benefit that the SPV receives from the SPV's coniractual
participating interest in the underlying asset. The SPV is the borrower under that loan, and it grants a security interest to the Fund
over the SPV's assets to secure its repayment obligations to the Fund. The security interest is also on arms length terms. Together
the 1oan and security interest give the Fund the same level of control which any lender would have in similar circumstances with an
unrelated borrower.

The fund is unable to own the property assets directly as this would result in onerous tax implications for offshore (pon-Australian
regident) investors. Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV) are setup to minimise risk, minimise tax implications for the Fand and
investors and are a common structure for projects of this nature,

As with all registered commpanies there must be a Director of that entity that holds the ultimate Hability and as such Peter Drake
holds the liability through his Directorship of the Special Purpose Vehicles. Neither Peter Drake nor LM (in its corporate capacity)
are entitled to any financial benefit by virtue of that sharcholding or directorship. This is a feature of the “loan structure” and the
Internal Rafe of Return for the projects indicates that all the project profit will be received by the fund on behalf of its investors.
The SPV structure is set solely to allow LM to control the decisions of the project, so as to enable the fund to achieve the full return
of profits of the project. This is done via an assessed earnings rate, derived through extensive feasibility and discounted recovery
analysis which is regularly updated and audited externally each yeat.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Manager by LM Administration Pty
Limited, an associate of the Manager. LM Administration Pty Limited is paid a management fee for these services directly from
the Scheme assets. Next years forecasted management fee is not expected to exceed a maximum of 5% per annum (exclusive of
GST) of the net assets of the Scheme.

During the year, management fees of §11,368,182 (2011: $1,397.727) were expensed to the Scheme. Al management fees are paid
directly to LM Administration Pty Limited.

This represents 3.1% of average net assets of the Fund. This pre-planned increase in management fee is reflective in the growth of
assets in the Fund and allows the Manages to employ additional resources required to properly manage those assets to the benefit of
investors.

The Scheme has second mortgages on loans where the first mortgage of the LM First Mortgage Tncome Fund, totaliing $60,281,381
(2011: $46,158,276). The Scheme may on oceasion pay development and constriction costs on those related loans. As part of its
role as second mortgagee, LM Managed Performance Fund will fund interest payments from time to time within approved loan
facility limits. During the 30 June 2012 year, interest payments totalling $715,999 (2011: $915,954) were paid by the Scheme on
behalf of borrowers.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

12. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Balance with related parties

2012 201

Manager remuneration received or due and receivable

- Management fees for the year paid or payable to LM Administration Pty

Limited, which were expensed to the fund. 11,568,182 1,397,727

- Expenses included administration expenses incurred by the Manager and
its associated entities, which are reimbursed in accordance with the - 158,147
provisions of the Constitution.

This represents 3.1% of average net assets of the Fund. This pre-planned increase in management fee is reflective in the growth of
"+ issets in the Fund and allows the Manager to employ additional resources required to properly manage those assets (0 the benefit of
investors.

2012 2011

3 5
Aggregate amounts receivable from related parties by the Group as follows:

- LM Administration Pty Limited (management and development

management fees prepaid by the Scheme)(?) 20,752,639 3,167,310

- Peter Charles Drake (i}) 16,911,196 15,226,459
- LM Capalaba Pty Ltd (i) 14,968,213 9,610,476
- Maddison Estate Pty Ltd (iv} 201,187,254 128,301,729
- Aalto Apartments Pty Ltd (v) 24,608,244 22,423,926
- Ekard Property Trust {vi) 2,995,270 2,896,698

Aggregate amounts payable from related parties by the Scheme as follows:
- LM First Mortgage Income Fund 9,917,992 10,093,082

{) The Drirectors target a gradual paydown of this prepaid balance throughout the next financial vear and as at date of this report, the
balance had reduced to $17.7 million. These amounts are included in prepayments of $20,752,639 at 30 June 2012 (2011:
$5,167,310 ). No amounts are payable to related partics by the Scheme, other than LM Administration Pty Ltd. The average
monthly balance of prepayments during the year was $16,98%,994 (2011: $3,617,404 ) which was non-interest beating.

This prepaid management fee will be recovered through LM Administration Pty Limited's Agreement to offset future payable
management fees or through the guarantee from a Director, Poter Charies Drake. This is documented and secured through = letter of
undertaking outlining that the fufl balance is payable if LM Investment Management Ltd or its related entities are sold in part or in
full.

An external report from an independent firm engaged in November 2012 assessed this full security holding at $107 million.

i) As at 30 June 2012, the Fund had a loan receivable of $16.911,196 (2011: 15,226,499 ) from Peter Charles Drake, a director of
the Manager. The loan is secured by a charge over LM Administration Pty Ltd in its own right and as trustee for the Ekard
Property Trust, and by a charge aver Century Star Investments. Century Star Investments is a shareholder of LM Investment
Management Limited with a 50% stakeholding. An external report from an independent firm in November 2012 assessed this
security holding at $54 million (50% of assessed total of $107 million). Interest on this loan is fully serviced monthly.

Operating EBIT of these two entities combined was a $11.0 million EBIT profit for the vear ended 30 June 2012 (2011: $7.1
million). Operating EBIT forecast of these eatities for the 2013 financial year is forecasted at 8.8 milion.
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12. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

13.

Balance with relted parties (Continued)

iif) LM Capalaba Pty Lid — this entity is a related party loan secured through a second mortgage over real property of which a joint
venlure agreement is currently in place stipulating a minimum interest return to the scheme. The Manager is currently in due
diligence discussions and has received a conditional letter of interest from an offshore financier overall including the assessment of
payout of the facility with the LM Australian Income Fund and financing the full construction of the project to completion,

#vj Maddison Estate Pty Ltd (formerly LM Arrowtown Pty Ltd) - this entity is a related party loan securad over the assets of
Maddison Estate Pty Ltd. Maddison Estate Pty Ltd controls the actual fandholder of the subject real property Coomera Ridge Py
Ltd via contractual rights.

Sunﬁarp loar facility:
Maddison Fstate Pty Ltd, a related party, bas a current Suncorp loan facility of $22,046,134. The facility has been varied, amended
or restated on various occasions since 21 January 2003,

Suncorp have extended the loan facility to 31 March 2013 conditionai on an amortised paydown to $18 miltion by that date. The
Manager is currently in due diligence discussions and has received a conditional letter of interest from an offshore financier to fully
repay the Suncorp facility on March 31, 2013 and also finance the fisfl construction of the project to completion.

v) Aalto Apartments Pty Ltd — this entity represents a financial asset to the scheme based on the contractual right to receive cash.
This receivable is contingent on certain events and the entity is a related party. AILS Pty Ttd will be the actual recipient of the cash
proceeds which is a wholly owned entity of the scheme. The scheme also holds a second morigage security over the real property
assets of AIIS Piy Ltd. The Manager is currently in due diligence discussions and has received a conditional letter of interest from
an offshore financier overall including the assessment of payout of the facility with the First Mortgage Income Fund and financing
the full construction of the project to completion.

vi) Ekard Property Trust — this entity is a related party loen secured through a second mortgage over real property. The property is
currently on the market and a current offer to fully recover the loan is being negotiated for contract signing as at date of this report.
The offer will constitute a full recovery of the existing loan balance in the fund.

RECEIVABLES
Note 2012 2011
$ 3

Mortgage loan interest receivable 2,202,839 1,590,989
Receivable from related parties 12(v) 23,421,162 22,425,473
Settlements recetvable 261,057 1,936,966
GST receivable - 132,416
Income tax receivable 395,440 -
Other receivables 11,731 -

26,322,229 26,085,844
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i4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Staternent of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2012 2011
$ 5
- Cash at bank and in hand 17,287,984 19,492,224

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating raies based on daily bank deposit rates.
“The Fair vaiue of cash and cash equivalents is § 17,287,984 (2011: § 19,492,224).

As at 30 Jurie 2012, § 14,459,269 (2011: $10,463,632 ) of cash at bank was held in foreign exchange margin accounts and was not
available for use by the Scheme.

b) Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to unitholders to net cash flows from operating activities

2012 2011
$ 5

Change in net assets aitributable to unitholders (1,806,051} 309,980
Adjusiments for:

Non-cash impairment expense 5,376,847 16,047,075
Interest income (60,661,058) (47,740,840}
Distributions to unitholders 23,167,343 11,729,197
Revaluation of property - -
{Profit)/Loss on disposal of property - (8,145,634)
{Gains)/loss on foreign exchange contracts 10,713,423 5,930,403
{Gains)/loss on investor funds 1,903,614 (22,423,197}
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 226,121 1,399,263
(Increase)/decrease in propayments (19,736,173) (4,588,144)
Increase/{decrease) in payables . (3,448,719) 3,384,579
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (44,264,653)  (44,097,318)

¢) Reinvestment of distributions

During the year, the Scheme issued $23,167,343 worth of units (2011: § 11,729,197) as a result of reinvestment of distributions by
unitholders. These transactions have not been included in the Statement of Cash Flows.

15. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a) Details of Key Management Personnef
(i) Key Management Personnel

They Key Management Personnel {"KMP"} of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Manager, The Directors of the
Marnager during the year were:

Executive directors

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1597

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003 . Resigned on 12 June 2012

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 20006

Mr John O'Sullivan Appoiated 27 November 2007, Resigned on 19 September 2¢12
Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008. Resigned on 13 July 2012

Mt Grant Fischer Appointed 14 March 2012 . Resigred on 12 August 2012

Ms Katherine Phillips Appointed on 13 July 2012
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15. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (Continued)_
b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

(i} Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuseration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Limited, appointed by LM Investment Management Limited as per its
service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directly from the Scheme and there are no
agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme. The remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allowed based on
each of the KMP's cost of remuneration zpplicable to the Scheme. No remuneration has been altocated to the EM Manaped
Petformance Fund for the year ended 30 June 2012. The principles used to allocate these costs in future financial years (for
disclosure purposes only) are discussed below.

(it) Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of Directors of LM Investment Management Limited are responsible for determining and
reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Manager. The Executive Directors assess the approptiateness of the
nature and amount of emoluments of the KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the

overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is intended that the
manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Manager.

Tt is the Executive Directors' policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the Executive Directors of the
Manager, but with no other parties.

(iii) Non-executive Directors

Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This take into account workload
requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Directors are not paid to executive Directors as their
remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and conditions.

b) Compensation of Key Management Personacl

(iv) Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations !

For all schemes managed by the Manager, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been aliocated to each scheme. No
remuneration has been allogated fo the LM Managed Performance Fund for the year ended 30 June 2012. The Manager will
estimate the amount of time spent by each KMP performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a petcentage
basis, allocate the remuneration cost to each scheme, Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather has
acted in a role as KMP of the Manager only, remuneration cost will be allocated evenly across all schemes.,

Loans to specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectty any new loans to the KMP or their relaied entities during
the period. The existing loan made to Peter Drake is disclosed under Note 12.

¢) Other transactions and balances with specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party Note 12, the Scheme has no other transactions ard balances with specified
KMP.
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16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

a) Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Processes

Risks arising from holding financial instrumests are inherent in the Scheme's activities, and are managed through a process of
ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The Scheme is exposed to credit risk, liguidity risk, and market risk.

Financial instruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of generating a return on the
investrnent made by unitholders, in addition to derivatives, cash and cash equivalents, net assets atiributable to unitholders, and
other financial instruments such as trade debtors and creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that arise from these financial instruments,

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets atizibutable fo unitholders of
the Scheme from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting
date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below. Information about the total {air value of financie! instruments exposed to risk, as
well as compliance with established investment mandate limits, is also monitored by the Manager. These mandate limits reflect the
investment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as the level of risk that the Scheme is willing to accept.

This information is prepared and reported o relevant partics within the Manager on & regular basis as deemed appropriate,
including the fund manager, compliance manager, other key management, Risk and Investient Comumittees, and ultimately the
Board of Directors of the Manager.

As part of its risk management strategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage exposures resulting from changes in
foreign currencies.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty, or
where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have
similar economic foatures that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political, and other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure to ensure concentrations of risk remain within
acceptable levels and either reduces the exposure or uses derivative insiruments and collateral to manage the excessive
concentrations when they arise.

b) Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the

Scheme to incur a financial loss.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Scheme, other than derivatives, the Scheme's exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure equal to the fair value of thess instruments as disclosed in the
Statement of Financial Position. This does not represent the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of
changes in value, but best represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting date.

Credit visk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, lirnited to those with positive fair values.
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16, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
b) Credit Risk {Continued)
The Scheme minimises credit risk by:
- undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
- dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances; and

- obtaining independent valuations for all new loans.

As at year end 11.47% (2011: 13.48%) of the mortgage loans were seeured by Commercial projects and Retail (.80% (2011:
2.69%) and Residential 87.58% (2011: 80.23%) and Industrial 0.15% (2011: 3.60%).

The carrying amount of renegotiated foans which would have been past due or impaired at 30 June 2012 was $30,066,913 (2011:
$51,423,842). T

Risk concentrations of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterpariy and by geographical region. The percentage of loans secured by
property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2012 2011
Australian Capital Territory 0.37% 0.00%
New South Wales 17.06% 23.62%
Queensland 74.98% 66.68%
VYictoria 1.07% 3.79%
Western Australia 6.52% 5.91%
Total 100% 100%

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to mortgage loan is the canying value of the assets as indicated in the
Statement of Financial Position.

The Scherne has a concentration: of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign currency swaps are entered into
with the four counterparties.

Credit quality of mortgage loans

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in accordance with the
investment mandate of the Scheme. The Scheme's exposure in each category is monitored on a daily basis. This review process
allows the Manager io assess the potential foss as a resuit of risks and take corrective action.

As at 30 June 2012, the Schetne was mortgagee in possession of security of $76,702,039 (2011: $71,654,937) and taken possession
of assets offered as collateral security valued at $96,677,404 (2011: §78,333,069).

Past due or mortgages in possession loans are classified as either being impaired or recoverable based on assessment of current
market position as at date of the report. Past due status and actual recoverability of these amounts are not always mutually
correlated. Recoverability is dependant on several factors and the Manager aiways seeks to maximise the return of these amounts
through gross realisation workout strategies, enforcement of security and loan restructuring. The Matiager has significant resources
in-house dedicated to managing these assets to the best possible recovery position.
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16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to investment activities or funding
unitholder redemptions.

The nature of the investments entered into by the Scheme commands that liquidity be managed cautiously and aligned to the
redemptions policy outfined within the constifution of the Scheme. At 30 June 2012, the redemptions requesied from: unitholders
but not paid was $12,733,976 (2011: $14,886,335). This amount equates to 3.6% (2011: 6.0%) of the funds under management at
that date.

As at 13 Noverber 2012, $23,727,275 (2011: $21,274,377) of redemptions had been requested by unitholders, whick equates to
6.3% of funds under management and is within the normal percentage parameters of redemptions at any one time as determined by
the manager.

During the petiod, the Managet continued to progress with the various development aspects specific to the iderlying assets and
balance the cash needs of that asset development with the ongoing payment of investor redemptions.

Significant progress has been made across both areas. A mumber of the assets are now at the point of presales and commencerrent
of construction, and will return Haquidity to the Fund through sales from 2013 onwards.

The MPF has continued to pay investor redemptions. From a high of just under 40%, fund redemptions now measure at less than
6% of Funds Under Management.

Looking forward, the Fuad is now moving into a more liquid position as cash variables in the form of loan repayments are realised.
New investor inflows will always remain a variable; however the fund portfolio management model foreeasts actual loan
repayments and capital from the sale of assets increasing significantly from the end of the Ist quarter of 2013. As such, the
Directors forecast the MPF liguidity to be operating within normality by the middle of 2013. The Directors are aware that many
investors have an immediate need for cash, and we are actively pursuing initialives on several fronts which, should they come to
fruition, will see the Fund make a considerable catch up on redemptions early in 2013. The prime objective of the fund continues to
be to maintain investor capital and achieve the targeted outperformance. The Fund has achieved that objective and to date the Fund
has declared investor retums at or above {arget of 3.00%pa - 5.00%pa over cash rates whilst maintaining full capital value.

The Manager employs risk management sivategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet its obligations as above. The liquidity
risk associated with the need to satisfy unithelders requests for redemptions are miligated by offering fixed term investment periods
for investors and by maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-cail investments.

In order to minimise Hquidity Tisk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of both unitholder redemptions
and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme has adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover fund obligations
and that liquidity is managed within the Scheme's policies and limits.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Licbilities
Financial Habilities of the Group comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable, net assets attributable to umitholders, fair
value of foreign exchange contracts and other borrowings. Trade and other payables and distributions payable have no contractual

maturities but are typically settled within 30 days. Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 months of year end.

Net assets atiributable to unitholders mature over the following petiods:

2012 2011
Due and payable 313,171 3,728,478
< 12 months 215,556,336 200,269,647
12-24 months 72,495,438 23,526,400
24-36 months 75,111,392 46,326,236
36-48 months 3,155,129 939,757
> 4% months 17,004,891 2,585,767
Total 383,636,357 277,376,286
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16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)
&) Market risk

Matket risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as inferest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity
analysis, and minimised through ensuring that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate
limits and investment strategies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate tisk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of financial
instruments. The Scheme has established limits on investments in interest bearing assefs, which are monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme's exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial
liabilities is set out below:
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2012

16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJIECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d} Market risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Scheme's Statement of Comprehensive Income fo a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the
interest income for one year, based on the financial instruments held at 30 June 2012.

Accounting assumptions

The kasis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates.

2012
. s Sensitivity of interest
Change in basis points income (§000's)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Financtal Instruments 50 30 1,831 (1,831
100 100 3,662 (3,662)

2011

. . itivity of interest
Change in basis points Sensitivity of interes

income ($000's)
Increase Decrease increase Decrease
83
Financial Instruments 30 30 LI83 (1,183)
100 100 2,366 (2,366)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into foreign exchange contracts principally to hedge the foreign exchange
risk implicit in the value of the itrvestor funds denominated in foreign cutrencies and to secure a particular exchange
rate for a planned purchase or sale of investments. The term of the contracts rarely exceeds twelve months.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2012 was $ 4,216,790 (2011: $4,670,351).

The nominal Australian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2012 was $ 299,589,159
(2011: $281,808,635 ).

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant expesure at 30 June 2012 on ifs monetary
assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of
the currency rate against the Australian Doliar on the Statement of Comprehensive Income, with ail other variables held
constant.

32 566




LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency

Investments in the fund are hedged in the relevani currency agains

manages foreign currency risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).

The FFECS are facilitated by several banking fisms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and investors. The
below table is only applicable if the FFEC facilitator is unable to meet its obligation and the fund therefore secks an

alternative party to transact the FFEC.

Accounting Assumptions - Variability of foreign currency

The sensitivity is based on the volatility of changes in global currency.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

t Australian dollar currency movements. The fund

2012
AUD equivalent in exposure| Change in currency rate in Effect on net assets
Currency by curreacy % atiributable to unitholders
(000's) (000's)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

AED 2,856 10 10 285 (285)
CAD 2,731 10 10 273 (273}
CHF 1,332 10 10 133 (133)
EUR 40,637 10 10 4,064 (4,064)
GBP 179,392 10 10 17,663 (17,663)
HED 917 10 10 92 (92)
JPY 2,699 10 0 270 (270)
NOK 147 10 10 15 (1%)
NzZD 2,172 10 10 217 (217
SEK 5,628 10 10 163 (163)
SGD 1,660 10 10 166 (166}
THB 3,639 10 10 364 (364)
TRY 14,870 10 10 1,487 (1,487)
USD 42,957 10 10 4,296 (4,296}
ZAR 1,953 10 i 195 (195)
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

Accounting Assumptions - Variability of foreign currency (Continued)

2011

AUD equivalent in exposute

Change in currency rate in

Effect on net assets

Currency by currency {000's) Yo atiributable to unitholders
(000's)
Increase Decrease lncrease Decrease

AED 1,140 10 10 3L 32
CAD 2,038 10 10 (188) 224
CHF 601 10 10 (55} 61
EUR 31,732 10 10 (2,577 2,840
GBP 113,218 10 10 (9,538) 11,221
HKD 783 10 10 (340) 348
IPY 3,776 10 10 (7,310) 7,369
NZD 1,993 10 10 {227) 247
SEK 402 10 10 (248) 249
SGD 1,866 10 10 (199) 221
THB 2,562 10 10 {2,181) 2,219
TRY 11,758 10 10 (1,069) 1,306
UsD 29,392 10 10 (2,822) 3,193
ZAR 1,484 10 10 (973) 977
Equity Risk

The Scheme is not subject to equity risk at 30 June 2012.
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17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Scheme's financial assets and Habilities included in the Statemeni of Financial Position are carried at their fair
value as disclosed by class of financial instruments ot at amounts that approximate their fair values,

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adopted in determining fair values for invesiments.
Disclosed below is the fair value of the Scheme's financial instruments.
The following metheds and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and labilities.

Fair value: The Scheme uses various methods in estimating the fair value of'a financial instrument. The methods
comprise:

Level 1 - the fair value is calcuiated using quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 - the fair value is estimated using injputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices);

Level 3 - the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

Fair Value Carrying
Amount
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
3 5 3 3 $
Financial Assets
Forward currency conitacts
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Forward currency contracts 4,216,790 4,216,790 4,216,790
Total Financial Liabilities 4,216,790 4,216,790 4,216,790
. Carryin
Fair Value Amo{mf
2 3 tal

2011 Le‘;&l 1 Le‘;el Le\;el To$ 5
Financial Assets
Forward currency contracts
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Forward currency contracts 4,670,351 4,670,351 4,670,351
Total Financial Liabilities 4,670,351 4,670,351 4,670,351

The fair values of currency exchange contracts (forwards and swaps) are calculated by reference to current exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity and risk profiles.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2012.

EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF BALANCE DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the Scheme
disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2012 or on the results and cash flows of the Scheme for the year ended on
that date, other than those detailed below:

PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION

a) Summary of financial information

The individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregate amounts:

Statement of financial position

2012 2011
5 $
Total Assets 367,876,033 271,937,884
Total Liabilities 14,088,647 21,732,020
Net Assets attributable to unitholders 353,787,386 250,203,864
Tota] units on issue at year end 356,367,645 249,968,345
Undistributed income/(excess distribution) (1,744,892) 924,938
Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders (1,744,892) 924,938
Total comprehensive income {1,744,892) 924 638

b) Guarantees entered into by the parent company

The parent entity has provided limited financial guarantees to a related party investment scheme on 2 loans which is
limited to the payment of interest only during the financial year ended 30 June 2012,

¢) Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
The parent entity did not have any contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2012.
d) Contractual commitments

The parent entity did not have any contractual commitments as at 30 June 2012,
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND

DIRECTORS' BECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Direstors of LM Investment Management Limited, | state that:

a) The financial staternents and notes as set out on pages 6 10 36 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001 , and:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(ii) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme and the consolidated group's financial position as at 30
June 2012, and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the financial year ended on that date; and

(iiiy  the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as made by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

b) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme and the consolidated group will be able to pay its
debis as and when they become due and payable; and

c) The financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitution.

On behalf of the Board
LM Investment Management Limited

’

Peter ﬁfé{e
Director

Gold Coast
Date: 7th day of Deceraber 2012
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
ABN 95595 833174
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM Managed Perfarmance Fund {the Scheme) and Controlled
Entities {the Consolidated Group) which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the
statement of comprehensive income, staternent of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the
directors’ declaration of the consalidated group comprising the Scheme and the entities it controlled at the year's
end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and s free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. in note 2, the directors also state, in accordance with AASB 101: Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Austraian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Scheme’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s Internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
have given the directors of the consolidated group & written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is
included in the directors’ report.
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LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND
ABN 95595 833174
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LM MANAGED PERFORMANCE FUND AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Auditor's Opinion
in our opinion:
a. the financial report of LM Managed Performance Fund and its controfied entities is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including: -
i. giving a true and fair view of the Scheme's financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and
ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 2.

WILLIAMS PARTNERS
INDEPENDENT AUDIT SPECIALISTS

/%zdmm

REG L WILLIAMS BCom CPA RCA
PARTNER
Registered Company Auditor No. 165400

4 Helensvale Road
Helensvale Qld 4212

Dated this 7 day of December 2012
Australia
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

ABN: 90 403 232 442
Annual Report

For the year ended 30 June 2012
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
ABN: 90 403 232 442

Annual Report — 30 June 2012
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The responsible entity of LM Australian Income Fund - Currency Protected is LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68 077 208
451}, The responsible entity’s registered office is Level 4, RSL Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217.
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LVt AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directars of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM Australian income Fund — Currency
Protected, present their report together with the financial report of the LM Australian Income Fund — Currency Protected
{“the Scheme”), for the year ended 30 June 2012, The Directors’ Report does not form part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the year or since the end of the
year and up to the date of this report:

Name Year of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003 — Resigned 21 June 2012
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 june 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Nir Simon Tickner Appointed 18 September 2008 — Rasigned 1 August 2012
Mr Grant Fischer Appointed 14 March 2012 — Resigned 12 August 2012
iVis Katherine Phiilips Appointed 13 July 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Scheme commenced operations on 25 November 2008, The Scheme's principal activity is investing unitholders’
funds in cash investments, unlisted managed investment schemes and in registered first mortgages in Australia in
accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and in accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in
the current product disclosure document.

The Scheme did not hiave any employees during the year.
SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted on 14 October 2008. The Responsible Entity of the
Scheme is LV Investment Managemaent Limited who has been the Responsible Entity since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9 Beach
Road, surfers Paradise, Queensiand.

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

During the year, the Scheme invested directly in cash assets, unlisted managed investment schemes and registered first
mortgages in Australia.

The change in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Scheme is presented In the Statement of Comprehensive
fncome.

funds under management at 30 june 2012 totalled $27,859,871 (2011: 512,461,203},
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND ~ CURRENCY PROTECTED

Directors’ Report

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as follows:
30 June 2012 30 June 2011

$ 5
Net operating income/{loss) before financing costs 1,293,655 446,475
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders (1,178,874} (471,817}
{Increase) f decrease In net assets attributable to unitholders 114,781 (25,342)

UNITHOLDER FUNDS

There were unkis on issue totalling $27,859,871 at 30 June 2012 (2011: $12,461,203). During the year. Units totalling
$18,446,801 were issued by the Scheme (2011: $10,058,782) and units totalling $3,095,527 were withdrawn {2011:
$2,038,106).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2012, the Scheme held assets to a total vaiue of $28,972,987 (2011: $13,024,380). The basis for valuation
of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements,

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of Scheme
property during the year, for funds management and administrative services provided on behalf of the Responsible

Entity:

2012 2011
$ $

»  Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration Pty Ltd 426,984 -
= Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Investment Management

Limited - -
= Expenses incurred by LM Administration Pty Ltd which are reimbursed In

accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution, including

administration and custodian fees 10,588 142,643
= Expenditures incurred by the Responstble Entity and associated cormpanies

on behalf of the Scheme, for which reimbursement will not be sought 182,261 -

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

in the opinion of the directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme that occurred
during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Report

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 15 of the financial report there has been no matter or circumstance that has
arisen since the end of the year that has significantly affected or may affect the Scheme’s operations in future financial
years ot the results of those operations of the Scheme’s state of affairs in future years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those
operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it woutd be likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAEL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under a law of
the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been no known significant breaches of any other
environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to Insurance cover provided to either
the officers of LM Investment Management Limited or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of LM
Investment Management Limited act in accerdance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers rermain
indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the Scheme. The auditors
of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set
out on page 4.

Signed in accordance with a {ution of the Directors of EM Investment Management Limited.

Director
Gold Co

4 October 2012
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Auditor's independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment
Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM Australian Income
Fund - Currency Protected

In reiation to our audit of the financial report of LM Australian Income Fund - Currency Protected for the
financial year ended 30 June 2012, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no
contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable

code of professional conduct.

E revay m““ts:.mi

Ernst & Young

Pauta McLuskie
Partner
Brisbane

4 October 2012

Liabllity limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation 579
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2012

Income

interest income

Other loan fees

Net foreign exchange gain on investor funds
Total income

Expenses

Management fee expense

Advisor commissions

Legal fees

Impairment expense

Net foreign exchange loss on foreign exchange contracis
Other expenses

Total expenses excluding distributions to unitholders
Net profit attributable to unitholders

Distributions paid to unitholders

Net profit/{foss} after distributions to unitholders
Other corﬁprehensive income

Changes in net assets attributable te unitholders

Income tax expense

Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders after income tax
expense

Note

2012 2011
5 $

1,726,267 667,959
658,512 542,106
919,569 926,039
3,304,348 2,136,104
426,984 .
360,211 122,528
56,692 51,697
592 7,211
1,031,892 1,420,705
134,322 87,488
2,010,693 1,689,629
1,293,655 446,475
{1,178,874) (471,817)
114,781 (25,342)
114,781 (25,342)
114,781 (25,342)
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

STATEMENT OF FINANCEAL POSITION
As at 30 june 2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivé[ents
Prepayments

Other receivable

Loans and receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities

Payables

Unitholder funds awalting investment
Distributions payable

Fair value of farward exchange contracts

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributuble to unitholders

NET ASSETS
Represented by:

Net assets attributable to unitholders

Note

10

2012 2011
$ $

12,955,958 5,182,533
557,792 496,271
70,332 70,424
15,368,905 7,275,152
28,952,987 13,024,380
172,285 160,340
299,418 50,591
305,423 160,502
315,990 191,744
1,093,116 563,177
27,859,871 12,461,203
27,859,871 12,461,203
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LVi AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

TOTAL

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued on reinvestment of distributions
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) on investor funds

Transfers to and from the statement of comprehensive Income

Closing Balance

2012 2011
$ $
12,461,203 5,391,908
18,446,801 9,785,248
(3,095,527) (2,038,106)

864,837 273,534
{932,224) (926,039)
114,781 {25,342)
27,859,871 12,461,203
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LIVi AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest income received

Other income received

Management fees paid

Adviser commissions paid

Other costs paid

Tax (paid)/received

Realised gains/{losses) on derivatives

Net cash inflow/{outflow} from operating activities
Cash flows from fnvesting activities

Receipts from sale of investments

Payments for purchase of investments

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts from the issue of units

Payment for redemption of units

Funds awaiting investment

Receipts/(payments) from margin call account
Distributions paid

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

10(b}

10(a)

2012 2011
$ $
1,331,037 176,541
261,421 152,106
(142,573) -
(793,894) (277,135)
(163,478) (176,894}
(24,338) 32,670
(1,168,087) {1,489,098)
(699,912) (1,581,810}
4,379,592 13,219,518
(11,668,374) (15,168,282)
(7,288,782} {1,948,764)
18,165,602 9,785,248
(2,995,542) {2,037,664)
(198,407) (83,737)
248,326 (233,909)
15,220,479 7,429,938
7,231,785 3,899,364
4,564,992 665,628
11,796,777 4,564,992
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM Australian Income Fund — Currency Protected (“the Scheme”) for the year ended 30
June 2012 was authorised for issue In accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 4

October 2012,

- The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on 14 October 2008. The Scheme will terminate on
13 April 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme Constitution {(as
arnended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, Is incorporated and domiciled in
Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise,
Queensland.

The principal activities of the Scheme consisted of Investing unitholders’ funds in cash investments, unlisted
managed investment schemes in Australia and registered first mortgages.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial staternents are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated in the following text.

a) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the Scheme
Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicabie Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation of
investments n financial assets, which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost.

The statement of financial position presents assets and labilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does not
distinguish between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 — Presentation of Financial
Statements. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within fwelve months, except for loans and
recelvables and net assets attributable to unitholders. The amount expected to be recovered or settled within
twelve months in relation to the balances cannot be reliably determined.

The financial report is presented in Australian Dollars {$).

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards as issued by
the Australian Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
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LM AUSTRALIAN iINCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
b} New accounting standards and interpretations

Australian Accaunting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
effective have not been adopted by the Scheme for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2012. The impact
of these standards and interpretations has been assessed and to the extent applicable to the Scheme are
discussed balow. Standards and Interpretations that are not expected to have a material impact on the Scheme
have not been included.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and velated amendment AASB 2009-11

AASB 9 applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 and will therefore apply to
the Scheme from 1 July 2013, The Scheme does not intend to early adopt AASB 9 as permitted by the
standard, and the actual impact on initial application will depend on certain elections as disclosed below.

AASB 9 reqguires all financial instruments to be measured at fair value unless the criteria for amortised cost
are met, The application of the standard is not expected to change the measurement basis of any of the
Scheme's current financial instruments, however, AASB 9 allows the Scheme to elect to present gains and
losses on equity securities through other comprehensive income, which may impact the presentation of
these gains and losses. The impact of the standard may also change if the nature of the Scheme’s activities or
investments changes prior to initial application.

¢} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

i} Significant accounting judgements
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
No judgements have been determined to be individually significant.

il Significant accounting estimates and assumptions
The carrying amounts of certain assets and llabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions
of future events, The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and labilities within the next annual reporting year are:

a) Allowance for impairment lass on foans and receivables
The Scherne determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation

of the value of future cash flows through “on completion” valuation or the property based oh an ‘as is’
valuation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

2. SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
¢) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions {continued)
b}  Fairvalue of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position cannot be derived from active markats, they are determined using a varlety of valuation
. techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are taken from
“observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values.

The judgements include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty’s), carrelation and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. The models are calibrated regularly and tested for validity
using prices from any observable curreni market transactions in the same instrument {without
modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

d) Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shori-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis. For the purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

e} Distribution income

Distribution income is recognised when the unitholders’ right to receive the payment is establishad.

f) interestincome

Interest Income Is recognised as the interest accrues {using the effective interest rate method, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial instrument) to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

g} Default management fees

Income from default management fees is recognised in line with the executed agreement with the borrower
when an event of default occurs.

h} Changes in the fair value of investments

Gains or losses oh investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair value at sale, or
at year end, and the fair vafue at the previous valuation point. This includes both realised and unrealised gains

and losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

2. SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
i} Fees, commissions and other expenses

Except where included in the effective interest calculation {for financial instruments carried at amortised cost),
fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis. Audit and compliance fees are Included with ‘other
expenses’ and are recorded on an accrual basis.

jl Finance costs

Interest on borrowings Is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the year to which it relates.
Issue costs associated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which

they relate using the effective interest method.

k} Financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments in the scope of AASB 139 Financiaf instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified
as either financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recelvables, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale investrents or other financial liabilities as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of Investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The Schemne determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Scheme
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under
contracts that require delivery of the assets within the year established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace,

i} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading included forward exchange contracts. These assets are acquired principally for
the purpose of mitigating the risk of movements in the value of non-Australian Dollar investor funds and
facilitating forecasting of future cash flows. During the year, all derivatives are classified as held for trading.
Derivative financial instruments entered into by the Scheme do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as
defined by AASB139. Consequently, hedge accounting is not applied by the Scheme In the 2012 financial year.

i} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinakle payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are Initially measured at fair value including transaction
costs directly attributable to the financial asset. After Initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective Interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
k} Financial assets and liabilities {continued)
ii] Loans and receivables (continued)

Loans and recelvables are assessed for impairment at each reporting year. An allowance is made for credit
losses when there Is objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able io collect the [oans and receivables.
Impalrment losses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a result of future events are not
recognised. if a provision for Impairment has been recognised in relation to a Joan, write offs for bad debts are
made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has previously been recognised, write offs for bad
debts are recognised as an expense In the statement of comprehensive income,

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the Credit
Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the colflectability of the debts is considered doubtful
by estimation of expected losses in relation to loan portfolios where specific identification is Impracticable.

The components of tmpaired assets are as follows:
“Loans In arrears” are loans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be able to
collect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

“Assets acquired through the enforcement of securlty” are assets acquired In full or partial settiement of a
toan or similar facifity through the enforcement of security arrangements.

Where possible, the Fund seeks to restructure loans to have loans fully performing, however the fund will
take possession of the collateral where necessary. The renegotiation may involve extending payment terms
and arrangement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated any impairment is
measured the same way as performing loans. The renegotiated loans continue to be assessed individually

and collectively for impairment.

“Restructured loans” arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in
meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are removed
from ‘restructure loans’ after a year of 12 months of performance against loan revised terms and conditions.
Loans with revised terms are included in ‘loans in arrears’ when impairment provisions are required.

When the Responsible Entity determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the interest is

suspended and not brought into income. Should the Responsible Entity’s analysis of the collectability
subsequently change the interest will be brought into income at the time it is determined to be collectible.
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

Notes to tha Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012
2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[} Advisor commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders’ investment advisors and are calculated as a percentage of
funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are brought to account onan
accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related units are redeemed.

m} Payables

Payables are carried at amortjsed cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Scheme
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the statement
of financial position as unitholders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 June 2012 under

the Scheme’s Constitution.
n) Increase/decrease in net assets atiributable to unitholders

Non-distributable Income is transferred directly to net assets attributable {o unitholders and may consist of
unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable, expenses accrued for
which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net capital gains on the
realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred Income previously taken directly to net
assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable will be included in the determination of
distributable Income in the same year in which it becomes assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is
also transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders.

o} Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to
unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the net
taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of
Investments. Unrealised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to net
assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised. Capitat losses are not
distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains.

589



15
LI AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND ~ CURRENCY PROTECTED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

p) Goods and services tax {GST)

The GST incutred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties such as audit
fees, custodial services and mvestment management fees have been passed onto the Scheme. The Scheme
qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits {RITCs) at a rate of 75%.

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included in receivable
in the statement of financial position. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the cash flow statement on a
gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable to the
ATO s classified as an operating cash flow.

q}l Applications and redemptions

Applications recelved for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme. Redemptions
from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed occurs. Unit redemption prices are
determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of units on issue.

Applications received in foreign currency denominations are initially recorded in the functional currency by
applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreigh currency denominated unitholder
funds are translated into the Scheme’s functional currency at balance date, using the spot rate prevailing at that
date. Gains and losses arising from foreign exchange translation are recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise,

r) Taxation

Under current legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of the
Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (i.e. unitholders are presently entitled to the

income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of unrealised
capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital gains tax will be
distributed so that the Scheme Is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses are not distributed to
unitholders but are retained In the Scheme to be offset against any realised capital gains. if realised capital gains
exceed realised capital losses, the excess Is distributed to unitholders.
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
s) Capital Management

The Responsible Entity manages the Scheme’s net assets attributable to unitholders as capital, not withstanding
net assets attributable to unitholders is classified as a liability. The amount of net assets attributable to
unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Scheme is subject to daily applications and
redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

The Responsible Entity monitors the level of daily applications and redemptions relative to the liquid assets in the
Scheme. The Scheme is not subject to any eéxternally imposed capital requirements.

t) Derivative financial instruments

The Scheme uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracis te mitigate its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract Is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value, All derivatives are
carrled as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as cash flow hedges, are taken
directly to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to valuations provided by the financial
institutions with which the forward exchange contracts are held.

u) Foreign currency translations

The Scheme's transactions in foreign currencies comprise applications and withdrawals of foreign currency
unitholder funds and payment of distributions. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the
functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liahility denominated in foreigh currencies are retransiated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and exchange rate gains and losses recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

v} Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settied, between knowledgeable,
witling parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at
the reporting date is based on their quoted price or binding dealer price quotations (bid price for lang positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include: using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another Instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible.

Refer to Note 13 to the financial statements for the methods and assumptions applied in determining fair value
for each class of financial instrument,
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LV AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 -

3. INTEREST INCOME

interest income - mortgage loans
interest Income — cash assets

4. DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

Distributions paid / reinvested
Distributions payable

5. OTHER EXPENSES

1} Audit and compiiance fegs
Other

i)  Audit fees paid and payable by the Scheme:
- Audit of the financial report
- Other regulatory audit services

2012 2011
$ $
1,418,299 491,418

307,968 176,541
1,726,267 667,959

2012 2011

$ S
873,451 311,315
305,423 160,502

1,178,874 471,817

2012 2011
5 s

54,008 57,041
80,314 30,447

134,322 87,488

45,953 50,141
8,055 6,900
54,008 57,041

These expenses have been included within ‘Other Expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive income.
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LM AUSTRALIAN iNCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TC UNITHOLDERS

Net assets attributable to unitholders

Opening balance

issued during the year

Redeemed during the year

Reinvestment of distributions

Net forelgn exchange (gain)/loss on investor funds

Movement in changes in net assets attributable to unitholders

Closing Balance

Jun-12 Jun-11

$ $
12,486,545 5,391,908
18,446,801 9,785,248
{3,095,527) {2,038,106)
864,837 273,534
{932,224) {926,039)
27,770,432 12,486,545
84,435 (25,342}
27,859,871 12,461,203

As at 30 fune 2012, $98,469 (2011: nil) of redermptions had been requested by unitholders but not yet paid. Of the
total requested redemptions, $82,786 (2011: nil) related to requests occurring within thirty days of year end.
$15,683 {2011: nil) had been requested more than 30 days prior to year end. At the date of this report, 584,488

has since been paid.

2012

Foreign

Currency

Amount
Unitholder funds by currency
Australian Dollars 8,700,037
British Pounds 7,019,560
Canadian Bollar 65,035
Euro 4,323,388
Hong Kong Doliar 1,019,372
Japanese Yen 5,097,248
New Zealand Dollars 256,230
Singapore Dollars 731,672
Swedish Krona 3,679,067
Swiss Franc 9,127
Thai Baht 169,919
Turkish Lira 962,570
United Arab Emirates Dirham 173,930
Us Dollars 1,644,727

2012
AUD
$

8,700,037
10,859,468
53,102
5,364,671
131,030
75,361
201,091
569,572
521,203
9,420
5,318
525,822
47,233

1,640,298
28,703,635

2011
Foreign
Currency
Amount

1,604,075

2,945,399
3,329,585
1,230,660
4,135,913

508,428

3,455,737

149,809

912,992

2011
AUD
$

1,599,310
4,424,107
4,504,680
147,589
47,843
394,252

508,535

4,556

854,673

12,486,545

As at 30 June 2012 foreign currency held in Australia dollars by the scheme amounted io $28,703,635 {2011:
12,486,545}, The foreign currency value in Australian dollars reflects the current unit price for each product as at

30 June 2012,

Unitholders’ distribution entitlements are calculated in accordance with distribution rates and are either
distributed to unitholders in cash or are reinvested via the purchase of additional units in the Scheme.
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LIVi AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

7. PREPAYMENTS

2012 2011
$ $
Prepaid Responsible Entity management fees - 284,411
Prepaid advisor trail commission 557,792 211,860
‘ 557,792 496,271
8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
$ $
Secured morigage loans 15,368,905 7,275,152
Net loans and advances 15,368,905 7,275,152
a) Maturity analysis — secured mortgage loans
Less than 2 months 11,582,064 7,275,152
3-6 months 1,710,006 -
6-12 months 2,066,835 -
12-18 months - -
18-24 months - -
24-36 months - ’ -
15,368,905 7,275,152

b) Concentration of risk
For concentration of risk relating to mortgage type and geographical focation, refer to Note 12.

c} Netdefault loans
At 30 June 2012, the balance of loans that were past due but not impaired was $Nil (2011: SNil). As per the
scheme's policy, loans are impaired once they exceed 90 days.

d) Loans approved but not funded
As at 30 Jung 2012, there were Snil loans that had been approved but not yet funded.

594



20
LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

9. RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM Australian income Fund — Currency Protected is LM Investment Management
Limited {ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on
behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Lid, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LV
Administration Pty Ltd is paid 2 management fee directly from the Scheme.

Custodian

The Custodian of the Scheme is The Trust Company Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM investment Management Limited during the
financial year are disclosed in Note 11.

Directors’ remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of remuneration
patd by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directars of the Responsible Entity In connection with their
responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified In Note 11,

Directors’ holdings of units

LM [nvestment Management Limited and its associates held no interests in the Scheme at year-end (2011: $nil).

Other transactions with the Scheme

from time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities, may
invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and conditions as
those emered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has
entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year and there were no
material contracts invalving directors’ interests subsisting at year-end.
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

9. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Related party transactions

Administration and funds managemeant services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible Entity by
LM Adrninistration Pty Ltd. LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee for these services directly from
Scheme assets on an arm’s length basls. In the current year the Responsible Entity has forfeited any right to be
pald management fees under this agreement.

Responsible Entity’s remuneration 2012 2011
T8 -8
Total remuneration received or due and receivable:
B Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration
Pty Ltd (i) 426,984 -
m  Management fees pald or payable directly to LM Investment
Management Limited
m  Expenses including administration expenses incurred by the
Responsible Entity, which are reimbursed to the Responsible
Entity in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's
Constitution. -
m  Expenses including administration expenses incurred by the LM
Administration Pty Ltd, which are reimbursed to the LM
Administration Pty Ltd in accordance with the provisions of the
Scheme’s Constitution. 10,588 142,643
W Expenditures incurred by the Responsible Entity and associated
companies on behalf of the Scheme, for which reimbursement

will not be sought 186,261 -

Balances with related parties / (payabies}
The aggregate ameunts receivable from related parties by the
Scheme at balance date is as foliows:

LM Administration Pty Lid - Prepaid management fees - 284,411
LM Administration Pty Ltd — Reimbursed for fund expense (i) (504) -
{i) During the petiod, $426,984 in management fee expense has been recognised by the Scheme, which is

approximately 1.64% of net assets as at 30 June 2012. The constitution of the Scheme allows the
Responsible Entity to recover a Management Fee of up to 5.5% p.a. of the net assets of the Scheme. The
product disclosure statement (dated 1 September 2011) estimated that the Responsible Entity would be
paid a Management Fee of approximately 1.5% p.a. of the net assets of the Scheme.

(i} buring the year LM Administration Pty Limited, & refated party, has paid Scheme expenses totalling
$10,588 (2011: 142,643). These payments made on behalf of the Scheme have been reflected in the
Scheme’s statement of comprehensive income as fund expenses of $10,588. During the year the Scheme

has paid $10,084, resulting in $504 remaining payable at year end.
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012
9. RELATED PARTIES {continued)
During the year, ohe mortgage loan to the value of $3,933,750 and the related first mortgage security had been

transferred from LM Managed Performance Fund to LM Australian Income Fund — Currency Protected. The
transfer was performed on an arm’s length basis and on commercial terms :

Unitholder investing octivities

LV investment Management Limited or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Litmited have no
holdings in the Scheme as at 30 June 2012,

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2012 2011
$ $
Cash at bank and in hand 11,567,359 4,514,401
Foreign currency awaiting investment 229,418 50,591
Cash held in margin accounts 1,159,181 617,541
12,955,958 5,182,533

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flaws, cash and cash
equivalents comprise:

- Cash at bank and in hand * 11,567,359 4,514,401
- Foreign currency awaiting investment 229,418 50,591
11,796,777 4,564,992

- * _excludes $1,159,181 (2011: $617,541) of cash held in margin accounts in relation to foreign exchange
contracts and therafore not available to the Scheme.

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $12,955,958 (2011: $5,182,533).
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND - CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

2012 2011
5 $
b} Reconciliation of change in net assets attributahie to unitholders
to net cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets attributable to unitholders 112,020 {27,394)
Adjustments for:

Distributions to unitholders ’ 1,178,374 471,817
Realised foreign exchange {gain}/loss on investor funds (111,368} (314,824)
Unrealised foreign exchange {gain)/loss on investor funds (808,202) (611,215)
Unrealised foreign exchange [gain}/loss on forelgn exchange

contracts - 313,336
Non-cash loan fees received (476,963} (390,000)
Non-cash interest (427,339} {479,157)
Loan written off 592 7,211
{Increase}/decrease in prepayments (345,931) (204,267}
{(Increase}/decrease in recelvables 284,504 {416,474)
Increase/f{decrease} in payables {81,761) 51,088
increasef{decrease) in GST payable (24,338) 18,069
Net cash flows from/{used in} operating activities {699,912} {1,581,810)

¢} Reinvestment of distributions

During the financial year, the Scheme issued $864,837 (2011:5 273,534) in unitholder funds as a result of
reinvestment of distribution by unitholders. These transactions have not been included in the Statement of Cash

Flows.

11. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
a) Datails of Key Management Personnel

(i} Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel ("KMP”) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible Entity, The

Directors of the Responsible Entity during the year were:

Executive directors

Nir Peter Charles Drake Appoinied 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003 — Resighed 21 June 2012
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 18 September 2008 — Resigned 1 August 2012
Mr Grant Fischer Appointed 14 March 2012 — Resigned 12 August 2012

Non-executive directors

Mr John O'Sullivan Appointed 27 November 2007 - Resigned 19 September 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

11. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES {Continued}
b) Compensation of Key Management Personne!
(i) Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is pald by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM Investment Management Ltd as per
its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directly from the Scheme and
there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme, The remuneration of KMP as disclosed
below has been allocated based on the each KMP’s cost of remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles
used to allocate these costs (for disclosure purposes only) are discussed in section {iv) below.

(if} Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Invesiment Management Ltd are responsible for
determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible Entity. The Executive
directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the KMP on a vearly basis by
reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder
benefit from the retention of a high quality board. it is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be
optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Responsible Entity.

[t is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the Executive
Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

(iii) Non- executive directors

Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This takes into
account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Directors are not paid to
executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and conditions.

(iv} Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For alf schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been allocated to
each scheme. The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP performing
responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the remuneration cost
1o each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather has acted in a role as KMP
of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly across all schemes.
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LV AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2012
11. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (continued)

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

2012 2011

3 $
Short term 366,235 319,767
Post employment 13,294 14,974
Gther long term - -
Termination benefits - -
Equity based payment - -
Other - -

379,529 334,741

Loans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any oans to the KMP or their related
entities during the year.

¢} Other Transactions and Balances with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party Note 9, the Scheme has no other transactions and
balances with specified KMP.

12. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
a) Financial Risk Management Objectives, Pelicles, and Processes

Risks arising from holding financial Instruments are inherent in the Scheme’s activities, and are managed
through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The Scheme is exposed to credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk {which includes interest rate risk, currency risk and equity risk).

Finandial instruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of generating a
return on the investment made by unitholders, in addition to cash and cash eguivalents, net assets
attributable o unitholders, and other financlal instruments such as trade debtors and creditors, which arise

directly from its operations.

The Responsible Entity is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that arise from these financial
instruments.

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets
attributable to unitholders of the Scheme from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk variables.
information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below.
information about the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance with
established investment mandate fimits, Is also monitored by the Responsible Entity. These mandate limits
reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as the level of risk that the

Scheme is willing to accept.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued])

This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties within the Responsible Entity on a regular basis
as deemed appropriate, Including the fund manager, compliance manager, other key management, Risk and
Investment Committees, and uitimately the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be simitarly affected by changes in economic, political, and other conditions.

in order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure to ensure concentrations
of risk remain within acceptable ievels and either reduces the exgosure collateral to manage the excessive
concentrations when the arise.

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fall fo discharge an
obligation and cause the Scheme to incur a financial loss.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Scheme, the Scheme’s exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure equal to the fair value of these instruments
as disclosed in the Balance Sheet, This does not represent the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the
future as a result of changes in values, but best represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting
date.

Credit risk arising from derlvative finandial instruments, 1s at any time, limited to those with positive fair
values.

The Scheme minimises credit risk by:

- Undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;

- Dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;

- Obtaining independent valuations for all loans; and

- Maintaining an average foan to valuation ratio not exceeding 75% of the mortgage security.

Risk concentrations of credit risk

The Scheme Is exposed to a concentration of credit risk as the loans and receivables balance consists of eight
loans (2011: Two loans) to the value of $15,368,905 {2011: $7,275,152).

The Scheme has a concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign exchange
contracts are entered into with three counterparties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Credit quality of morigage loons

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in
accordance with the investment mandate of the Scheme. The Scheme’s exposure in each category is
monitored on a daily basis. This review process allows the Responsible Entity to assess the potentialloss as a
result of risks and take corrective action.

As at 30 June 2012, the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security refating to foans in default of $nil and
had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security valued at $nil.

Risk concentrations of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The percentage of
loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2012 2011

Within 40km of Sydney CBD - -
New South Wales — Other - -
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD 25.90% -
Victoria — Other - -
Queensland — Other 60.52% 75.25%
Canberra — Other - -
Western Australia 13.58% 24.75%
Tasmania i - -

100.00% 100.00%

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying value of the assets
as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

The Scheme has a concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign currency
swaps are entered into with the same counterparties.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obfigations in relation to investment
activities or funding unit holder redemptions,

The Responisible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet its

obligations. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests for redemptions are
mitigated by offering fixed term investment years for investors and by maintaining sufficient cash funds to
satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2012

¢} Liquidity risk {continued)

1n addition, the Schemes loan and receivable assets may be longer term than the unitholder funds fixed terms.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the fiquidity requirements of both
unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at ai times the Scheme as adequate cash
and cash equivalents to cover any unusual obligations {based on historical trends) and that liquidity is
managed within the Scheme’s policies and limits.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Scheme comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable and net assets
attributable to unitholders. Trade and other payables and distributions payable have no contractual
maturities but are typlcally settled within 30 days. The foreign exchange contracts are due to mature within
three months of 20 June 2012. Net assets attributable to unit holders mature over the following years:

Period from 30 June 2012 Value ($)
Due and Payable 1,093,116
< 12 months 18,670,865
12-24 months 5,074,112
24-36 months 3,591,089
>36 months 523,805
Total ' 28,952,987

d} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, that all investment activities are
undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment strategies.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in Interest rates will affect future cash flows or the

fair value of financial instruments. The Scheme has established limits on investments in interest bearing
assets, which are monitored on a daily basis,

The Scheme’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of
financial assets and financlal liabtlities is set out below:
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LVt AUSTRALIAN I.NCOME FUND - CURRENCY PROTECTED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 fune 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Accounting assumptions
The basis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates.

2012
Change in basis points Sensitivity of interest
income {000's}
Increase  Decrease Increase  Decrease
Cash assets 50 50 4 (4)
100 100 9 (9}
Loans and receivables 50 50 5 (5}
100 100 11 11
2011
Change in basls points Sensitivity of interest
income (000's)
Increase  Decreqse increase  Decrease
Cash assets 50 50 2 (2}
100 100 4 {4)
Loans and receivables 50 50 2 (2)
100 100 4 4
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC) principally to mitigate
* the foreign exchange risk implicit In the value of the investor funds denominated in foreign currencies and 1o secure
a particular exchange rate for a planned relnvestment /redemption of unitholder funds. The term of the contracts
rarely exceeds twelve months.

The FFECs are facilitated by several broking firms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and investors. The nat
fair value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 june 2012 was $315,990 {2011: $191,744).

The nominal Australian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2012 was $8,287,430 {2011;
$11,017,905)

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant expostire at 30 June 2012 on its
monetary assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible
movement of the currency rate against the Australian Dollar on the income statements, with alt other variables held

constant.

Foreign currency
investments in the fund are hedged in the relevant currency against Australian dollar currency movements. The fund

manages foreign currency risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).

The FFECs are facilitated by several brokerage firms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and investors. The
below table is only applicable if the FFEC facilitator is unable to meet its ebligation and the fund therefore seeks an

alternative party to transact the FFEC,
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LM AUSTRALIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2012

i2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity Risk

The Scheme Is not subject to equity risk at 30 June 2012,

13, FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carriad at their fair
value as disclosed by class of financial instruments or at amounts that approximate their fair values.

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adopted in determining fair values for investrments.

Disclosed below is the fair value of the Scheme’s financial instruments.

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value: The Scheme uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financlal instrument. The methods

comprise:

Level 1 — the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 - the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset of liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices);
Level 3 —the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data.

Fair Value

Carrying Amount

2012

Level 1

Level 2

$

Level 3

$

Total

$

Financial Assets

Forward currency
coniracts

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Forward currency
contracts

315,990

315,990

315,990

‘Total Financial
Liabilities

315,990

315,990

315,990
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35

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2012

13. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

Fair Value Carrylng Amount

Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
2011 $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Forward currency contracts - - -
Total Financial Assets - - -
Financial Liabifities
Forward currency contracts 191,744 191,744 191,744
Total Financial Liahilities 191,744 191,744 191,744

The falr values of currency exchange contracts {forwards and swaps) are calculated by reference to current exchange

rates for contracts with simllar maturity and risk profiles.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no material contingent assets and liabllities or commitments as at 30 June 2012,

15. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No other significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the
entity disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2012 or on the results and cash flows of the entity for the year

ended on that date.
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LVl AUSTRLIAN INCOME FUND — CURRENCY PROTECTED

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resotution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, | state that:

aj The financial staternents and notes of the Régistered Scheme set out on pages 5 to 35 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June 2012, and of its performance, as
represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable; and

¢} thefinancial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution.

On behaif of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Eghargr'Van der Hoven
Dirkctor

Gold Coast

4 October 2012
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Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of LM Australian Income
Fund - Currency Protected

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM Australian Income Fund - Currency Protected
("the Scheme™), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies,
other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the responsible entity of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001, This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report that [s free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating o audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or errar. in making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report [n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internat controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
cur audit opinion.

Independence

in conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
have given to the directors of the Scheme a written Auditor’s independence Declaration, a copy of which is
included in the directors’ report.
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Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion:
1. the financial report of LM Austrafian income Fund - Currency Protected is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:
M giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Scheme at 30 June 2012 and of

its performance for the year ended on that date; and
(D complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regufations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
international Accounting Standards Board.
Ernaty d\’iwr\fi\}

Ernst & Young

T Rose

Paula Mcl.uskie
Partner
Brisbane

4 Qctober 2012

Liability fimited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legisiation 613
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KordaMentha

26 August 2013

Ginette Mutler
VYoluntary Administrator
LM Investment Management Limited (Administrator Appointed)

By email: Ginette. Mulley@fticonsulting.com

Dear Ginette
Sale of property held by Peregian Beach Pty Ltd ACN 127 412 864 (*Peregian™)

To enable the proposed transaction to proceed without delay, we request that you provide the following
undertaking by sigiing and returning a copy of this Jetter,

The Voluntary Administrators of LM Investment Management Limited (Administrators Appointed)
(“LMIM”}, the Responsible Entity of the Australian Income Fund — Currency Protected (“Al F-CP”)
undertake to hold all proceeds veceived in exchange for the release of the AIF-CP securities over assets of
Peregian separately and on trust until at least the later of:

1. 19 September 2013; or

2. the determination of any Court proceedings commenced on or before 19 September 2013 by the
Trustess of the LM Manuged Performance Fund (“the Fund”) or the Custodian, The Trust
Company {PTAL) Limited, regarding alleged broaches of trust concerning the Fund’s loan to
Peregian,

In signing this letter, the AIF-CP agrees to provide to the Fund documents veferred to in the
correspondence sent by Mr O’Brien of Minter Ellison to Mr Tiplady of Russells on 19 August 2013 by no
later than Spim, 28 August 2013. If this cannot be complied with the Fund reserves iis rights to renegotiate
the terms of this agreement,

This letter supersedss all previous undertakings of AIF-CP with respect to Peregian..

Yours sineerely

GINETTE MULLER
Voluntary Administeator of LIMIM, the
Responsible Entity for ATF-CP

: of't 1' Trustee of the
LM Mﬁnaged Performance Fund

Cooperation wilth AlixPartners

Catparste Rpcovery Services Brisbare Offfces
Tuenarednd & Redee tiring Sereloes . " .
i!ir\’i ;f::;wl':.’\:lvlzr;' g Serelee Kardatentha Pty L1 Adelaide Perth Chicago Munich
Furenis ACH 180 169 391 Brishane Singapore Dallas New York

) el 3 Creek Strec Cold Coast  Sydney Detroit Paris
lnfnetkordamantliagom ié:?;ia:;' (12LD T(?OU reet Melbourne  Townsville Disseldest  San Francisco
s kardanieatisenm. PO Box 364 New Zealand London Shanghai

X Los Angefes  Tokyo

Lighitily Humited By o Sclpme Brisbane QLD 4001 iilan € Washingion, DG
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Standials Lagistallon
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Office: 07 3338 0222
Fax: 0733380298
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